
 

HCR24-055 MEETING DATE:  June 21, 2024 

SUBJECT: Loan Recommendation, Preliminary Bond Authorization, and Tax Equity and Fiscal   
                         Responsibility Act (TEFRA) Hearing for Hillcrest Hall 

COUNCIL DISTRICT: 3 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Real Estate Division  

CONTACT/PHONE NUMBER: Jennifer Kreutter (619) 578-7709 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
Approve a proposed residual receipts loan in an amount not to exceed $5,000,000 to Hillcrest Hall LP, a 
California limited partnership, and take the initial steps to issue up to $40,000,000 in Housing Authority of the 
City of San Diego tax-exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds and up to $7,000,000 of taxable bonds to 
facilitate the acquisition and new construction of Hillcrest Hall at 1601-1607 University Avenue and 3843 
Herbert Street in the Uptown Community Plan, which will consist of 97 rental housing units that will remain 
affordable for 55 years for families earning 30 percent to 60 percent of San Diego’s Area Median Income and 
one unrestricted manager’s unit.    

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF KEY FACTORS: 
• Hillcrest Hall is a proposed 98-unit new construction, affordable rental housing development that will

consist of one-bedroom, two-bedroom and three-bedroom units.
• The development’s location provides convenient access to transit, schools, groceries, medical facilities,

and parks. Notably, the development is also less than a quarter of a mile away from the bus rapid transit
station at the corner of University Avenue and Park Boulevard.

• Central Valley Coalition for Affordable Housing (CVCAH) has been contracted to provide the residents
at Hillcrest Hall with access to health care services, social services, and spiritual and recreational
activities.

• Two Metropolitan Transit System bus stops are 0.1 of a mile from the property.
• Three grocery stores, Trader Joes, Ralphs and Whole Foods, are within a half mile from the property.
• Alice Birney Elementary School is 0.3 of a mile away; Roosevelt Middle School is 0.8 of a mile away;

and Garfield High School is 2.7 miles from the property.
• The estimated total development cost is $64,587,091 ($659,052/unit).
• A subsidiary of Castellan Holdings LLC, CRP Affordable Housing and Community Development

(CRP), is the developer.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
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REPORT 
DATE ISSUED:  June 13, 2024    REPORT NO:  HCR24-055 

ATTENTION:    Chair and Members of the San Diego Housing Commission
For the Agenda of June 21, 2024 

SUBJECT: Loan Recommendation, Preliminary Bond Authorization, and Tax Equity and Fiscal 
Responsibility Act (TEFRA) Hearing for Hillcrest Hall 

COUNCIL DISTRICT: 3 

Advance notice of San Diego Housing Commission hearing of the following matter has been provided 
to the Housing Authority Members in accordance with the terms and provisions of San Diego 
Municipal Code Section 98.0301(e)(4)(A)-(B) for Staff Recommendation No. 1. 

Preliminary Bond Authorization and Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act (TEFRA) hearings are 
scheduled to be heard by the San Diego Housing Commission (Housing Commission) Board of 
Commissioners on June 21, 2024, at 9 a.m. Any two members of the Housing Authority of the City of 
San Diego (Housing Authority) or San Diego City Council (City Council) may request that these 
hearings not take place and instead be heard by the Housing Authority and City Council by giving 
notice to the Housing Commission’s President and Chief Executive Officer, or designee, within seven 
days of the date of this notice. 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve a proposed residual receipts loan in an amount not to exceed $5,000,000 to Hillcrest Hall LP, 
a California limited partnership, and take the initial steps to issue up to $40,000,000 in Housing 
Authority of the City of San Diego tax-exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds and up to 
$7,000,000 of taxable bonds to facilitate the acquisition and new construction of Hillcrest Hall at 1601-
1607 University Avenue and 3843 Herbert Street in the Uptown Community Plan, which will consist of 
97 rental housing units that will remain affordable for 55 years for families earning 30 percent to 60 
percent of San Diego’s Area Median Income and one unrestricted manager’s unit. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 
That the San Diego Housing Commission (Housing Commission) Board of Commissioners (Board) 
take the following actions as described in this report: 

1) Approve a Housing Commission residual receipts loan in an amount not to exceed $5,000,000
to Hillcrest Hall LP, a California limited partnership, and take the initial steps to issue up to
$40,000,000 in Housing Authority of the City of San Diego tax-exempt Multifamily Housing
Revenue Bonds and up to $7,000,000 of taxable bonds to facilitate the acquisition and new
construction of Hillcrest Hall at 1601-1607 University Avenue and 3843 Herbert Street in the
Uptown Community Plan, which will consist of 97 rental housing units that will remain
affordable for 55 years for families earning 30 percent to 60 percent of San Diego’s Area
Median Income (AMI) and one unrestricted manager’s unit.
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The Housing Commission’s proposed loan will be contingent upon the developer receiving all 
necessary third-party funding commitments as described in this report. Such third-party funding 
commitments will be subject to the Housing Commission’s General Counsel’s approval. 
 

2) Authorize the Housing Commission’s President and Chief Executive Officer (President & 
CEO), or designee, to: 

 
a. Execute all necessary documents and instruments to effectuate the transaction and 

implement the project, in a form approved by the General Counsel, and to take such actions 
as are necessary, convenient, and/or appropriate to implement the approvals upon advice of 
the General Counsel, provided that a copy of the documents, signed as to form by General 
Counsel, is submitted to each Housing Commissioner. 

b. Adjust financing terms/conditions, as necessary, for consistency with requirements of other 
funding sources or to accommodate market changes that may occur, provided that the 
proposed $5,000,000 maximum Housing Commission loan amount may not increase. 

c. Substitute approved funding sources with any other available funds as deemed appropriate, 
contingent upon budget availability, and further authorize the President and CEO, or 
designee, to take such actions as are necessary, convenient, and/or appropriate to implement 
this approval and delegation of authority by the Housing Commission upon advice of the 
General Counsel. 

  
3) Approve the following steps to issue up to $40,000,000 of Housing Authority of the City of San 

Diego tax-exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds and $7,000,000 of taxable bonds for 
Hillcrest Hall: 

 
a. Issue a bond inducement resolution (Declaration of Official Intent) for up to $40,000,000 in 

tax-exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds for the acquisition and new construction of 
Hillcrest Hall by Hillcrest Hall L.P. 

b. Authorize an application (and subsequent applications if necessary) to the California Debt 
Limit Allocation Committee (CDLAC) for an allocation of authority to issue tax-exempt 
private activity bonds in an amount up to $40,000,000 for Hillcrest Hall. 

c. Approve the bond financing team of Jones Hall as Bond Counsel and CSG Advisors as Bond 
Financial Advisor. 

 
4) Authorize the Housing Commission President and CEO, or designee, to execute any and all 

documents that are necessary to effectuate the transaction and implement these approvals in a 
form approved by the General Counsel and the Bond Counsel, and to take such actions as are 
necessary, convenient, and/or appropriate to implement these approvals upon advice of the 
General Counsel and/or the Bond Counsel. 
 

5) Hold a Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act (TEFRA) public hearing regarding the Housing 
Authority’s issuance of tax-exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds in an amount up to 
$40,000,000 to facilitate the acquisition and new construction of Hillcrest Hall. 
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SUMMARY 
                                           Table 1 - Development Details 

Address 1601-1607 University Avenue and 3843 Herbert Street 
Council District 3 
Community Plan Area Uptown Planning Committee 
Developer CRP Affordable Housing and Community Development LLC (CRP) 
Development Type New construction 
Construction Type Three levels of Type I new construction, with five stories of Type III new 

construction above. 
Parking Type 18 parking spaces  
Local Amenities Mass Transit:  

University Avenue and Richmond Street Rapid Bus Stop (0.1 miles from 
property) 
University Avenue and Park Boulevard Rapid Bus Stop (0.1 miles from 
property) 
 
Grocery:  
Trader Joes (0.4 miles from property) 
Ralphs (0.4 miles from property) 
Whole Foods (0.5 miles from property) 
 
Schools: 
Alice Birney Elementary School (0.3 miles from property) 
Roosevelt Middle School (0.8 miles from property) 
Garfield High School (2.7 miles from property)  

Housing Type Affordable Multifamily for low income families, including large families 
Accessibility Wheelchair accessibility in 10 percent of the units, and 4 percent of the units 

accessible to residents with visual and/or hearing impairment. 
Lot Size Four parcels totaling 0.45 acres 
Units 98 (97 units restricted/affordable) 
Density 218 dwelling units per acre (98 units ÷ 0.45 acres) 
Unit Mix 97 affordable rental units: 35 one-bedroom units, 28 two-bedroom units, 34 

three-bedroom units, and one unrestricted three-bedroom manager’s unit. 
Gross Building Area 66,404 square feet. 
Net Rentable Area 61,754 square feet. 
Affordable Units in 
Service by Council 
District  

Council District 3 includes 8,414 affordable rental housing units currently in 
service, which represents 31.5 percent of the 26,722 affordable rental 
housing units in service citywide 

  
The Development 
Hillcrest Hall is a proposed 98-unit new construction, affordable rental housing development within a 
single eight-story building. The development will be at 1601-1607 University Avenue and 3843 Herbert 
Street in San Diego’s Uptown neighborhood (Attachment 1 – Site Map).  The Hillcrest Hall apartments 
will provide 97 affordable rental units and one unrestricted manager’s unit. It will include 35 one-
bedroom units, 28 two-bedroom units, 34 three-bedroom units, and one three-bedroom manager’s unit. 
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Unit amenities will include: blinds, hardwood flooring, central air conditioning, ceiling fans, coat 
closets, a patio/balcony, and walk-in closets. Appliances will include a stove/oven, refrigerator, 
icemaker, microwave, and dishwasher. The development will offer a variety of community amenities, 
including a community room, on-site management, picnic area, playground, private balconies, a rooftop 
patio, and a computer room. The building will employ seven residential stories over one story of 
parking (18 stalls). The first level will be solely parking, while the second level will contain residential 
units along with amenities and an outdoor deck. The remaining six levels will be entirely residential. 
Due to proximity to mass transit, the development only requires 18 parking stalls. The development is in 
a High Resource Area as determined by the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (CTCAC) and 
California Department of Housing and Community Development ((HCD) Opportunity Area Map. This 
provides convenient access to transit, schools, groceries, medical facilities, and parks. Notably, the 
development is also less than a quarter of a mile away from the bus rapid transit station at the corner of 
University Avenue and Park Boulevard. 
 
Services 
The classes and activities provided by Central Valley Coalition for Affordable Housing (CVCAH) foster 
residents' physical and mental well-being. CVCAH has been contracted to provide the residents at 
Hillcrest Hall with a positive environment that promotes independence, healthy lifestyles, and the ability 
to remain contributing members of society by providing access to health care services, social services, 
and spiritual and recreational activities. 
 
Examples of the on-site social services CVCAH will provide free of charge to the residents of Hillcrest 
Hall include: 
 

• Information workshops 
• Resume writing assistance 
• Heart healthy workshops 
• Dress for Success workshop 
• Introduction to computers and advanced computers 
• Safety classes, including Neighborhood Watch and fraud awareness and prevention 
• Medical screenings for hearing, vision, blood pressure, balance, heart conditions, and 

medications 
• Financial literacy programs through local banks and service providers for budgeting and money 

management 
• Energy efficiency and recycling workshops and trainings 
• Water and fire safety 
• Coordination of transportation services 
• Arranging Meals on Wheels 
• Assistance with healthcare management 
• Application for benefits, e.g., Supplemental Security Income, Social Security, WIC and 

Medicare/Medicaid 
• Social activities and events 
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Developer’s Request 
In response to the Housing Commission’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 Notice of Funding Availability 
(NOFA), CRP applied for a loan for the Hillcrest Hall development. On March 15, 2024, Housing 
Commission staff provided a preliminary recommendation of award for a residual receipts loan of up to 
$5,000,000 for the Hillcrest Hall development.  
 
The developer proposes to apply for and obtain a CDLAC allocation of authority to issue tax-exempt 
private equity bonds, California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (CTCAC) approval for 4 percent tax 
credits, and third-party financing, as described in this report.  
 
The Property 
The property is 0.45 acres and is currently improved with two vacant commercial structures, two vacant 
single-family residential structures and a billboard, which will all be demolished to facilitate the new 
construction. Please see the Relocation Section below for further detail.  
 
Appraisal 
An appraisal of the subject site with an effective date of April 8, 2023, valued the property at 
$8,500,000, which ties to the Purchase and Sale Agreement. The appraisal was obtained by the 
developer and was conducted by Novogradac. An updated appraisal will be obtained in accordance with 
CDLAC’s regulations prior to bond application and will be provided to the Housing Commission prior 
to final bond authorization.  
 
Prevailing Wages 
If the proposed development’s use of federal HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds 
from the Housing Commission’s loan exceeds the 11- unit federal threshold, federal prevailing wages 
will apply. Additionally, due to a commitment from the City of San Diego’s Permanent Local Housing 
Allocation Program (PLHA), payment of state prevailing wages is required. If both federal and state 
prevailing wages apply, the higher of the two will be applicable to the project. 
 
Project Sustainability 
The development will comply with the CTCAC minimum energy efficiency standards. Its features will 
include Energy Star-rated efficient appliances and a solar component. It will be designed to achieve a 
Green Point certification. Green Point is a program of Build It Green, a nonprofit organization promoting 
healthy, energy- and resource-efficient buildings in California. Green Point scores and rates housing in 
five categories, including energy and water conservation, indoor air quality, sustainable building 
materials, and community benefits such as proximity to public transportation. The development will 
include a solar component. Water conservation will be promoted via low-water-use fixtures in kitchens 
and bathrooms, low-flow toilets, and low-water-use native-plants landscaping with water-efficient 
irrigation controls.  
 
Accessibility 
CTCAC requires wheelchair accessibility in 10 percent of the units, and 4 percent of the units accessible 
to residents with visual and/or hearing impairment. The same units can satisfy both of these accessibility 
requirements. The Hillcrest Hill units will be accessible in accordance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act and Section 504. As HOME funds will be used to fund the development, these 
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accessible units will satisfy the HOME accessibility requirement in 5 percent of the units, plus an 
additional 2 percent of the units accessible for residents with visual and/or hearing impairment.   
 
Relocation 
The developer plans to acquire the project site and proposes to demolish two commercial buildings and 
two residential buildings to construct a new, eight-story building with 97 affordable residential rental 
apartment units. The on-site billboard is currently still in use and will be permanently relocated while 
the commercial and residential structures will be removed to facilitate the new construction. Both the 
billboard and commercial tenants qualifies for relocation assistance as accounted for in the development 
budget. The two residential tenants do not qualify for relocation as they were the owners of the property. 
In accordance to all applicable relocation laws and regulations, a detailed relocation plan for the 
billboard and eligible commercial tenants has been developed by Overland, Pacific & Cutler.  
 
Development Team 
During the tax credit compliance period, Hillcrest Hall will be owned by a California limited partnership (a 
single-asset limited partnership) consisting of  Hillcrest Hall LP as the owner/borrower, CVCAH as the 
Managing General Partner, Hillcrest Hall AGP LLC as the Administrative General Partner, and a to-be-
selected tax credit limited partner (Attachment 2 – Organization Chart).  
 
Created in 2008, Castellan Holdings LLC, specializing in value-add and asset management to distressed 
real estate, established their affordable housing arm in 2019. A subsidiary of Castellan Holdings LLC, 
CRP Affordable Housing and Community Development (CRP) is a for-profit, full-service real estate firm 
with experience in multifamily acquisition/rehabilitation, ground-up development, and property 
management. The founders of CRP have owned, operated, and managed over 2,500 rent-restricted units and 
have significant experience providing housing to at-risk, special needs, and other vulnerable populations. 
Since the firm's inception, CRP has delivered over 300 units of affordable housing, with nearly 1,000 
additional units under construction. Based upon the developer’s past experience and past development 
performance, staff has determined that the developer has the requisite capacity to successfully complete the 
proposed Hillcrest Hall project. 
 

Table 2 Development Team Summary 
ROLE FIRM/CONTACT 

Developer CRP 
Owner/Borrower Hillcrest Hall LP 
Managing General Partner Central Valley Coalition for Affordable Housing (CVCAH) 
Administrative General Partner Hillcrest Hall AGP LLC 
Tax Credit Investor Limited Partner To be determined 
Architect AO Architects 
General Contractor      Ironcore Construction LLC 
Property Management Hyder Property Management Professionals 
Construction and Permanent Lender CitiBank 
Tenant Services Providers CVCAH 
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Property Management 
Hillcrest Hall will be managed by Hyder Property Management Professionals (Hyder). Hyder was 
established in 1963. The company currently manages over 120 affordable properties and approximately 
7,100 units in the state of California. The firm is supported by staff members familiar with the most 
current affordable housing policy and regulation requirements.  
 
FINANCING STRUCTURE 
Hillcrest Hall has an estimated total development cost of $64,587,091 ($659,052/unit). Financing will 
include a combination of sources as described in Table 3.  The developer’s pro forma is included as 
Attachment 3 and summarized in Table 3 below.  
 
                     Table 3 – Hillcrest Hall Estimated Permanent Sources and Uses 

Financing Sources Amounts Financing Uses Amounts Per Unit 
Bond financed permanent loan $11,792,490 Land Acquisition $8,500,000 $86,735 
Housing Commission proposed loan 5,000,000 Hard Costs 36,750,000 375,000 
Federal Tax Credit Equity 24,647,401 Hard Cost Contingency 1,837,500 18,750 
State Tax Credit Equity 14,544,283 Soft Costs 5,159,417 52,647 
City of San Diego BTH 3,175,000 Soft Cost Contingency 418,974 4,275 
Deferred Developer Fee 5,427,917 Financing costs 4,490,125 45,818 
  Developer’s fee 7,026,223 71,696 
  Reserves 404,852 4,131 
Total Development Cost $64,587,091 Total Development Cost (TDC) $64,587,091 

 
$659,052 

  
The Housing Commission’s proposed $5,000,000 residual receipts loan will be partly funded with the 
City of San Diego Affordable Housing Fund and U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) HOME funds, which the Housing Commission administers. The total amount of Housing 
Commission funding sources shall not exceed $5,000,000. A final determination of Housing 
Commission funding sources will be made by the Housing Commission’s President and CEO, or 
designee, contingent upon budget availability. The proposed loan terms are summarized in Attachment 
4. 
 
The Housing Commission requires affordable housing developers to pursue all viable sources of funding to 
reduce the financing gap and amount of Housing Commission subsidy required. If other funding is secured, 
proceeds will first be used to make an adjustment to reduce the Housing Commission’s loan. 
 
Developers’ Fee 
$7,026,223 – Gross developer’s fee 
 -5,427,917 – Minus deferred developer’s fee 
$1,598,306 – Net cash developer’s fee 
 
The proposed developer fee complies with the Housing Commission’s developer fee guidelines. 
 
Development Cost Key Performance Indicators 
Housing Commission staff has identified development cost performance indicators, which were used to 
evaluate the proposed development and make a funding recommendation. The key performance indicators 
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listed in Table 4 are commonly used by real estate industry professionals and affordable housing 
developers. 

 
                Table 4 – Hillcrest Hall Key Performance Indicators 

Development Cost Per Unit $64,587,091 ÷ 98 units = $659,052 
Housing Commission Subsidy Per Unit $5,000,000 ÷ 98 units = $51,020 
Land Cost Per Unit $8,500,000 ÷ 98 units = $86,735 
Gross Building Square Foot Hard Cost $38,587,500 ÷ 66,404 sq. ft. = $581 
Net Rentable Square Foot Hard Cost $38,587,500 ÷ 61,754 sq. ft. = $625 

 
Project Comparison Chart 
Multiple factors and variables influence the cost of developing multifamily affordable housing, including 
but not limited to project location, site conditions, environmental factors, land use approval process, 
community involvement, construction type, design requirements/constraints, economies of scale, City fees, 
developer experience and capacity, and the mission and goals of the organization developing the project. 
Similar construction-type developments (completed or approved) over recent years are listed in Table 5.   
 
These developments are similar in terms of new construction and target population and are provided as a 
comparison to the subject development.   
  

          Table 5 – Hillcrest Hall Comparable Development Projects 
 

New Construction 
Project Name 

 
 

Year 

 
 

Units 

Total Development Cost Cost Per 
Unit 

HC Subsidy 
Per Unit 

Gross Hard 
Cost Per Sq. Ft. 

Proposed Subject –       
Hillcrest Hall 

2024 98 $64,587,091 
 (with prevailing wage) 

$659,052 $51,020 $581 

Kindred 2024 126 $90,122,469 
(with prevailing wage) 

$715,258 $60,759 $360 

Cortez Hill 
 

2023 88 $44,138,657    
(with prevailing wage) 

$501,576 $56,818 $514 

Modica 2023 94 $58,165,819 
(w/o prevailing wage) 

$618,785 $31,915 $378 

 
 

TAX-EXEMPT MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS 
Proposed Housing Bonds 
The Housing Commission utilizes the Housing Authority’s tax-exempt borrowing status to pass on 
lower interest rate financing (and make 4 percent low-income housing tax credits available) to 
developers of affordable rental housing. The Housing Authority’s ability to issue bonds is limited under 
the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. To issue bonds for a development, the Housing Authority must first 
submit an application to CDLAC for a bond allocation. Prior to submitting applications to CDLAC, 
developments are brought before the Housing Commission Board. Housing Commission bond 
inducement resolutions must be obtained prior to application submittal, and Housing Authority TEFRA 
resolutions must be secured by the time of project closing. These actions do not obligate the Housing 
Authority to issue bonds.  
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The Housing Commission Board is authorized to hold TEFRA hearings pursuant to Multifamily 
Mortgage Revenue Bond Program Policy Amendments the Housing Authority approved March 9, 2021 
(Report No. HAR20-043; Resolution No. HA-1906). 
 
The developer plans to submit a bond allocation application to CDLAC on August 27, 2024, for a 
December 11, 2024, bond allocation meeting (dates are subject to change at CDLAC’s discretion). 
However, if necessary, staff will submit additional applications to CDLAC to secure a bond allocation 
for the proposed development. 
 
The developer will be seeking a CDLAC bond allocation of approximately $40,000,000 in tax-exempt 
Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds. The developer proposes to have the Housing Authority issue the 
bonds through a tax-exempt private placement bond issuance. The bonds will meet all requirements of 
the Housing Commission’s Multifamily Housing Revenue Bond Program policy and will fully comply 
with the City of San Diego’s (City) ordinance on bond disclosure. The developer proposes that the 
bonds will be used to provide construction and permanent financing for the project. Housing 
Commission staff will later return to both the Housing Commission and Housing Authority for approval 
of the final bonds and transaction documents. A general description of the Multifamily Housing Revenue 
Bond Program and actions that must be taken by the Housing Authority and by the City Council to initiate 
and finalize proposed financings are described in Attachment 5. 
 
Staff recommends assigning Jones Hall as Bond Counsel and CSG Advisors as Bond Financial Advisor 
to work on the development. The proposed bond financing team members have been selected in 
accordance with the existing policy for the issuance of bonds. Financial Advisors and Bond Counsels 
are selected in accordance with the Housing Commission’s Bond Program Policy. 
 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING IMPACT 
Affordability 
The Hillcrest Hall development will be subject to Housing Commission Declaration of Covenants and 
Restrictions and applicable tax credit and bond regulatory agreements, which will restrict affordability 
of 97 units for 55 years.   
 
The rent and occupancy restrictions required by the Housing Commission, CTCAC and other lenders 
and investors will apply. The same units may be counted as the tax credit-restricted units and the 
Housing Commission loan’s restricted units. The more stringent of the funding sources’ 
affordability/rent restrictions will take precedence during the term of their applicability. 
           
                  Table 6 – Hillcrest Hall Affordability and Monthly Estimated Rent Table 

 
Unit Type 

 
AMI 

 
Units 

CTCAC 
Gross 
Rents 

One bedroom 30% ($36,400/year for two-person household) 11 $910 
One bedroom 50% ($60,600/year for two-person household) 4 $1,515 
One bedroom 60% ($72,800/year for two-person household) 20 $1,818 
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FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS 
The funding sources and uses proposed for approval in this action are included in the Housing 
Authority-approved Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 Housing Commission Budget. 
 
Funding sources approved by this action will be as follows  
Bond Issuer Fee – $40,000,000 (Tax-exempt) + $7,000,000 (Taxable) X 0.0025 = $117,500 
Housing Commission Loan funds (HOME and AHF) – up to $5,000,000 
Total Funding Sources – up to $5,117,500 
 
Funding uses approved by this action  
Administrative costs - $117,500  
Housing Commission Loan – up to $5,000,000 
Total Funding Uses - up to $5,117,500 

 
Approving this action will further grant the President & CEO, or designee, the authority to substitute 
the above funding sources with other available funding sources so long as the total Housing 
Commission loan amount does not exceed the approved total loan amount, should the operational need 
arise or should such actions be to the benefit of the Housing Commission.   
 
Approval of the bond inducement resolution does not commit the Housing Authority to issue the bonds. 
The bonds would not constitute a debt of the City. If bonds are ultimately issued for the development, 
the bonds will not financially obligate the City, the Housing Authority, nor the Housing Commission 
because security for the repayment of the bonds will be limited to specific private revenue sources of 
the development. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City, nor the Housing 
Authority, would be pledged to the payment of the bonds. The developer is responsible for the payment 
of all costs under the financing, including the Housing Commission’s annual administrative fee, as well 
as the Housing Commission’s Bond Counsel and Financial Advisor fees. 
 

Subtotal One 
Bedroom Units 

-- 35 -- 

Two bedrooms 30% ($40,950/year for three-person household) 10 $1,024 
Two bedrooms 50% ($68,200/year for three-person household) 3 $1,705 
Two bedrooms 60% ($81,900/year for three-person household) 15 $2,046 
Subtotal Two 
Bedroom Units 

-- 28 -- 

Three bedrooms 30% ($45,450/year for four-person household) 10 $1,136 
Three bedrooms 50% ($75,750/year for four-person household) 4 $1,894 
Three bedrooms 60% ($90,900/year for four-person household) 20 $2,273 
Subtotal Three 
Bedroom Units 

-- 34 -- 

Manager’s three 
bedrooms unit 

-- 1  

Total Units -- 98 -- 
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Estimated Development Schedule 
The estimated development timeline is as follows: 
 
Milestones Estimated Dates 
• CDLAC bond and CTCAC tax credit applications 
• CDLAC and CTCAC allocation meetings 
• Housing Commission final bond authorization 
• Housing Authority final bond authorization 
• Estimated bond issuance and escrow/loan closing 
• Estimated start of construction work 
• Estimated completion of construction work 

• August 27, 2024 
• December 11, 2024 
• February 2025 
• March 2025  
• April 2025 
• June 2025 
• March 2027 

 
HOUSING COMMISSION STRATEGIC PLAN 
This item relates to Strategic Priority Area No. 1 in the Housing Commission Strategic Plan for Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2022-2024; Increasing and Preserving Housing Solutions. 
 
COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION and PUBLIC OUTREACH EFFORTS 
On June 6, 2023, CRP presented the proposed development as an action item to the Uptown Planners 
Community Planning Group, which voted unanimously to support the development. 
 
KEY STAKEHOLDERS & PROJECTED IMPACTS 
Stakeholders include CRP as the developer, Central Valley Coalition for Affordable Housing as the 
service provider, the City of San Diego as a lender, the Housing Commission as a lender, and the 
Uptown Community Planning Group. The project is anticipated to have a positive impact on the 
community, as it will contribute to the quality of the surrounding neighborhood and create 97 new, 
affordable, transit-oriented rental homes for working San Diego families.  
 
STATEMENT for PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 
The developer’s Disclosure Statement is at Attachment 6. 
 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CONTRACTING AND EQUITY ASSURANCE 
CRP is committed to equity and inclusion as both an employer and a service provider. The Housing 
Commission’s NOFA included a requirement for prospective applicants to provide a narrative and 
specific example of activities and initiatives that support equity assurance. CRP’s response demonstrated 
a commitment to advancing racial equity and inclusion (REI) through project design and operational 
policies. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
California Environmental Quality Act 
The proposed activity to approve a proposed residual receipts loan and take steps to issue bonds to 
facilitate the acquisition and new construction of Hillcrest Hall, has been reviewed for consistency with 
and is covered in the 2019 Final Program Environmental Impact Report (PEIR) for the Uptown 
Community Plan, (SCH No. 2016061023) which was certified by City Council Resolution No. R-3104766 
on November 14, 2016. This activity is a subsequent discretionary action and is not considered a separate 
project for the purposes of CEQA review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15378(c) and 
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15060(c)(3). Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21166 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, 
there is no change in circumstance, additional information, or project changes to warrant additional 
environmental review for this action. 
 
National Environmental Policy Act 
Federal funds constitute a portion of the funding for this project. An Environmental Assessment will be 
processed in accordance with the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). The 
parties agree that the provision of federal funds as a result of this action is conditioned on the approval of 
the Environmental Assessment by the City of San Diego and the receipt of Authority to Use Grant Funds 
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,     Approved by, 

Jennifer Kreutter     Jeff Davis 
Jennifer Kreutter     Jeff Davis     
Vice President, Multifamily Housing Finance  Deputy Chief Executive Officer 
Real Estate Division      San Diego Housing Commission 
San Diego Housing Commission 
 
Attachments:   1. Site Map 

2. Organization Chart 
3. Developer’s Project Pro Forma 
4. Proposed Loan Terms 
5. Multifamily Housing Revenue Bond Program 
6. Developer’s Disclosure Statement 

 
Hard copies are available for review during business hours at the information desk in the main lobby of 
the San Diego Housing Commission offices at 1122 Broadway, San Diego, CA 92101. Docket materials 
are also available in the “Governance & Legislative Affairs” section of the San Diego Housing 
Commission website at www.sdhc.org. 
 
 
 
 

http://www.sdhc.org/
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Hillcrest Hall LP 
Organizational Structure

Sole Member
CRP Affordable Housing and Community 

Development LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company 

100% Interest

Borrower
Hillcrest Hall LP, a California 

limited partnership

Administrative General Partner

Hillcrest Hall AGP LLC, a California 
limited liability company .00049% Interest

Investor Limited Partner
TBD

99.999% Interest

Managing General Partner
Central Valley Coalition for Affordable Housing, 
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 

.00051% Interest

Chief Executive Officer
Christina Alley

Chief Executive Officer
Paul Salib

President
John Salib
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PROJECT SUMMARY
Hillcrest Hall
4/30/2024
98 Units

Sources and Uses Assumptions Preliminary Development Programming Summary
Development Uses Tax Credit Considerations City: Construction Type:
Acquisition Costs Active Scenario - Credit Type 4% MSA: No. of Stories:
Land Cost or Value 8,500,000 $86,735/unit 130% Boost Yes 4 Person 50% AMI: Parking Type:
Other Acquisition Costs -  - Rural Designation Yes Site (acres): No. of Stalls:
Subtotal Acquisition Costs 8,500,000 $86,735/unit Prevailing Wage (State, Federal, Both): Yes Impact Fees per Unit: 10,000 Extraorindary Cond:

Housing Set Aside Large Family County: SAN DIEGO Solar: No
Hard Costs Resource: Highest Resource
Off-Site Improvements 389,469 $3,974/unit Equity:  Pay-in
Site Work 1,554,438 $15,862/unit Closing 90% Completion Completion Conversion 8,609
Structures 24,419,229 $249,176/unit 25.00% 0.00% 0.00% 72.50% 2.50%
Prevailing Wages 5,272,627 $53,802/unit
General Requirements 1,898,146 $19,369/unit Federal Tax Credit Price $0.880
Contractor Overhead & Profit 2,530,861 $25,825/unit State Tax Credit Price $0.900
General Liability Insurance 360,648 $3,680/unit Solar Tax Credit Price $0.000 Project Unit & AMI Mix
Bond Premium 324,583 $3,312/unit 9% Credit Rate 9.00% AMI Studio 1BR 2BR 3BR 4BR Totals
Subtotal GC Hard Costs 36,750,000 $375,000/unit 4% Credit Rate 4.00% 80% 0 0 0 0 0 0

LP Interest 99.99% 70% 0 0 0 0 0 0
Soft Costs 10 Yr Federal Tax Credits 28,011,211 60% 0 20 15 20 0 55
Architect & Engineering 1,750,000 $17,857/unit 3 Yr State Credits 16,160,314 50% 0 4 3 4 0 11
Financing Fees and Interest 4,490,125 $45,818/unit Federal Tax Credits / Unit 285,829 40% 0 0 0 0 0 0
Legal Fees 367,500 $3,750/unit State Tax Credits / Unit 164,901 30% 0 11 10 10 0 31
Reserves 404,852 $4,131/unit 20% 0 0 0 0 0 0
Development Impact and Permit Fees 1,960,000 $20,000/unit Debt Mgr. 0 0 0 1 0 1
Developer Fee 7,026,223 $71,696/unit Opr. Exp./Unit/Year 7,500 Totals 0 35 28 35 0 98
Remaining Development Soft Costs 1,081,917 $11,040/unit Services Exp./Unit/Year 500 UA 67 84 111 145 180
Subtotal Soft Costs 17,080,617 $174,292/unit Replacement Reserves/Unit/Year 250 Sq. Ft. 500 600 800 1,000 1,200 78,400

Vacancy Rate 5.00%
Contingencies DCR 1.15 Common 3,000 Net SF 81,400 Cost psf $451
Owner Hard Costs Contingency 1,837,500 $18,750/unit Perm Loan Amort 40
Owner Soft Costs Contingency 418,974 $4,275/unit Interest Rate - Permanent Loan 6.25% Eff Loss 18.0% Gross SF 99,268 Cost psf $370
Subtotal Contingencies 2,256,474 $23,025/unit Interest Rate - Tax-Exempt Construction Loan 6.25%

Interest Rate - Taxable Construction Loan 6.75% Project Timing
Total Development Costs 64,587,091 $659,052/unit Interest Rate - Blended 6.32% Tax Credit Allocation 12/1/2024
Cash Developer Fee 1,598,306 Interest Reserve Rate - Tax-Exempt Construction Loan 7.00% Construction Begin - Initial Closing 6/1/2025

Interest Reserve Rate - Taxable Construction Loan 7.50% Construction Complete 3/1/2027
Development Sources Tax- Exempt Bonds - Construction/Permanent 11,792,490 Lease Up Complete 6/1/2027
Federal LIHTC Equity 24,647,401 $251,504/unit 38.2% Tax- Exempt Bonds - Construction 22,509,752 Conversion/Stabilizatiion 9/1/2027
State LIHTC Equity 14,544,283 $148,411/unit 22.5% Total Tax- Exempt Bonds 34,302,242 8609 9/1/2028
Solar Equity -  - Taxable Construction Loan 5,855,852
Permanent Loan (Tranche A) 11,792,490 $120,332/unit 18.3% Total Construction Loan 40,158,095 Miscellaneous
Permanent Loan (Tranche B) -  - 50% Test 55.00% CA 9% Tiebreaker
Deferred Developer Fee 5,427,917 $55,387/unit 8.4% CA 4% Tiebreaker 77.1%
GP Contribution of Developer Fee -  - – Construction Loan LTC
VHHP -  - –
City of San Diego BTH 3,175,000 $32,398/unit 4.9%
San Diego Housing Commission 5,000,000 $51,020/unit 7.7%
Miscellaneous #1 -  - –
Total Development Sources 64,587,091 $659,052/unit

Cash Flow
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Year 14 Year 15 Year 16

Net Income 1,741,044 1,784,570 1,829,184 1,874,914 1,921,787 1,969,831 2,019,077 2,069,554 2,121,293 2,174,325 2,228,683 2,284,400 2,341,510 2,400,048 2,460,049 2,521,550
Operating Expenses 735,000 760,725 787,350 814,908 843,429 872,949 903,503 935,125 967,855 1,001,730 1,036,790 1,073,078 1,110,635 1,149,508 1,189,740 1,231,381
Net Operating Income 1,006,044 1,023,845 1,041,834 1,060,006 1,078,357 1,096,882 1,115,574 1,134,429 1,153,438 1,172,596 1,191,893 1,211,323 1,230,875 1,250,540 1,270,309 1,290,169

Debt Service 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408
Services 49,000 50,715 52,490 54,327 56,229 58,197 60,234 62,342 64,524 66,782 69,119 71,539 74,042 76,634 79,316 82,092
Replacement Reserves 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500
Issuer Fees 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500
Mandatory Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Managing GP/LP Fee 10,800 11,178 11,569 11,974 12,393 12,827 13,276 13,741 14,222 14,719 15,234 15,768 16,320 16,891 17,482 18,094

Residual Cash Flow 110,836 126,544 142,367 158,297 174,328 190,451 206,657 222,939 239,285 255,687 272,132 288,609 305,105 321,608 338,103 354,576
DSCR 1.15 1.17 1.19 1.21 1.23 1.25 1.27 1.29 1.31 1.33 1.35 1.38 1.40 1.42 1.44 1.46
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OPERATING BUDGET & INCOME ANALYSIS
Hillcrest Hall

County SAN DIEGO Proj 2024 Rent Growth 9.94% On
  

Square Total Gross Utility Monthly Annual
Rent: Restriction %AMI Units Feet/Unit Sq. Ft. Rents Allowance Net Rent Rent

0BR/1BA LIHTC 80% 0 500 0 2,121$        67.00$                 2,054$             -$                
0BR/1BA LIHTC 70% 0 500 0 1,856$        67.00$                 1,789$             -$                
0BR/1BA LIHTC 60% 0 500 0 1,591$        67.00$                 1,524$             -$                
0BR/1BA LIHTC 50% 0 500 0 1,326$        67.00$                 1,259$             -$                
0BR/1BA LIHTC 40% 0 500 0 1,061$        67.00$                 994$                -$                
0BR/1BA LIHTC 30% 0 500 0 796$           67.00$                 729$                -$                
0BR/1BA LIHTC 20% 0 500 0 530$           67.00$                 463$                -$                
1BR/1BA LIHTC 80% 0 600 0 2,273$        84.00$                 2,189$             -$                
1BR/1BA LIHTC 70% 0 600 0 1,989$        84.00$                 1,905$             -$                
1BR/1BA LIHTC 60% 20 600 12,000 1,705$        84.00$                 1,621$             388,922$        
1BR/1BA LIHTC 50% 4 600 2,400 1,420$        84.00$                 1,336$             64,148$          
1BR/1BA LIHTC 40% 0 600 0 1,136$        84.00$                 1,052$             -$                
1BR/1BA LIHTC 30% 11 600 6,600 852$           84.00$                 768$                101,410$        
1BR/1BA LIHTC 20% 0 600 0 568$           84.00$                 484$                -$                
2BR/1BA LIHTC 80% 0 800 0 2,728$        111.00$               2,617$             -$                
2BR/1BA LIHTC 70% 0 800 0 2,387$        111.00$               2,276$             -$                
2BR/1BA LIHTC 60% 15 800 12,000 2,046$        111.00$               1,935$             348,337$        
2BR/1BA LIHTC 50% 3 800 2,400 1,705$        111.00$               1,594$             57,390$          
2BR/1BA LIHTC 40% 0 800 0 1,364$        111.00$               1,253$             -$                
2BR/1BA LIHTC 30% 10 800 8,000 1,023$        111.00$               912$                109,452$        
2BR/1BA LIHTC 20% 0 800 0 682$           111.00$               571$                -$                
3BR/2BA LIHTC 80% 0 1,000 0 3,150$        145.00$               3,005$             -$                
3BR/2BA LIHTC 70% 0 1,000 0 2,757$        145.00$               2,612$             -$                
3BR/2BA LIHTC 60% 20 1,000 20,000 2,363$        145.00$               2,218$             532,279$        
3BR/2BA LIHTC 50% 4 1,000 4,000 1,969$        145.00$               1,824$             87,553$          
3BR/2BA LIHTC 40% 0 1,000 0 1,575$        145.00$               1,430$             -$                
3BR/2BA LIHTC 30% 10 1,000 10,000 1,181$        145.00$               1,036$             124,370$        
3BR/2BA LIHTC 20% 0 1,000 0 788$           145.00$               643$                -$                
4BR/2BA LIHTC 80% 0 1,200 0 3,515$        180.00$               3,335$             -$                
4BR/2BA LIHTC 70% 0 1,200 0 3,075$        180.00$               2,895$             -$                
4BR/2BA LIHTC 60% 0 1,200 0 2,636$        180.00$               2,456$             -$                
4BR/2BA LIHTC 50% 0 1,200 0 2,197$        180.00$               2,017$             -$                
4BR/2BA LIHTC 40% 0 1,200 0 1,757$        180.00$               1,577$             -$                
4BR/2BA LIHTC 30% 0 1,200 0 1,318$        180.00$               1,138$             -$                
4BR/2BA LIHTC 20% 0 1,200 0 879$           180.00$               699$                -$                
3BR/2BA n/a Manager 1 1,000 1,000 -$                         -$                 -$                

Total Rents 98 78,400 1,813,862
Community Room/Office 3,000
% Loss to Efficiency 18% 17,868
Construction Square Feet, excluding commercial 99,268
RA Overhang 0
Income from Operations PUPM
Laundry 12.00$           14,112
Other Income (App. Fees, Late, etc.) 4.00$             4,704
Garage -$               0 Garages 0
Cable & Highspeed Data Income -$               0
Telephone Income -$               0
   Sub-Total 16.00$           1,832,678
Less: Vacancies @ 5.0% 91,634
Commercial Income -                 $2.00/sq ft 0
Less: Vacancies @ 50% 310 0
Total Income 1,741,044

Operating Expenses PUPA Comps Diff Notes
Admin -$               -$                     -$            0
Management Fee -$               -$            0
Utilities -$               -$                     -$            0
Payroll -$               -$                     -$            0
Repair & Maintenance -$               -$                     -$            0
Insurance -$               -$                     -$            0
Real Estate Taxes -$               -$                     -$            0
Other 7,500$           -$                     7,500$        735,000
Total Expenses 7,500$           735,000

Net Operating Income 1,006,044

Reserves $250/unit 24,500
Services $500/unit per unit 49,000
Issuer and Monitoring Fee 0.05% 7,500
Mandatory Debt Service 0.420% 0
Net Income Available for Debt Service 925,044

DSC TEST 1.15

Loan Sizing Tranche A Tranche B Tranche C
Loan Amount 11,792,490 0 0
Interest 6.25% 6.25%
Term 17 18
Amortization 40 35
Debt Service Coverage 1.15 1.15
Monthly Payment 66,951 0 0
Annual Payment 803,408 0
Cash Flow After D/S 121,636
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LIHTC & Basis Calculation
Hillcrest Hall

75.00%

ACTUAL OR EST. Eligible 30%
DESCRIPTION OF COSTS OF COSTS Basis? ELIGIBLE BASIS

LAND COST/ACQUISITION
Land Cost or Value 8,500,000 No XXXXXXXXXXX
Demolition - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Legal - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Land Lease Rent Prepayment - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Existing Improvements Cost or Value - Yes - Acq. -
Off-Site Improvements - Yes -
Predevelopment Interest/Holding Cost - Yes -
Assumed, Accrued Interest on Existing Debt (Rehab/Acq) - Yes -
Excess Purchase Price Over Appraisal - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: (Specify) - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Total Land / Acquisition 8,500,000 -

NEW CONSTRUCTION
Off-Site Improvements 389,469 Yes 389,469
Site Work 1,554,438 Yes 1,554,438
Structures 24,419,229 Yes 24,419,229
General Requirements 1,898,146 Yes 1,898,146
Contractor Overhead 1,265,431 Yes 1,265,431
Contractor Profit 1,265,431 Yes 1,265,431
Prevailing Wages 5,272,627 Yes 5,272,627
General Liability Insurance 360,648 Yes 360,648
Urban Greening - Yes -
Bond Premium 324,583 Yes 324,583
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Total New Construction 36,750,000 36,750,000

ARCHITECTURAL + SURVEY + ENGINEERING
Design / Supervision 1,100,000 Yes 1,100,000
Supervision - Yes -
Total Survey & Engineering 650,000 Yes 650,000
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Total Architectural 1,750,000 1,750,000

CONSTRUCTION PERIOD EXPENSES
Construction Loan Interest 3,292,643 Partial 2,047,575
Origination Fee 301,186 Yes 225,889
Credit Enhancement/Application Fee 15,000 Yes 11,250
Other: Soft Loan Construction Interest - Partial -
Cost of Issuance 75,296 Yes 75,296
Title & Recording 100,000 Yes 75,000
Taxes 105,000 Yes 105,000
Insurance 551,000 Yes 551,000
Employment Reporting 25,000 Yes 25,000
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Total Construction Period Expense 4,465,125 3,116,010

PERMANENT FINANCING EXPENSES
Loan Origination Fee - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Credit Enhancement/Application Fee - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Title & Recording 10,000 No XXXXXXXXXXX
Taxes - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Insurance - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Legal for Perm Loan 15,000 No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: MIP Loan Fee - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: (Specify) - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Total Permanent Financing 25,000 -

LEGAL FEES
Legal Paid by Applicant 100,000 Yes 100,000
Lender Legal 75,000 Yes 75,000
Other: Investor Legal 50,000 No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: Bond Issuer Legal 50,000 No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: MGP Legal 50,000 No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: SDHC Legal Fees 27,500 No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: SDHC AM Fees 15,000 No XXXXXXXXXXX
Total Legal Fees 367,500 175,000

CAPITALIZED RESERVES
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Operating Reserve 404,852 No XXXXXXXXXXX
Replacement Reserve - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Transition Reserve - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Lease-Up Reserve - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: Soft Loan Debt Service Reserve - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: (Specify) - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: (Specify) - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Total Reserves 404,852 -

CONTINGENCY COSTS
Construction Hard Cost Contingency 1,837,500 Yes 1,837,500
Soft Cost Contingency 418,974 Yes 418,974
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Total Contingency 2,256,474 2,256,474

OTHER
TCAC App/Allocation/Monitoring Fees 97,911 No XXXXXXXXXXX
Environmental Audit 50,000 Yes 50,000
Local Development Impact Fees 980,000 Yes 980,000
Permit Processing Fees 980,000 Yes 980,000
Capital Fees - Yes -
Marketing 150,000 No XXXXXXXXXXX
Furnishings 150,000 Yes 150,000
Market Study 10,000 Yes 10,000
Accounting/Reimbursable 50,000 Yes 50,000
Appraisal Costs 10,000 Yes 10,000
Construction Management - Yes -
Prevailing Wage Monitoring 42,000 Yes 42,000
Other: Relocation Cost - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: Environmental Remediation - No XXXXXXXXXXX
Other: CDLAC Fee 12,006 Yes 12,006
Other: Miscellaneous Third-Party Costs 250,000 Yes 250,000
Other: Predevelopment Loan Interest 200,000 Yes 200,000
Other: SDHC Underwriting Fee 60,000 Yes 60,000
Total Other Costs 3,041,917 2,794,006

DEVELOPER COSTS
     Developer Fee Limit - Per Application (9%) 2,500,000 2,500,000
     Developer Fee Calculation 7,026,223 7,026,223
Developer Overhead/Profit 7,026,223 Yes 7,026,223
Consultant/Processing Agent - Yes -
Project Administration - Yes -
Broker Fees Paid to a Related Party - Yes -
Construction Oversight by Developer - Yes -
Other: (Specify) - Yes -
Total Developer Costs 7,026,223 7,026,223

          TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COSTS 64,587,091 53,867,713

          TOTAL COMMERCIAL COSTS - -

          TOTAL PROJECT AND BASIS COSTS 64,587,091 53,867,713

Adjustment for Excess Basis / Commercial&Retail -  
Additional Amount Excluded From Basis - Solar Equity
Requested Undadjusted Eligible Basis 53,867,713

130% DIFFICULT DEVELOPMENT FACTOR? Yes 70,028,027

Credit Reduction -  
Total Adjusted Qualified Basis 70,028,027

TX CREDITS @ % LI Eligible@ Tx Credit Rt 4.00%

TX CREDITS @ % LI Eligible 2,801,121

TX CREDITS OVER TEN YEARS 28,011,211

TX CREDIT EQ'Y@$/Credit@% Investment $0.8800 99.99% 24,647,401
 

Additional Amount Voluntarily Excluded From Basis-State Only -  
Requested Undadjusted Eligible Basis-State Only 53,867,713

State Tax Credits - 13% of Eligible Basis & Over 4 Yrs 30.00% 16,160,314
State Tax Credits Equity 0.9000$                          100.00% 14,544,283

Solar Credits - 22% of Eligible Basis 22.00% 1,265,431
Solar Equity -$                                100.00% -  
Solar Rebates -  
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Sources & Uses 2,200,000
Hillcrest Hall 99,268 1,598,306

Construction Period Construction Stabilization
Pre-Dev Close Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Quarter 5 Quarter 6 Quarter 7 Subtotal 6 Months Conversion 8609 Total

14.29% 14.29% 14.29% 14.29% 14.29% 14.29% 14.29% 21 Months
SOURCES OF FUNDS

1 Federal LIHTC Equity 6,161,850 - - - - - - - 6,161,850 - 17,869,365 616,185 24,647,401
2 State LIHTC Equity 3,636,071 - - - - - - - 3,636,071 - 10,544,605 363,607 14,544,283
3 Solar Equity - - - - - - - - - - - - -
4 Construction Loan - 6,716,315 5,267,075 4,851,214 5,433,991 5,020,883 5,606,460 6,017,088 38,913,027 1,245,068 (40,158,095) - -
5 Permanent Loan (Tranche A) - - - - - - - - - - 11,792,490 - 11,792,490
6 Permanent Loan (Tranche B) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
7 Deferred Developer Fee - - - - - - - - - - 5,427,917 - 5,427,917
8 GP Contribution of Developer Fee - - - - - - - - - - - - -
9 Seller Land Note - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10 CalHFA MIP - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11 MHP - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12 Joe Serna - - - - - - - - - - - - -
13 VHHP - - - - - - - - - - - - -
14 IIG - - - - - - - - - - - - -
15 Other HCD Source #1 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
16 City of San Diego BTH 3,175,000 - - - - - - - 3,175,000 - - - 3,175,000
17 San Diego Housing Commission 3,750,000 - - 500,000 - 500,000 - - 4,750,000 - 250,000 - 5,000,000
18 AHP - - - - - - - - - - - - -
19 Other Source #2 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
20 Residual Receipt Loans Accrued Interest - - - - - - - - - - - - -
21 Income from Operations - - - - - - - - - - - - -
22    Total Sources of Funds 16,722,921 6,716,315 5,267,075 5,351,214 5,433,991 5,520,883 5,606,460 6,017,088 56,635,948 1,245,068 5,726,283 979,792 64,587,091
23
24 Uses of Funds
25 LAND COST/ACQUISITION
26 Land Cost or Value $86,735/unit 8,500,000 - - - - - - - 8,500,000 - - - 8,500,000
27 Demolition - - - - - - - - - - - - -
28 Legal - - - - - - - - - - - - -
29 Land Lease Rent Prepayment - - - - - - - - - - - - -
30 Existing Improvements Cost or Value - - - - - - - - - - - - -
31 Off-Site Improvements - - - - - - - - - - - - -
32 Predevelopment Interest/Holding Cost - - - - - - - - - - - - -
33 Assumed, Accrued Interest on Existing Debt (Rehab/Acq) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
34 Excess Purchase Price Over Appraisal - - - - - - - - - - - - -
35 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
36 Total Land / Acquisition 8,500,000 - - - - - - - 8,500,000 - - - 8,500,000
37
53 NEW CONSTRUCTION
54 Off-Site Improvements - 389,469 - - - - - - 389,469 - - - 389,469
55 Site Work - 1,554,438 - - - - - - 1,554,438 - - - 1,554,438
56 Structures $ 249,176/unit - 3,488,461 3,488,461 3,488,461 3,488,461 3,488,461 3,488,461 3,488,461 24,419,229 - - - 24,419,229
57 General Requirements 6.0% - 391,131 251,169 251,169 251,169 251,169 251,169 251,169 1,898,146 - - - 1,898,146
58 Contractor Overhead 4.0% - 260,754 167,446 167,446 167,446 167,446 167,446 167,446 1,265,431 - - - 1,265,431
59 Contractor Profit 4.0% - 260,754 167,446 167,446 167,446 167,446 167,446 167,446 1,265,431 - - - 1,265,431
60 Prevailing Wages 20.0% - 1,086,474 697,692 697,692 697,692 697,692 697,692 697,692 5,272,627 - - - 5,272,627
61 General Liability Insurance 1.0% - 74,315 47,722 47,722 47,722 47,722 47,722 47,722 360,648 - - - 360,648
62 Urban Greening - - - - - - - - - - - - -
63 Bond Premium 0.90% - 66,883 42,950 42,950 42,950 42,950 42,950 42,950 324,583 - - - 324,583
64 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
65 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
66 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
67 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
68 Total New Construction $375,000/unit - 7,572,678 4,862,887 4,862,887 4,862,887 4,862,887 4,862,887 4,862,887 36,750,000 - - - 36,750,000
69
70 ARCHITECTURAL + SURVEY + ENGINEERING
71 Design / Supervision 3.0% 1,100,000 - - - - - - - 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000
72 Supervision - - - - - - - - - - - - -
73 Total Survey & Engineering 650,000 - - - - - - - 650,000 - - - 650,000
74 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
75 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
76 Total Architectural 1,750,000 - - - - - - - 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000
77
78 CONSTRUCTION PERIOD EXPENSES
79 Construction Loan Interest - 34,981 132,375 212,507 291,343 374,097 455,598 546,673 2,047,575 1,245,068 - - 3,292,643
80 Origination Fee 0.75% 301,186 - - - - - - - 301,186 - - - 301,186
81 Credit Enhancement/Application Fee 15,000 - - - - - - - 15,000 - - - 15,000
82 Other: Soft Loan Construction Interest 0.00% - - - - - - - - - - - - -
83 Cost of Issuance 0.1875% 75,296 - - - - - - - 75,296 - - - 75,296
84 Title & Recording 100,000 - - - - - - - 100,000 - - - 100,000
85 Taxes - 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 105,000 - - - 105,000
86 Insurance 1.50% 551,000 - - - - - - - 551,000 - - - 551,000
87 Employment Reporting 25,000 - - - - - - - 25,000 - - - 25,000
88 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
89 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
90 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
91 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
92 Total Construction Period Expense 1,067,482 49,981 147,375 227,507 306,343 389,097 470,598 561,673 3,220,057 1,245,068 - - 4,465,125
93
94 PERMANENT FINANCING EXPENSES
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Sources & Uses 2,200,000
Hillcrest Hall 99,268 1,598,306

Construction Period Construction Stabilization
Pre-Dev Close Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Quarter 5 Quarter 6 Quarter 7 Subtotal 6 Months Conversion 8609 Total

14.29% 14.29% 14.29% 14.29% 14.29% 14.29% 14.29% 21 Months
95 Loan Origination Fee 0.00% - - - - - - - - - - - - -
96 Credit Enhancement/Application Fee - - - - - - - - - - - - -
97 Title & Recording - - - - - - - - - - 10,000 - 10,000
98 Taxes - - - - - - - - - - - - -
99 Insurance - - - - - - - - - - - - -
100 Legal for Perm Loan - - - - - - - - - - 15,000 - 15,000
101 Other: MIP Loan Fee 1.00% - - - - - - - - - - - - -
102 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
103 Total Permanent Financing - - - - - - - - - - 25,000 - 25,000
104
105 LEGAL FEES
106 Legal Paid by Applicant 100,000 - - - - - - - 100,000 - - - 100,000
107 Lender Legal 75,000 - - - - - - - 75,000 - - - 75,000
108 Other: Investor Legal 50,000 - - - - - - - 50,000 - - - 50,000
109 Other: Bond Issuer Legal 50,000 - - - - - - - 50,000 - - - 50,000
110 Other: MGP Legal 50,000 - - - - - - - 50,000 - - - 50,000
111 Other: SDHC Legal Fees 27,500 - - - - - - - 27,500 - - - 27,500
112 Other: SDHC AM Fees 15,000 - - - - - - - 15,000 - - - 15,000
113 Total Legal Fees 367,500 - - - - - - - 367,500 - - - 367,500
114
115 CAPITALIZED RESERVES
116 Operating Reserve 3 months - - - - - - - - - - 404,852 - 404,852
117 Replacement Reserve - - - - - - - - - - - - -
118 Transition Reserve - - - - - - - - - - - - -
119 Lease-Up Reserve - - - - - - - - - - - - -
120 Other: Soft Loan Debt Service Reserve - - - - - - - - - - - - -
121 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
122 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
123 Total Reserves - - - - - - - - - - 404,852 - 404,852
124
125 CONTINGENCY COSTS
126 Construction Hard Cost Contingency 5.0% - 378,634 243,144 243,144 243,144 243,144 243,144 243,144 1,837,500 - - - 1,837,500
127 Soft Cost Contingency 5.0% 294,245 2,799 7,669 11,675 15,617 19,755 23,830 43,384 418,974 - - - 418,974
128 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
129 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
130 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
131 Total Contingency 294,245 381,433 250,813 254,820 258,761 262,899 266,974 286,528 2,256,474 - - - 2,256,474
132
133 OTHER
134 TCAC App/Allocation/Monitoring Fees 97,911 - - - - - - - 97,911 - - - 97,911
135 Environmental Audit 50,000 - - - - - - - 50,000 - - - 50,000
136 Local Development Impact Fees $ 10,000/unit 980,000 - - - - - - - 980,000 - - - 980,000
137 Permit Processing Fees $ 10,000/unit 980,000 - - - - - - - 980,000 - - - 980,000
138 Capital Fees - - - - - - - - - - - - -
139 Marketing - - - - - - - 150,000 150,000 - - - 150,000
140 Furnishings - - - - - - - 150,000 150,000 - - - 150,000
141 Market Study 10,000 - - - - - - - 10,000 - - - 10,000
142 Accounting/Reimbursable 50,000 - - - - - - - 50,000 - - - 50,000
143 Appraisal Costs 10,000 - - - - - - - 10,000 - - - 10,000
144 Construction Management - - - - - - - - - - - - -
145 Prevailing Wage Monitoring - 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 42,000 - - - 42,000
146 Other: Relocation Cost - - - - - - - - - - - - -
147 Other: Environmental Remediation - - - - - - - - - - - - -
148 Other: CDLAC Fee 0.035% 12,006 - - - - - - - 12,006 - - - 12,006
149 Other: Miscellaneous Third-Party Costs 250,000 - - - - - - - 250,000 - - - 250,000
150 Other: Predevelopment Loan Interest 200,000 - - - - - - - 200,000 - - - 200,000
151 Other: SDHC Underwriting Fee 60,000 - - - - - - - 60,000 - - - 60,000
152 Total Other Costs 2,699,917 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 306,000 3,041,917 - - - 3,041,917
153
154 DEVELOPER COSTS
155 Developer Overhead/Profit 750,000 - - - - - - - 750,000 - 5,296,431 979,792 7,026,223
156 Consultant/Processing Agent - - - - - - - - - - - - -
157 Project Administration - - - - - - - - - - - - -
158 Broker Fees Paid to a Related Party - - - - - - - - - - - - -
159 Construction Oversight by Developer - - - - - - - - - - - - -
160 Other: (Specify) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
161 Total Developer Costs 750,000 - - - - - - - 750,000 - 5,296,431 979,792 7,026,223
162
163
164 Total Uses of Funds 15,429,144 8,010,092 5,267,075 5,351,214 5,433,991 5,520,883 5,606,460 6,017,088 56,635,948 1,245,068 5,726,283 979,792 64,587,091
165 Net Source & Use 1,293,777 (1,293,777) - - - - - - - - - - -
166 Distributions -
167 Balance of Funds 1,293,777 - - - - - - - - - - - -
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OPERATIONAL CASH FLOW
Hillcrest Hall

% of Available 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038
Cash Flow Rate Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11

2.50% Gross Revenue 1,832,678 1,878,495 1,925,457 1,973,593 2,022,933 2,073,507 2,125,344 2,178,478 2,232,940 2,288,763 2,345,982
5.00% Vacancy (91,634) (93,925) (96,273) (98,680) (101,147) (103,675) (106,267) (108,924) (111,647) (114,438) (117,299)

Net Revenue 1,741,044 1,784,570 1,829,184 1,874,914 1,921,787 1,969,831 2,019,077 2,069,554 2,121,293 2,174,325 2,228,683
Net Commercial Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3.50% Operating Expenses 735,000 760,725 787,350 814,908 843,429 872,949 903,503 935,125 967,855 1,001,730 1,036,790
Net Operating Income 1,006,044 1,023,845 1,041,834 1,060,006 1,078,357 1,096,882 1,115,574 1,134,429 1,153,438 1,172,596 1,191,893

0.00% Replacement Reserves 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500
3.50% Services 49,000 50,715 52,490 54,327 56,229 58,197 60,234 62,342 64,524 66,782 69,119

Cash Available to Debt Service 932,544 948,630 964,844 981,179 997,628 1,014,185 1,030,841 1,047,587 1,064,414 1,081,314 1,098,274

6.25% Principal and Interest (Tranche A) 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408
Issuer and Monitoring Fee 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500

0.42% MHP Mandatory Soft Loan Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0.42% FWHG Mandatory Soft Loan Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0.42% VHHP Mandatory Soft Loan Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Project Cash Flow 121,636 137,722 153,936 170,271 186,721 203,278 219,933 236,679 253,507 270,406 287,366
DSCR 1.15x 1.17x 1.19x 1.21x 1.23x 1.25x 1.27x 1.29x 1.31x 1.33x 1.35x

3.50% LP Fee 5,000 5,175 5,356 5,544 5,738 5,938 6,146 6,361 6,584 6,814 7,053
36,878 3.50% Managing GP Fee 10,800 11,178 11,569 11,974 12,393 12,827 13,276 13,741 14,222 14,719 15,234

3.00% Administrative GP Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cash Available After GP/LP Fees 105,836 121,369 137,011 152,754 168,590 184,512 200,511 216,577 232,701 248,872 265,079

100.00% 0.00% Deferred Developer Fee 105,836 121,369 137,011 152,754 168,590 184,512 200,511 216,577 232,701 248,872 265,079
Cash Available After Deferred Fee Payment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0.00% 3.00% VHHP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0.00% 3.00% City of San Diego BTH 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
19.42% 3.00% San Diego Housing Commission 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
30.58% 0.00% Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0.00% 0.00% Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cash Flow Available After Soft Loan Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

90.00% Partnership Admin Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cash Flow Available after Partnership Admin Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

99.99% LP Distribution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0.01% GP Distribution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Remaining Cash Flow After Partnership Distribution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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OPERATIONAL CASH FLOW
Hillcrest Hall

% of Available
Cash Flow Rate

2.50% Gross Revenue
5.00% Vacancy

Net Revenue
Net Commercia  

3.50% Operating Expe
Net Operating 

0.00% Replacement R
3.50% Services

Cash Available   

6.25% Principal and In   
Issuer and Mon  

0.42% MHP Mandatory   
0.42% FWHG Mandato    
0.42% VHHP Mandato    

Net Project Ca  
DSCR

3.50% LP Fee
36,878 3.50% Managing GP F

3.00% Administrative G  
Cash Available   

100.00% 0.00% Deferred Develo   
Cash Available    

0.00% 3.00% VHHP
0.00% 3.00% City of San Dieg  
19.42% 3.00% San Diego Hous  
30.58% 0.00% Miscellaneous
0.00% 0.00% Miscellaneous

Cash Flow Ava      

90.00% Partnership Adm  
Cash Flow Ava     

99.99% LP Distribution
0.01% GP Distribution

Remaining Cas     

2039 2040 2041 2042 2043
Year 12 Year 13 Year 14 Year 15 Year 16 Year 17 Year 18 Year 19 Year 20 Year 21 Year 22 Year 23 Year 24 Year 25 Year 26 Year 27

2,404,632 2,464,748 2,526,366 2,589,526 2,654,264 2,720,620 2,788,636 2,858,352 2,929,810 3,003,056 3,078,132 3,155,085 3,233,963 3,314,812 3,397,682 3,482,624
(120,232) (123,237) (126,318) (129,476) (132,713) (136,031) (139,432) (142,918) (146,491) (150,153) (153,907) (157,754) (161,698) (165,741) (169,884) (174,131)
2,284,400 2,341,510 2,400,048 2,460,049 2,521,550 2,584,589 2,649,204 2,715,434 2,783,320 2,852,903 2,924,225 2,997,331 3,072,264 3,149,071 3,227,798 3,308,493

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1,073,078 1,110,635 1,149,508 1,189,740 1,231,381 1,274,480 1,319,087 1,365,255 1,413,038 1,462,495 1,513,682 1,566,661 1,621,494 1,678,246 1,736,985 1,797,780
1,211,323 1,230,875 1,250,540 1,270,309 1,290,169 1,310,109 1,330,117 1,350,179 1,370,281 1,390,408 1,410,543 1,430,670 1,450,770 1,470,825 1,490,813 1,510,713

24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500
71,539 74,042 76,634 79,316 82,092 84,965 87,939 91,017 94,203 97,500 100,912 104,444 108,100 111,883 115,799 119,852

1,115,284 1,132,332 1,149,406 1,166,493 1,183,577 1,200,644 1,217,678 1,234,663 1,251,579 1,268,408 1,285,131 1,301,726 1,318,171 1,334,441 1,350,514 1,366,361

803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408
7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

304,376 321,425 338,499 355,585 372,669 389,737 406,771 423,755 440,671 457,501 474,224 490,818 507,263 523,534 539,606 555,454
1.38x 1.40x 1.42x 1.44x 1.46x 1.48x 1.50x 1.52x 1.54x 1.56x 1.58x 1.61x 1.63x 1.65x 1.67x 1.68x

7,300 7,555 7,820 8,093
15,768 16,320 16,891 17,482 18,094 18,727 19,382 20,061 20,763 21,490 22,242 23,020 23,826 24,660 25,523 26,416

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
281,309 297,550 313,788 330,010 354,576 371,010 387,388 403,694 419,908 436,011 451,982 467,798 483,437 498,874 514,083 529,037

281,309 297,550 313,788 330,010 354,576 371,010 387,388 403,694 419,908 234,872 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 201,139 451,982 467,798 483,437 498,874 514,083 529,037

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 39,059 87,770 90,842 93,878 96,876 99,830 102,734
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 162,080 364,212 376,957 389,559 401,998 414,253 426,304

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 145,872 327,790 339,261 350,603 361,798 372,828 383,673
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16,208 36,421 37,696 38,956 40,200 41,425 42,630

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16,206 36,418 37,692 38,952 40,196 41,421 42,626
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 4 4 4 4 4 4
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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OPERATIONAL CASH FLOW
Hillcrest Hall

% of Available
Cash Flow Rate

2.50% Gross Revenue
5.00% Vacancy

Net Revenue
Net Commercia  

3.50% Operating Expe
Net Operating 

0.00% Replacement R
3.50% Services

Cash Available   

6.25% Principal and In   
Issuer and Mon  

0.42% MHP Mandatory   
0.42% FWHG Mandato    
0.42% VHHP Mandato    

Net Project Ca  
DSCR

3.50% LP Fee
36,878 3.50% Managing GP F

3.00% Administrative G  
Cash Available   

100.00% 0.00% Deferred Develo   
Cash Available    

0.00% 3.00% VHHP
0.00% 3.00% City of San Dieg  
19.42% 3.00% San Diego Hous  
30.58% 0.00% Miscellaneous
0.00% 0.00% Miscellaneous

Cash Flow Ava      

90.00% Partnership Adm  
Cash Flow Ava     

99.99% LP Distribution
0.01% GP Distribution

Remaining Cas     

Year 28 Year 29 Year 30 Year 31 Year 32 Year 33 Year 34 Year 35 Year 36 Year 37 Year 38 Year 39 Year 40 Year 41 Year 42 Year 43

3,569,690 3,658,932 3,750,405 3,844,165 3,940,269 4,038,776 4,139,745 4,243,239 4,349,320 4,458,053 4,569,504 4,683,742 4,800,836 4,920,856 5,043,878 5,169,975
(178,484) (182,947) (187,520) (192,208) (197,013) (201,939) (206,987) (212,162) (217,466) (222,903) (228,475) (234,187) (240,042) (246,043) (252,194) (258,499)
3,391,205 3,475,985 3,562,885 3,651,957 3,743,256 3,836,837 3,932,758 4,031,077 4,131,854 4,235,150 4,341,029 4,449,555 4,560,794 4,674,814 4,791,684 4,911,476

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1,860,702 1,925,826 1,993,230 2,062,993 2,135,198 2,209,930 2,287,278 2,367,332 2,450,189 2,535,946 2,624,704 2,716,568 2,811,648 2,910,056 3,011,908 3,117,325
1,530,503 1,550,159 1,569,654 1,588,964 1,608,058 1,626,907 1,645,481 1,663,745 1,681,665 1,699,205 1,716,325 1,732,987 1,749,146 1,764,758 1,779,776 1,794,151

24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500
124,047 128,388 132,882 137,533 142,347 147,329 152,485 157,822 163,346 169,063 174,980 181,105 187,443 194,004 200,794 207,822

1,381,956 1,397,270 1,412,272 1,426,931 1,441,211 1,455,078 1,468,495 1,481,423 1,493,819 1,505,642 1,516,845 1,527,382 1,537,202 1,546,254 1,554,482 1,561,830

803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 803,408 0 0 0
7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

571,049 586,363 601,365 616,023 630,304 644,171 657,588 670,515 682,912 694,734 705,938 716,474 726,295 1,538,754 1,546,982 1,554,330
1.70x 1.72x 1.74x 1.76x 1.78x 1.79x 1.81x 1.83x 1.84x 1.86x 1.87x 1.88x 1.90x 206.17x 207.26x 208.24x

27,341 28,298 29,288 30,313 31,374 32,472 33,609 34,785 36,003 37,263 38,567 39,917 41,314 42,760 44,257 45,806
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

543,708 558,065 572,077 585,710 598,929 611,698 623,979 635,730 646,909 657,471 667,371 676,557 684,981 1,495,994 1,502,726 1,508,524

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
543,708 558,065 572,077 585,710 598,929 611,698 623,979 635,730 646,909 657,471 667,371 676,557 684,981 1,495,994 1,502,726 1,508,524

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

105,582 108,370 111,091 113,739 116,306 118,785 121,170 123,452 125,623 127,674 129,596 131,380 133,016 290,506 291,814 292,940
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

438,125 449,694 460,985 471,971 482,623 492,913 502,809 512,278 521,286 529,797 537,774 545,177 551,965 1,205,487 1,210,912 1,215,584

394,313 404,725 414,887 424,774 434,361 443,622 452,528 461,050 469,157 476,817 483,997 490,659 496,768 1,084,939 1,089,821 1,094,026
43,813 44,969 46,099 47,197 48,262 49,291 50,281 51,228 52,129 52,980 53,777 54,518 55,196 120,549 121,091 121,558

43,808 44,965 46,094 47,192 48,258 49,286 50,276 51,223 52,123 52,974 53,772 54,512 55,191 120,537 121,079 121,546
4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 12 12 12
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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OPERATIONAL CASH FLOW
Hillcrest Hall

% of Available
Cash Flow Rate

2.50% Gross Revenue
5.00% Vacancy

Net Revenue
Net Commercia  

3.50% Operating Expe
Net Operating 

0.00% Replacement R
3.50% Services

Cash Available   

6.25% Principal and In   
Issuer and Mon  

0.42% MHP Mandatory   
0.42% FWHG Mandato    
0.42% VHHP Mandato    

Net Project Ca  
DSCR

3.50% LP Fee
36,878 3.50% Managing GP F

3.00% Administrative G  
Cash Available   

100.00% 0.00% Deferred Develo   
Cash Available    

0.00% 3.00% VHHP
0.00% 3.00% City of San Dieg  
19.42% 3.00% San Diego Hous  
30.58% 0.00% Miscellaneous
0.00% 0.00% Miscellaneous

Cash Flow Ava      

90.00% Partnership Adm  
Cash Flow Ava     

99.99% LP Distribution
0.01% GP Distribution

Remaining Cas     

Year 44 Year 45 Year 46 Year 47 Year 48 Year 49 Year 50 Year 51 Year 52 Year 53 Year 54 Year 55 Totals

5,299,224 5,431,705 5,567,497 5,706,685 5,849,352 5,995,586 6,145,475 6,299,112 6,456,590 6,618,005 6,783,455 6,953,041 211,767,588
(264,961) (271,585) (278,375) (285,334) (292,468) (299,779) (307,274) (314,956) (322,830) (330,900) (339,173) (347,652) (10,588,379)
5,034,263 5,160,120 5,289,123 5,421,351 5,556,884 5,695,806 5,838,202 5,984,157 6,133,761 6,287,105 6,444,282 6,605,389 201,179,209

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3,226,431 3,339,356 3,456,234 3,577,202 3,702,404 3,831,988 3,966,107 4,104,921 4,248,593 4,397,294 4,551,200 4,710,492 118,295,964
1,807,832 1,820,763 1,832,889 1,844,149 1,854,481 1,863,819 1,872,094 1,879,235 1,885,167 1,889,810 1,893,083 1,894,898 82,883,245

24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 24,500 1,347,500
215,095 222,624 230,416 238,480 246,827 255,466 264,407 273,661 283,240 293,153 303,413 314,033 7,886,398

1,568,237 1,573,640 1,577,973 1,581,169 1,583,154 1,583,853 1,583,187 1,581,074 1,577,428 1,572,157 1,565,169 1,556,365 73,649,347

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32,136,304
7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 412,500

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1,560,737 1,566,140 1,570,473 1,573,669 1,575,654 1,576,353 1,575,687 1,573,574 1,569,928 1,564,657 1,557,669 1,548,865 41,100,543
209.10x 209.82x 210.40x 210.82x 211.09x 211.18x 211.09x 210.81x 210.32x 209.62x 208.69x 207.52x

96,478
47,409 49,068 50,785 52,563 54,403 56,307 58,277 60,317 62,428 64,613 66,875 69,215 1,738,226

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1,513,328 1,517,072 1,519,688 1,521,106 1,521,251 1,520,046 1,517,409 1,513,257 1,507,499 1,500,044 1,490,795 1,479,650 39,265,838

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,427,917
1,513,328 1,517,072 1,519,688 1,521,106 1,521,251 1,520,046 1,517,409 1,513,257 1,507,499 1,500,044 1,490,795 1,479,650 33,837,921

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

293,873 294,600 295,108 295,383 295,411 295,177 178,414 0 0 0 0 0 5,000,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1,219,455 1,222,472 1,224,580 1,225,723 1,225,840 1,224,869 1,338,995 1,513,257 1,507,499 1,500,044 1,490,795 1,479,650 28,837,921

1,097,510 1,100,225 1,102,122 1,103,151 1,103,256 1,102,382 1,205,096 1,361,931 1,356,749 1,350,040 1,341,715 1,331,685 25,954,129
121,946 122,247 122,458 122,572 122,584 122,487 133,900 151,326 150,750 150,004 149,079 147,965 2,883,792

121,933 122,235 122,446 122,560 122,572 122,475 133,886 151,311 150,735 149,989 149,065 147,950 2,883,504
12 12 12 12 12 12 13 15 15 15 15 15 288
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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ATTACHMENT 5 

PROPOSED LOAN NON-BINDING COMMITMENT TERMS SUMMARY 
Hillcrest Hall LP 

1601 University Avenue, San Diego, CA 92103 (Project) 
May 13, 2024 

 
The San Diego Housing Commission (“Housing Commission”) is pleased to submit this non-binding 
commitment terms summary. This commitment terms summary is not a binding contract and is 
subject to the approval by the San Diego Housing Commission Board of Commissioners (“Board of 
Commissioners”) and, if necessary, the Housing Authority of the City of San Diego. The purpose of 
this commitment terms summary is to set forth the general terms and conditions under which the 
Housing Commission is interested in making a loan (“Housing Commission Loan”) to Hillcrest Hall 
LP, a California limited partnership, formed by CRP Affordable Housing and Community 
Development LLC (CRP) (the “Borrower”) for the Hillcrest Hall (“Project”) with respect to the 
proposed acquisition and construction and the permanent financing of a 98-unit development (with 
97 affordable units and one unrestricted manager’s unit) located at 1601 University Avenue in the 
City of San Diego. Closing must occur within twenty-four (24) months from the date of the San Diego 
Housing Commission’s NOFA Award Letter unless an extension is/has been granted by the President 
& CEO of the Housing Commission (or by their designee) in their sole discretion. 
 
In the event of a conflict between any term or provision (or absence of any term or provision) of this 
commitment terms summary and any term or provision of any approval of any applicable board or 
governing body, the term or provision of such board or governing body shall apply and shall prevail. 
Provided that the Housing Commission loan is approved by the San Diego Housing Commission 
Board of Commissioners and, if necessary, by the Housing Authority of the City of San Diego, the 
following terms shall apply to the Housing Commission loan. In addition, Exhibit A includes the 
Borrower's Pro forma which models financial Projections of the Project. 
 
The terms of the Housing Commission’s proposed financing shall be as follows: 
 

1. Maximum loan amount (not to exceed) - Up to $5,000,000 as a residual receipts loan. 
Loan funds to be used for the acquisition, construction and permanent financing of the 
Project. 

 
2. Interest Rate- 4 percent simple interest. 

 
3. Loan Term - The loan will be due and payable in full in 55 years from completion of 

the Project. 
 

4. Loan Payments –Annual residual receipts payments at 50 percent of the Project's 
residual cash flow is required. In addition to the 50 percent residual cash payment the 
Borrower shall also pay a fixed $10,000 annual payment to the Housing Commission. 
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Provided, however, if the Housing Commission approves other lenders whose loans will 
be paid from residual receipts, then the Housing Commission and such other approved 
lenders shall share the 50 percent of the Project's residual receipts, in proportion to the 
original principal balances of their respective loans. Residual payments and the fixed 
$10,000 annual payment will begin on May 1 in the year immediately following the 
calendar year in which construction is completed. The Housing Commission defines 
residual receipts as the net cash flow of the development after specified expenses and 
other debt service are paid. The following items, in addition to other operating expenses, 
shall be payable by the Borrower prior to the calculation of residual receipts:  

 
(i) The year 1 "Limited Partnership Fees" shall be capped at $25,000 per year. 

"Limited Partnership Fees" shall be defined to include any and all partnership 
related fees including but not limited to: Investor Partnership fees, Asset 
Management fees, Other Limited Partnership oversight fees, and General Partner 
Fees. Partnership fee increases will be capped at three (3) percent annually. 
Unpaid partnership fees shall not accrue and the Housing Commission will 
require the Limited Partnership Agreement to explicitly state that requirement. 

(ii) Eligible deferred developer fee, and  
(iii) Repayment of eligible development deficit and operating deficit loans. 

 
5. Affordability- 

(i) Restricted units must remain affordable for 55 years. At escrow closing the 
Borrower and the Housing Commission shall cause a Declaration of Covenants, 
Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&R), restricting the rent and occupancy of the 
affordable units for 55years, to be recorded against the Project. Such CC&R shall 
be in a form and format acceptable to the Housing Commission and its General 
Counsel in their sole discretions. 

(ii) The affordability shall be as follows: 
 

Unit Type AMI Affordable Units 
One-Bedroom 30% 11 
One-Bedroom 50% 4 
One-Bedroom 60% 20 
Two-Bedroom 30% 10 
Two-Bedroom 50% 3 
Two-Bedroom 60% 15 
Three-Bedroom 30% 10 
Three-Bedroom 50% 4 
Three-Bedroom 60% 20 
Manager Unit -- 1 

TOTAL  98 
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6.  Purchase Option – The Borrower will provide the Housing Commission with the option 
to purchase the property’s leasehold at the end of the 15-year tax credit compliance 
period. 
 

7. Alternate Funding- Borrower shall also seek alternative funding, including but not 
limited to the State of California Department of Housing and Community Development, 
County of San Diego, Federal Home Loan Bank, etc. along with tax exempt bonds and 
4% tax credits or 9% tax credits, Housing Commission legal counsel will determine if 
subsequent approvals for alternative financing structures are required by the San Diego 
Housing Commission Board of Commissioners and the Housing Authority of the City of 
San Diego. 

 
8. Site Value – An appraisal of the subject site with an effective date of April 8, 2023, 

valued the property at $8,500,000, which ties to the Purchase and Sale agreement. The 
appraisal was obtained by the developer and was conducted by Novogradac. An updated 
appraisal will be obtained in accordance with CDLAC’s regulations and will be provided 
to the Housing Commission prior to final bond authorization. 

 
9. Closing Costs - The Borrower shall pay all escrow, title and closing costs, including, 

without limitation, paying for an American Land Title Association (ALTA) Lenders 
Policy for the Housing Commission loan with endorsements, as acceptable to the 
Housing Commission’s legal counsel. 

 
10. Construction Costs Third-Party Review - Prior to Housing Commission Loan closing, 

a costs review may be obtained by the Housing Commission with a third-party consultant. 
If obtained, Borrower will reimburse the Housing Commission at escrow closing for all 
reasonable third-party- review costs. 

 
11. Contractor - The construction contract shall be competitively bid to at least three 

qualified General Contractors and shall be awarded to the lowest qualified and 
responsive bidder. 
a. Borrower will submit copies of three qualified bids received from subcontractors for 

each trade. 
b. Construction Agreement - Borrower shall submit the proposed Construction 

Agreement to the Housing Commission for its review and prior approval. The 
Housing Commission shall have a minimum of two weeks for its review of the 
proposed Construction agreement. 

c. Subcontractors – the Borrower shall require the General Contractor to solicit and 
obtain competitive bids from at least three qualified subcontractors for each major 
trade involved in the construction of the Project.  Those bids will be reviewed and 
approved by the Borrower.  The Borrower and General Contractor shall submit the 
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subcontractors’ competitive bids to the Housing Commission for prior review and 
reasonable approval. 

d. Change orders at or in excess of $100,000 shall have Housing Commission prior 
written approval.  For proposed change orders over $100,000, the Borrower and 
General Contractor shall submit to the Housing Commission a detailed explanation 
of why the change order work is necessary, why the issue was not included in the 
original scope of work, and why the change is not being charged against the General 
Contractor’s contingency.  

e. Agreement Changes - a Construction Agreement with a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
(GMP) may not be revised to a Lump Sum or other form of Construction Agreement 
without the prior written approval of the Housing Commission. 

f. Insurance - prior to close of escrow, evidence of the General Contractor’s insurance 
acceptable to the Housing Commission’s legal counsel shall be provided. The 
Housing Commission, the Housing Authority of the City of San Diego, and the City 
of San Diego, shall be named as additional insureds on the General Contractor’s 
insurance policies. 

 
12. Tax Credit Equity - Borrower will provide the Letter of Intent with equity pricing 

from the low-income housing tax credit (LIHTC) investor within 90 days of closing. 
 

13. First Mortgage - Borrower will provide the term sheet from the first mortgage provider 
that was used at time of application as well as an update within 90 days of closing. 

 
14. Cost Certification - The Borrower shall submit the final tax credit cost certification to 

the Housing Commission for its review and approval before the cost certification is 
completed/finalized. 

 
15. Cost Savings and/or Additional Proceeds at Escrow Closing - In the event that the 

Borrower obtains funds in excess of those shown as sources in Exhibit A Pro Forma, then 
upon the construction loan closing, the excess funds shall be used as follows: 
a. First, such excess funds shall be used to fund development cost overruns reasonably 

approved by the Housing Commission.   
b. Second, upon Construction Loan Closing and subject to lender and investor approval, 

any excess funds shall be used to pay the Housing Commission Loan as set forth in 
Section 16 below. 

c. Other Public Lenders - If the Project financing includes other public lenders who may 
require cost savings sharing then the cost savings shall be split proportionately based 
upon the public lenders loan amounts and in conformance with the other public 
lenders’ agreements. 

d. Excess funds will be applied first to pay down the accrued interest, and the remaining 
amount shall pay down the principal.  
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16. Cost Savings and/or Additional Proceeds at Conversion to Permanent Financing - 

In the event that the Borrower obtains funds in excess of those shown as sources in 
Exhibit A Pro Forma, (including but not limited to cost savings, improved  debt, 
improved tax credit equity pricing, deferred developer fee if any, and any other sources), 
then upon conversion to permanent loan, the excess funds shall be used as follows: 

a. First, to pay for development cost overruns reasonably approved by the Housing 
Commission.  

b. Second, used to make any necessary adjustment to the total tax credit allocation as 
may be required by CTCAC.  

c. Third, payment towards the Borrower’s deferred developer fee.  A deferred developer 
fee is currently modeled in the Pro Forma (Attachment A).  

d. Fourth, excess funds shall be shared fifty percent (50%) to the Borrower and the other 
fifty percent (50%) will be paid to the Housing Commission and other soft lenders in 
proportion to the original principal balance of their loans.   

e. Excess funds will be applied first to pay down the accrued interest, and the remaining 
amount shall pay down the principal. 

 
17. Developer Fee- 

The total Developer Fee will be $7,026,223.  $1,598,306 of the Developer Fee shall be 
paid in cash incrementally from development sources in accordance with lender and 
investor requirements.  The remaining $5,427,917 shall be Deferred Developer Fee treated 
as an expense for purposes of calculating residual receipts. 
 
The Deferred Developer Fee shall be repaid during the 15-year tax credit compliance 
period. Amounts outstanding after the expiration of the 15-year tax credit compliance 
period shall be contributed to the Project in the form of a capital contribution. 

 
18. Due Diligence - The Borrower, at Borrower’s expense, shall provide the following: a 

current appraisal, an environmental review, a lead paint and asbestos review. 
  

19. Environmental Requirements - Currently HOME funds are planned for this Project. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Letter, the parties agree and acknowledge that this 
Letter constitutes a conditional reservation and does not represent a final commitment 
of HOME funds or site approval under 24 CFR Part 58 of the National Environmental 
Policy Act (NEPA). HOME funds constitute a portion of the funding for the Project, and 
a final reservation of HOME funds shall occur only upon satisfactory completion of 
environmental review and receipt by the City of San Diego of a Release of Funds from 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development under 24 CFR Part 58 of 
NEPA.  

 
The parties agree that the provision of any HOME funds to the Project will be 
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conditioned on the City of San Diego’s determination to proceed with, modify or cancel 
the Project based on the results of subsequent environmental review under NEPA. By 
execution of this Letter, you acknowledge no legal claim to any amount of HOME funds 
to be used for the Project or site unless and until the site has received environmental 
clearance under NEPA. You are also prohibited from undertaking or committing any 
funds to physical or choice-limiting actions, including property acquisition, demolition, 
movement, clearance, rehabilitation, conversion, repair or construction prior to 
environmental clearance under NEPA. Violation of this provision may result in denial 
of any HOME funds for this Project. 

 
20. Fees/Payments to Housing Commission - Borrower will pay to the Housing 

Commission: 
a) Underwriting Fee - a flat underwriting fee in the amount of $60,000 will be charged 

as reimbursement of Housing Commission costs related to underwriting and issuing 
the loan. This must be included in the total development cost of the Project and is to 
be paid at close of escrow. 

b) Legal Fee - the Housing Commission charges a legal costs fee for document 
preparation and review that must be included in the total development cost. Current 
Housing Commission legal fees are $25,000 and are to be paid at the close of escrow. 

c) Compliance Affordability Monitoring Fee - compliance monitoring fees must be 
incorporated into the operating proforma. Borrower will pay the fee in accordance 
with the then-existing Housing Commission fee schedule.  Current annual 
affordability monitoring are as follows:  $157.50 X (98 units) to be affordability 
monitored = $15,435 per year.  Additional training and assistance is currently at $100 
per hour. 

d) Asset Management Fee- the Housing Commission charges a 15-year capitalized 
asset management fee of $15,000 and is paid at close of escrow. 

e) Third-Party Construction Review - the Housing Commission may require a third-party 
review of the construction costs/budget to determine the reasonableness of construction 
costs. The third-party reviewer will be selected by the Housing Commission and paid for 
by the borrower. Current fees are an estimated $12,500 paid by the developer at close of 
escrow.  

f) Environmental Noticing Fee - publishing/filing costs will be determined and paid at 
close of escrow.  
 

21. Fees for Asset Management (amounts not to exceed)- 
a. As detailed in paragraph 4 (above), the year 1 “Limited Partnership Fees” shall be 

capped at $25,000 per year and shall not increase more than 3.0% annually.  “Limited 
Partnership Fees” include Asset management fees related to the investor and general 
partner’s management of the Project.   

b. Unpaid General Partner fees shall not accrue. The Housing Commission will require 
the Limited Partnership Agreement to explicitly state this requirement. 
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c. Any changes to the asset management partnership fees will require the prior written 
approval of the Housing Commission’s President and CEO or their designee. 

 
22. Financing Gap - The Borrower will cover any financing gap that arises after Housing 

Commission underwriting, with its equity, its developer fee, and/or other non-Housing 
Commission sources, all of which shall be subject to the approval of the Housing 
Commission in its sole discretion and will not be unreasonably withheld.  No additional 
Housing Commission funds, beyond this Letter of Intent’s $5,000,000, will be provided 
for the Project in any Housing Commission’s future Notices of Funds Available. 

 
23. Funding Sources - The Housing Commission may fund the Housing Commission Loan 

from various sources including local, State, and/or federal funds including HOME 
Investment Partnership Program funds. The Housing Commission reserves the right to 
allocate available program funds in the best interest of the Housing Commission. In the 
event the Housing Commission ultimately determines to fund (all or part) of the Housing 
Commission Loan using any HOME funds, then Borrower shall comply with the HOME 
programs rules and regulations, Federal Davis Bacon law and Section 3. 

 
24. HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) Funds - 

HOME funds are currently planned to partly fund the Commission Loan. In the event the 
Housing Commission funds all or part of the Housing Commission Loan using any 
HOME funds, then: 
a. HOME program regulations will be applicable. 
b. HOME funds may not be used to fund any of the following: 

i) Any reserves are not eligible for HOME funds (including but not limited to operating 
reserves). 

ii) Offsite improvements are not eligible for funding with HOME funds. 
iii) Furnishings costs are not eligible for funding with HOME funds. 
iv) Commercial space improvements are not eligible for funding with HOME funds. 

c. The HOME IDIS funding system requires at least one HOME draw in a 12-month 
period and at least a small portion of the HOME funds must remain in the IDIS system 
until the Project is ready for occupancy. 

 
25. Insurance - Borrower shall at all times during the term of the Housing Commission Loan 

maintain General Liability and Property Insurance (fire and extended coverage), workers 
compensation, builder’s completed value risk insurance against “all risks of physical 
loss” (during construction) and, if required by the Housing Commission, flood and 
earthquake insurance, in forms acceptable to the Housing Commission and approved by 
the Housing Commission’s General Counsel. The San Diego Housing Commission, the 
Housing Authority of the City of San Diego, and the City of San Diego shall be listed as 
additional insureds for General Liability Insurance and in the General Contractor’s 
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Insurance policy and as loss payees for Property Insurance.  Evidence of borrower’s 
insurance coverage shall be provided to the Housing Commission prior to close of 
escrow. 

 
26. Loan Disbursement Schedule - Upon submittal and approval of eligible costs, the 

Housing Commission Loan (up to $5,000,000) will be disbursed as follows: 
• Up to 75 percent ($3,750,000) at escrow closing. 
• Up to 10 percent ($500,000) to be distributed at 50 percent construction 

completion, 
• Up to 10 percent ($500,000) to be withheld until the issuance of a Certificate of 

Occupancy and all unconditional lien releases are forwarded to the Housing 
Commission. 

• Up to 5 percent ($250,000) upon conversion to permanent financing. 
a. The Housing Commission’s President and Chief Executive Officer, or their designee, 

is authorized to modify the Housing Commission Loan disbursement schedule in 
their sole reasonable discretion. 

b. In the event the Housing Commission funds (all or part) of the Housing Commission 
Loan using HOME funds, then a portion of the HOME funds shall be withheld until 
final inspection approval and all unconditional lien releases are forwarded to the 
Housing Commission. 

c. Housing Commission Loan proceeds shall be disbursed for work completed upon 
Housing Commission approval of payment requests in a form approved by the 
Housing Commission. Verifiable documentation of expenses must be submitted with 
all payment requests. 

 
27. Management of the Development - 

a. Management Plan - Prior to occupancy the Borrower shall submit a Management Plan 
to the Housing Commission for its review and approval. The Management Plan shall 
be subject to initial and periodic approval by the Housing Commission, at its reasonable 
discretion. 

b. Approval of Management Fee - The Borrower’s proposed property manager’s fee must 
be approved by the Housing Commission. 

c. The Housing Commission reserves the right to declare Borrower in default of the loan 
agreement after an uncured ninety (90) day written notice of malfeasance and/or 
misfeasance in management of the Project. 

d. Manager’s Units - Experienced on-site management is required. There shall be one 
manager's unit. 

e. Marketing Plan – In the event the Housing Commission funds (all or part) of the Housing 
Commission Loan using HOME funds, then to ensure compliance with HOME regulations 
and with federal fair housing requirements prior to occupancy, the Borrower shall submit 
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a proposed marketing plan for review and approval by the Housing Commission’s Civil 
Rights Analyst in the Procurement and Compliance Division. 

 
28. Maximum Resident Service Expenses & Case Management – For the calculation of 

Housing Commission’s residual receipts the attached pro forma’s operating expense budget 
models an annual $49,000 Social Services Expenditure with a 3.5 percent annual escalator. 
Increasing this amount will require prior Housing Commission written approval. 
 

29. Annual Budget Submittal - Three months prior to the end of each calendar year, the 
Borrower shall submit an annual budget for Housing Commission review and prior 
approval. 

 
30. Project Based Vouchers- This Project will not receive Federal Project Based 

Vouchers (PBV) from the Housing Commission.  
 

31. Prevailing Wage – It is anticipated that the Project will be subject to payment of State 
prevailing wages due to other funding sources.  Should the project’s proposed use of 
federal HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) funds exceed the 11-unit 
federal threshold limit, federal prevailing wages shall also apply. In such case, the greater 
of federal or state prevailing wages will be applicable. 
 

32. Recourse - The Housing Commission Loan will be recourse until the timely completion 
of the construction, after which it will become non-recourse. 

 
33. Reserves: Replacement reserves and operating reserves must be consistent with lender 

and equity investor requirements. The Housing Commission reserves the right to require 
higher operating or replacement reserves. 
a. Replacement Reserve -The attached proforma models an annual replacement 

reserve at $24,500 ($250 per unit per year). 
b. Operating Reserve - The attached proforma models a 3-month capitalized operating 

reserve at $404,852 at conversion to permanent financing.  The operating reserve is 
to be maintained for the entire term of the Housing Commission Loan.  

c. Disbursements from Reserves: Housing Commission prior written approval shall be 
required for any and all disbursements from either the Project’s operating reserve 
funds and/or from the Project’s replacement reserve funds. 
 

34. Section 3 - In the event the Housing Commission funds (all or part) of the Housing 
Commission Loan using any HOME funds, then Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 will 
be applicable and Borrower should be familiar with, and remain in compliance with, all 
Section 3 requirements. 
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35. Security -The Housing Commission Loan will be secured by a Declaration of 

Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&R) and a Deed of Trust which will be 
senior to the deeds of trust and security instruments securing all other sources of funds 
secured by the Property, except that the Housing Commission’s CC&R and Deed of 
Trust shall be subordinated to: 
a) The deed of trust and security instruments securing the construction and permanent 

loan. 
b) Lien position - The lien positions will be approved by the Housing Commission’s 

President and CEO and the Housing Commission’s General Counsel. It is intended 
that the lien positions will be in conformance with the public lenders’ program 
requirements, and the requirements of private lenders which may require Housing 
Commission subordination. 

c) Cure Rights - The Housing Commission shall have the right, but not the obligation, to 
cure all senior encumbrances in all subordinating agreements that it executes. All 
subordination agreements shall be subject to the sole approval of the Housing 
Commission’s President and Chief Executive Officer and General Counsel. 
 

36. Tenant Service Delivery Plan - Borrower shall submit a draft tenant service 
delivery plan 90-days prior to occupancy for Housing Commission staff review 
and comment. Borrower shall submit a revised draft incorporating Housing 
Commission comment prior to occupancy of the first tenant. A final tenant 
service deliver plan shall be subject to the approval of the Housing Commission 
in its reasonable discretion and will not be unreasonably withheld prior to 
Project lease up. 

 
37. Title (ALTA Lender’s Policy) - The Borrower shall acquire, at its sole cost and 

expense, an ALTA Lender’s Policy for the Housing Commission Loan with 
endorsements acceptable to the Housing Commission. 

 
38. Miscellaneous Additional Conditions - The Housing Commission reserves the right to 

impose such additional conditions in the final documentation of the transaction as are 
reasonably necessary to protect the interests of the Housing Commission and fulfill the 
intent of this letter. 

 
39. Exhibit A - Proforma - is attached hereto and is hereby incorporated. 

 
If the Borrower is willing to proceed on the terms and conditions referenced herein, please execute 
this letter of intent and return it to the undersigned by June 10, 2024, so that this letter of intent may 
be attached to the Housing Commission Board report. 
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 ACKNOWLEDED AND AGREED TO BY:  
 
CRP Affordable Housing and Community Development LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 
 
 
By:_______________________ 
Paul Salib, Managing Member 
 
 
San Diego Housing Commission 
 
By:_______________________ 
 
Print Name: Jennifer Kreutter 
 
Title: Vice President, Multifamily Housing Finance Real Estate Division 
 
Date:  
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ATTACHMENT 5 
HOUSING COMMISSION MULTIFAMILY  

HOUSING REVENUE BOND PROGRAM SUMMARY 

General Description: The multifamily housing bond program provides below-market financing 
(based on bond interest being exempt from income tax) for developers willing to set aside a 
percentage of project units as affordable housing. Multifamily housing revenue bonds are also 
known as "private activity bonds" because the projects are owned by private entities, often 
including nonprofit sponsors and for-profit investors.  

Bond Issuer: Housing Authority of the City of San Diego. There is no direct legal liability to the 
City, the Housing Authority or the Housing Commission in connection with the issuance or 
repayment of bonds. There is no pledge of the City's faith, credit or taxing power nor of the 
Housing Authority's faith and credit. The bonds do not constitute a general obligation of the 
issuer because security for repayment of the bonds is limited to specific private revenue sources, 
such as project revenues. The developer is responsible for the payment of costs of issuance and 
all other costs under each financing.  

Affordability: Minimum requirement is that at least 20% of the units are affordable at 50% of 
Area Median Income (AMI). Alternatively, a minimum of the units may be affordable at 50% 
AMI with an additional 30% of the units affordable at 60% AML The Housing Commission 
requires that the affordability restriction be in place for a minimum of 15 years. Due to the 
combined requirements of state, local, and federal funding sources, projects financed under the 
Bond Program are normally affordable for 30-55 years and often provide deeper affordability 
levels than the minimum levels required under the Bond Program. 

Rating: Generally "AAA" or its equivalent with a minimum rating of "A" or, under conditions 
that meet IRS and Housing Commission requirements, bonds may be unrated for private 
placement with institutional investors (typically, large banks) Additional security is normally 
achieved through the provision of outside credit support ("credit enhancement") by participating 
financial institutions that underwrite the project loans and guarantee the repayment of the bonds. 
The credit rating on the bonds reflects the credit quality of the credit enhancement provider.  

Approval Process: 

• Inducement Resolution: The bond process is initiated when the San Diego Housing
Commission (Housing Commission) adopts an "Inducement Resolution" to establish the date
from which project costs may be reimbursable from bond proceeds (if bonds are later issued)
and to authorize staff to work with the financing team to perform a due diligence process. The
Inducement Resolution does not represent any commitment by the Housing Commission, or
the Housing Authority, or the developer to proceed with the financing.
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• TEFRA Hearing and Resolution (Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982): to assure 
that projects making use of tax-exempt financing meet appropriate governmental purposes and 
provide reasonable public benefits, the IRS Code requires that a public hearing be held and that 
the issuance of bonds be approved by representatives of the governmental unit with jurisdiction 
over the area in which the project is located. This process does not make the Housing 
Commission, the Housing Authority, or the City of San Diego financially or legally liable for 
the bonds or for the project.  

[Note: Members of the Housing Commission or the San Diego City Council may be asked to 
take two actions at this stage in the bond process -- one in their capacity as approving the 
TEFRA hearing resolution and another as approving the bond inducement.]  

• Application for Bond Allocation: The issuance of these "private activity bonds" (bonds for 
projects owned by private developers, including projects with nonprofit sponsors and for-profit 
investors) requires an allocation of bond issuing authority from the State of California. To 
apply for an allocation, an application approved by the Housing Commission and supported by 
an adopted inducement resolution and by proof of credit enhancement (or bond rating) must be 
filed with the California Debt Limit Allocation Committee (CDLAC). In addition, evidence of 
a TEFRA hearing and approval must be submitted prior to the CDLAC meeting.  

• Final Bond Approval: The Housing Authority retains absolute discretion over the issuance of 
bonds through adoption of a final resolution authorizing the issuance. Prior to final 
consideration of the proposed bond issuance, the project must comply with all applicable 
financing, affordability, and legal requirements and undergo all required planning 
procedures/reviews by local planning groups, etc.  

• Funding and Bond Administration: All monies are held and accounted for by a third party 
trustee. The trustee disburses proceeds from bond sales to the developer in order to acquire 
and/or construct the housing project. Rental income used to make bond payments is collected 
from the developer by the trustee and disbursed to bond holders, if rents are insufficient to 
make bond payments, the trustee obtains funds from the credit enhancement provider. No 
monies are transferred through the Housing Commission or Housing Authority, and the trustee 
has no standing to ask the issuer for funds. Bond Disclosure: The offering document (typically 
a Preliminary Offering Statement or bond placement memorandum) discloses relevant 
information regarding the project, the developer, and the credit enhancement provider. Since 
the Housing Authority is not responsible in any way for bond repayment, there are no financial 
statements or summaries about the Housing Authority or the City that are included as part of 
the offering document. The offering document includes a paragraph that states that the Housing 
Authority is a legal entity with the authority to issue multifamily housing bonds and that the 
Housing Commission acts on behalf of the Housing Authority to issue the bonds. The offering 
document also includes a paragraph that details that there is no pending or threatened litigation 
that would affect the validity of the bonds or curtail the ability of the Housing Authority to  
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 issue bonds. This is the extent of the disclosure required of the Housing Authority, Housing 
Commission, or the City. However, it is the obligation of members of the Housing Authority to 
disclose any material facts known about the project, not available to the general public, which 
might have an impact on the viability of the project. 
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DEVELOPERS/CONSULTANTS/SELLERS/CONTRACTORS/ 
ENTITY SEEKING GRANT/BORROWERS 
(Collectively referred to as "CONTRACTOR" herein) 

Statement for Public Disclosure 
1. Name of CONTRACTOR:  _______________________________________

2. Email: _____________________________________________________

2. Address and Zip Code: _________________________________________

3. Telephone Number: _________________________________________

4. Name of Principal Contact for CONTRACTOR: ______________________________________________________

5. Federal Identification Number or Social Security Number of CONTRACTOR: ______________________________

6. If the CONTRACTOR is not an individual doing business under his own name, the CONTRACTOR has the status
indicated below and is organized or operating under the laws of California as (you may copy and paste
requested documents of any size into the boxes throughout this form):

A corporation (copy and paste Articles of Incorporation here): 

A nonprofit or charitable institution or corporation (copy and paste Articles of Incorporation and 
documentary evidence verifying current, valid nonprofit or charitable status): 

 A partnership known as (Name): 

Check one: 

General Partnership (copy and paste statement of General Partnership): 

Limited Partnership (copy and paste Certificate of Limited Partnership): 

A business association or a joint venture known as: (copy and paste Joint Venture or Business Association 
Agreement) 

A Federal, State, or local government or instrumentality thereof 

Other (Please explain): 
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7. If the CONTRACTOR is not an individual or a government agency or instrumentality, list name and date of 

organization: 

 

 
8. Provide names, addresses, telephone numbers, title of position (if any) and nature and extent of the interest of 

the current officers, principal members, shareholders, and investors of the CONTRACTOR, other than a 
government agency or instrumentality, as set forth below: 

a. If the CONTRACTOR is a corporation, the officers, directors or trustees, and each stockholder owning 
more than 10% of any class of stock. 

b. If the CONTRACTOR is a nonprofit or charitable institution or corporation, the members who 
constitute the board of trustees or board of directors or similar governing body. 

c. If the CONTRACTOR is a partnership, each partner, whether a general or limited, and either the 
percent of interest or a description of the character and extent of interest. 

d. If the CONTRACTOR is a business association or a joint venture, each participant and either the 
percent of interest or a description of the character and extent of interest. 

e. If the CONTRACTOR is some other entity, the officers, the members of the governing body, and 
each person having an interest of more than 10%.(Attach extra sheet if necessary) 

 

 Text will allow multiple lines 

  
Name/Title (if any) Address Phone Email 

Percent of Interest & Description 
of character and extent of 

interest 

8.1         % 

8.2         % 

8.3         % 
 
You may also copy and paste your complete list here: 

 
9. Has the makeup as set forth in Item 8(a) through 8(e) changed within the last twelve (12) months? If yes, 

please explain in detail. 
 
   Yes   No 
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10. Is it anticipated that the makeup as set forth in Item 8(a) through 8(e) will change within the next twelve (12) 

months? If yes, please explain in detail. 
 
   Yes   No 

 
11. Provide name, address, telephone number, and nature and extent of interest of each person or entity (not named 

in response to Item 8) who has a beneficial interest in any of the shareholders or investors named in response to 
Item 8 which gives such person or entity more than a computed 10% interest in the CONTRACTOR (for 
example, more than 20% of the stock in a corporation which holds 50% of the stock of the CONTRACTOR or 
more than 50% of the stock in the corporation which holds 20% of the stock of the CONTRACTOR): 

 
 

You may also copy and paste your complete list here: 

  
 

 
12. Names, addresses and telephone numbers (if not given above) of officers and directors or trustees of any 

corporation or firm listed under Item 8 or Item 11 above: 
 

 

  
Name/Title (if any) Address Phone Email 

12.1         

12.2         

12.3         
 
You may also copy and paste your complete list here: 

  
 
 

  

 Text will allow multiple lines 

  
Name/Title (if any) Address Phone Email 

Percent of Interest & 
Description of character and 

extent of interest 

11.1         % 

11.2         % 

11.3         % 
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13. Is the CONTRACTOR a subsidiary of or affiliated with any other corporation or corporations, any other firm or any
other business entity or entities of whatever nature? If yes, list each such corporation, firm or business entity by
name and address, specify its relationship to the CONTRACTOR, and identify the officers and directors or trustees
common to the CONTRACTOR and such other corporation, firm, or business entity.

You may also copy and paste your complete list here: 

14. Provide description of the financial condition of the CONTRACTOR as of the date of the statement and for a period
of twenty-four (24) months prior to the date of its statement as reflected in the financial statements that was
requested (attached) as part of the Application, including, but not necessarily limited to, profit and loss statements
and statements of financial position:

15. If funds for the development/project are to be obtained from sources other than the CONTRACTOR's own funds,
provide a statement of the CONTRACTOR's plan for financing the development/project:

16. Provide sources and amount of cash available to CONTRACTOR to meet equity requirements of the proposed
undertaking:

a. In banks/savings and loans:
Name:  ____________________________________
Address:  ___________________________________
Amount: $ _________________________________

b. By loans from affiliated or associated corporations or firms:
Name:  _______________________________________
Address:  _____________________________________
Amount: $ ____________________________________

Text will allow multiple lines 

Name of affiliated 
Corporation/Firm/Business Entity Address Relationship to 

CONTRACTOR 

List Common 
Officers/Directors/Trustees 

by Name 

13.1 

13.2 

13.3 
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c. By sale of readily salable assets/including marketable securities:

Description Market Value ($) Mortgages or Liens ($) 

Enter additional information as needed:  

17. Names and addresses of bank references, and name of contact at each reference:

Text will allow mulitple lines 

Bank Name Bank Address Bank Contact Name Bank Contact 
Phone/Email 

17.1 

17.2 

17.3 

You may also copy and paste your complete list of bank references here: 

18. Has the CONTRACTOR or any of the CONTRACTOR's officers or principal members, shareholders or investors, or
other interested parties been adjudged bankrupt, either voluntary or involuntary, within the past 10 years?

Yes  No 

If yes, provide date, place, and under what name: 

19. Has the CONTRACTOR or anyone referred to above as "principals of the CONTRACTOR" been convicted of any felony
within the past 10 years?

 Yes  No 
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If yes, for each case, provide (1) date, (2) charge, (3) place, (4) court, and (5) action taken. You may copy and paste 
any explanation deemed necessary: 

Case 1: 

Case 2: 

Case 3: 

20. List undertakings (including, but not limited to, bid bonds, performance bonds, payment bonds and/or
improvement bonds) comparable to size of the proposed project which have been completed by the
CONTRACTOR including identification and brief description of each project, date of completion, and amount of 
bond, whether any legal action has been taken on the bond: 

Type of Bond Project Description 
Date of 

Completion 
Amount of 

Bond Action on Bond 

     Enter additional information as needed: 

21. If the CONTRACTOR, or a parent corporation, a subsidiary, an affiliate, or a principal of the CONTRACTOR is to
participate in the development as a construction contractor or builder, provide the following information:

a. Name and addresses of such contractor or builder:

Name Address Affiliation 

21.a1

21.a2

21.a3
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b. Has such contractor or builder within the last 10 years ever failed to qualify as a responsible bidder,
refused to enter into a contract after an award has been made, or failed to complete a construction or
development contract?

Yes No 

If yes, please explain, in detail, each such instance: 

c. Total amount of construction or development work performed by such contractor or builder during
the last three (3) years: $ ____________________

c.1 General description of such work:

c.2 through c.4 Complete one table for each project.  Text will allow multiple lines:

Pr
oj

ec
t C.2  Project Name:

Project Location: 

Project Details: 

O
w

ne
r Business Name of Project Owner: 

Principal Contact of Project Owner: 

Principal Contact Phone & Email 

Bo
nd

 

Bonding Company Name & Address: 

Principal Bond Contact Phone & Email: 

C/
O

 Change Order Details: 

Change Order Cost: 

Li
tig

at
io

n 

Litigation Location/Date: 

Litigation Details: 

Litigation Outcome Details: 
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c.2 through c.4 Complete one table for each project.  Text will allow multiple lines:

Pr
oj

ec
t C.3  Project Name:

Project Location: 

Project Details: 

O
w

ne
r Business Name of Project Owner: 

Principal Contact of Project Owner: 

Principal Contact Phone & Email 

Bo
nd

 

Bonding Company Name & Address: 

Principal Bond Contact Phone & Email: 

C/
O

 Change Order Details: 

Change Order Cost: 

Li
tig

at
io

n 

Litigation Location/Date: 

Litigation Details: 

Ligation Outcome Details: 
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c.2 through c.4 Complete one table for each project.  Text will allow multiple lines:

Pr
oj

ec
t C.4  Project Name:

Project Location: 

Project Details: 

O
w

ne
r Business Name of Project Owner: 

Principal Contact of Project Owner: 

Principal Contact Phone & Email 

Bo
nd

 

Bonding Company Name & Address: 

Principal Bond Contact Phone & Email: 

C/
O

 Change Order Details: 

Change Order Cost: 

Li
tig

at
io

n 

Litigation Location/Date: 

Litigation Details: 

Litigation Outcome Details: 

d. Construction contracts or developments now being performed by such contractor or builder:

Identification of Contract 
or Development Location Amount Date to be 

Completed 
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e. Outstanding construction-contract bids of such contractor or builder:

Awarding Agency Amount Date Opened 

Enter additional information as needed:  

22. Provide a detailed and complete statement regarding equipment, experience, financial capacity, and other
resources available to such contractor or builder for the performance of the work involved in the proposed
project, specifying particularly the qualifications of the personnel, the nature of the equipment, and the 
general experience of the contractor: 

23. Does any member of the governing body of the San Diego Housing Commission (“SDHC”), Housing Authority of
the City of San Diego ("AUTHORITY") or City of San Diego ("CITY"), to which the accompanying proposal is being
made or any officer or employee of the SDHC, the AUTHORITY or the CITY who exercises any functions or
responsibilities in connection with the carrying out of the project covered by the CONTRACTOR's proposal, have
any direct or indirect personal financial interest in the CONTRACTOR or in the proposed contractor?

Yes No 

If yes, explain: 

24. Statements and other evidence of the CONTRACTOR's qualifications and financial responsibility (other than
the financial statement referred to in Item 8) are copy and pasted  hereto and hereby made a part hereof as
follows:
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25. Is the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or are any of the proposed subcontractors, currently involved in 

any construction-related litigation? 
 Yes    No 

If yes, please explain: 
 
 
 
 

26. State the name, address, and telephone numbers of CONTRACTOR's insurance agent(s) and/or companies 
for the following coverages. List the amount of coverage (limits) currently existing in each category. 

a. General Liability, including Bodily Injury and Property Damage Insurance [copy and paste certificate 
of insurance showing the amount of coverage and coverage period(s)]:  

  
Check coverage(s) carried: 

Comprehensive Form  

Premises - Operations  

Explosion and Collapse Hazard 

Underground Hazard 

Products/Completed Hazard 

Contractual Insurance 

Broad Form Property Damage 

Independent Contractors 

Personal Injury 

b.  Automobile Public Liability/Property Damage [(copy and paste certificate of insurance showing 
the amount of coverage and coverage period(s)]:  

 
 

Check coverage(s) carried: 
Comprehensive Form  

Owned 

Hired 

Non-Owned 
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c. Workers Compensation [copy and paste certificate of insurance showing the amount of coverage
and coverage period(s)]:

d. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) [copy and paste certificate of insurance showing
the amount of coverage and coverage period(s)]:

e. Excess Liability [copy and paste certificate(s) of insurance showing the amount of coverage
and coverage period(s)]:

f. Other (Specify) [copy and paste certificate(s) of insurance showing the amount of coverage
and coverage period(s)]:

27. CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that it will not during the term of the PROJECT, GRANT, LOAN, 
CONTRACT, DEVELOPMENT and/or RENDITIONS OF SERVICES discriminate against any employee, person, or 
applicant for employment because of race, age, sexual orientation, marital status, color, religion, sex, handicap, 
or national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and 
that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, age, sexual orientation, marital 
status, color, religion, sex, handicap, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the 
following: employment, upgrading, demotion or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places, 
available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the SDHC setting forth the 
provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. YES

28. The CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that it will not without prior written consent of the SDHC, engage in 
any business pursuits that are adverse, hostile or take incompatible positions to the interests of the SDHC, 
during the term of the PROJECT, DEVELOPMENT, LOAN, GRANT, CONTRACT and/or RENDITION OF SERVICES. 
YES

29. CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that no member, commissioner, councilperson, officer, or employee of 
the SDHC, the AUTHORITY and/or the CITY, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the 
PROJECT is situated, no member of the government body in which the SDHC was activated, and no other public 
official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the assignment 
of work, has during his or her tenure, or will for one (1) year thereafter, have any interest, direct or indirect, 
in this PROJECT or the proceeds thereof. YES
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30. List all citations, orders to cease and desist, stop work orders, complaints, judgments, fines, and penalties 

received by or imposed upon CONTRACTOR for safety violations from any and all government entities including 
but not limited to, the City of San Diego, County of San Diego, the State of California, the United States of 
America and any and all divisions and departments of said government entities for a period of five (5) years prior 
to the date of this statement. If none, please state: 

 
Government Entity Making 

Complaint 
Date Resolution 

   

   

   

   

 
     Enter additional information as needed:  

  
 

31. Has the CONTRACTOR ever been disqualified, removed from, or otherwise prevented from bidding on or 
completing a federal, state, or local government project because of a violation of law or a safety regulation? 

  Yes    No 

If yes, please explain in detail:  
 
 
 

32. Please list all licenses obtained by the CONTRACTOR through the State of California and/or the United States 
of America which are required and/or will be utilized by the CONTRACTOR and/or are convenient to the 
performance of the PROJECT, DEVELOPMENT, LOAN, GRANT, CONTRACT, or RENDITION OF SERVICES. State 
the name of the 
governmental agency granting the license, type of license, date of grant, and the status of the license, together 
with a statement as to whether the License has ever been revoked: 

 
Government 

Agency License Description License Number Date Issued 
(Original) 

Status 
(Current) 

Revocation 
(Yes/No) 

      

      

      

 
     Enter additional information as needed here: 
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33. Describe in detail any and all other facts, factors or conditions that may adversely affect CONTRACTOR's ability 

to perform or complete, in a timely manner, or at all, the PROJECT, CONTRACT, SALES of Real Property to, 
DEVELOPMENT, repayment of the LOAN, adherence to the conditions of the GRANT, or performance of 
consulting or other services under CONTRACT with the SDHC. 

 
 
 

 
34. Describe in detail, any and all other facts, factors or conditions that may favorably affect CONTRACTOR's ability 

to perform or complete, in a timely manner, or at all, the PROJECT, CONTRACT, DEVELOPMENT, repayment of the 
LOAN, adherence to the conditions of the GRANT, or performance of consulting or other services under CONTRACT 
with the SDHC. 

 
 
 

35. List all CONTRACTS with DEVELOPMENTS for or with, LOANS with, PROJECTS with, GRANTS from, SALES of 
Real Property to, the SDHC, AUTHORITY and/or the CITY within the last five (5) years: 

 

Date Entity Involved (i.e. City, 
SDHC, et al.) 

Status 
(Current, delinquent, repaid, etc.) Dollar Amount 

    

    

    

 
Enter additional information as needed: 

 
 

 
36. Within the last five years, has the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or have any of the proposed subcontractors, 

been the subject of a complaint filed with the Contractor's State License Board (CSLB)? 

 Yes    No 

If yes, please explain:  
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37. Within the last five years, has the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or have any of the proposed subcontractors,
had a revocation or suspension of a CONTRACTOR's License?

 Yes  No 

If yes, please explain: 

38. List three local references that would be familiar with your previous construction project:

1. Name: ________________________________
Address:  _____________________________
Phone: _______________________________
Project Name:  __________________________
Description:

2. Name: _________________________________
Address: _______________________________

Phone: ________________________________
Project Name: ____________________________

Description:

3. Name: ________________________________

Address: ______________________________
Phone: _______________________________
Project Name: __________________________
Description:

39. Provide a brief statement regarding equipment, experience, financial capacity, and other resources available to
the Contractor for the performance of the work involved in the proposed project, specifying particularly the
qualifications of the personnel, the nature of the equipment and the general experience of the Contractor. 
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40. State the name and experience of the proposed Construction Superintendent.

Name 

Experience 







SAM DIEGO 

HOUSING ■ COMMISSION Real Estate Department 

CERTIFICATION 

The CONTRACTOR,CRP Affordable Housing & Community Development, hereby certifies that this CONTRACTOR's 

Statement for Public Disclosure and the attached information/evidence of the CONTRACTOR's qualifications and financial 

responsibility, including financial statements, are true and correct to the best of CONTRACTOR's knowledge and belief. 

By:
- -

�
- --

-----
Signature 

Print Name: Paul Salib 

T. 1 
Chief Exeutive Officer 

It e: __________ _ 

Dated: April 24, 2024 

By: __________ _
Signature 

Print Name: ________ _ 

Title: __________ _ 

Dated: __________ _ 

WARNING: 18 U.S.C. 1001 provides, among other things, that whoever knowingly and willingly makes or uses a 

document or writing containing any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or entry, in any matter within the 

jurisdiction or any department or agency of the United States, shall be fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned for 

not more than five years, or both. 

JURAT 

State of California 

County of ___________ _ 

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this ___ day of -----� 20_ 

by ____________________ personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of 

satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) who appeared before me. 

Signature of Notary 

SEAL 
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LLC-12Secretary of State 
Statement of Information 

IMPORTANT — before completing this form.

Filing Fee – $2 .00

Copy Fees –

This Space For Office Use Only 
1. Limited Liability Company Name

2. 12-Digit Secretary of State File Number 3. State, Foreign Country or Place of Organization

4. Business Addresses

if different than item 4a 

CA

California 

managers member and 

5. Manager(s) or Member(s)

6. Service of Process OR

INDIVIDUAL

not

not Do not enter a P.O. Box 

CA

CORPORATION 

7. Type of Business

8. Chief Executive Officer, if elected or appointed

9. The Information contained herein, including any attachments, is true and correct.

Return Address (Optional) 

ANNEXURE 1



April 26th, 2024 

San Diego Housing Commission 
Attention: Real Estate Division, Multifamily Housing Bond Program 
1122 Broadway, Suite 300 
San Diego CA 92101 

Re: Audited Financial Statements 

TO WHOEVER IT MAY CONCERN 

This is to certify that the audits of 2023 financials are in progress. 

Please find attached the engagement letter with the accountant for the audit of 
2023 financials, audited 2022 financial statement and unaudited 2023 financial 
statement.  

If you have any queries, please reach out to me on my email. 

Sincerely, 

Paul Salib 
CEO  
psalib@crpaffordable.com 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EBE21AA2-C97E-4456-9A96-6532AF609400

ANNEXURE 2



CASTELLAN HOLDINGS AND SUBSIDIARIES 

(A Limited Liability Company) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022  

Castellan Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries 
(A Limited Liability Company) 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
(Together with Independent Auditors’ Report) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022  

DocuSign Envelope ID: EBE21AA2-C97E-4456-9A96-6532AF609400
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Phone:516.992.5900 
Fax: 516.992.5800
mhmcpa.com

Mayer Hoffman McCann CPAs 
The New York Practice of  Mayer 
Hoffman McCann P.C.
88 Froehlich Farm Boulevard 
Woodbury, NY 11797

Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Managing Member 
of Castellan Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Castellan Holdings LLC and subsidiaries (the “Company”), which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2022, and the related consolidated statement of operations, 
changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements 
(collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as of December 31, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAS”). 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for 
one year after the date that the financial statements are issued. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there 
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable 
user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

A member of Kreston Global – a global network of accounting firms 
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• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of  the Company’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the 
audit. 

Woodbury, NY 
May 3, 2023 

Mayer Hoffman McCann CPA's
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CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 11,003,434$     
Fees receivable 2,753,383         
Deposits 166,722            
Prepaid expenses 98,191              

Total Current Assets 14,021,730       

   Property, equipment and leasehold improvements, net 140,793            

   Investments in and advances to unconsolidated real estate entities 7,386,860

TOTAL ASSETS 21,549,383$     

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - trade 403,536$          
Accounts payable - construction 1,566,473         
Accrued expenses 2,381,377         
Unearned developer fees 2,170,259         
Line of credit payable 3,000,000         

Total Current Liabilities 9,521,645

MEMBERS' EQUITY 12,027,738       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 21,549,383       

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31, 2022

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

DocuSign Envelope ID: EBE21AA2-C97E-4456-9A96-6532AF609400



Page 3

REVENUES
Property management fees and other related income 580,231$        
Development fees 2,116,000       
Real estate lending transaction fee income 3,475,131       
Construction income 4,580,296       

TOTAL REVENUES 10,751,658     

INVESTMENT INCOME
Equity in net income of CRP Affordable Housing and Community 

Development Fund LLC and CRP Affordable Housing Fund LLC 1,852,863       
Equity in net income of CREIF II (GP) LLC 2,541,663       
Equity in net gain of other investees 1,310,930       

TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME 5,705,456

EXPENSES
Payroll and related expenses, net 6,921,172       
Professional fees 2,890,050       
Rent and related expenses 435,068          
Other operating and administrative expenses 800,561          

TOTAL EXPENSES 11,046,851

INCOME BEFORE OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 5,410,263       

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest income 25,259            
Interest expense (157,681)        

NET INCOME 5,277,841$     

CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Members' equity - January 1, 2022 7,453,686$               

Contributions 1,811,714

Distributions (2,426,167)

Syndication costs (89,336)

Net income 5,277,841

Members' equity - December 31, 2022 12,027,738$             

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Members' Equity

CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income 5,277,841$     
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:

Equity in net income of investees (5,705,456)     
Expenses not requiring use of operating funds:

Depreciation (43,176)          
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Deposits (166,722)        
Fees receivable (309,116)        
Prepaid expenses 137,558          
Accounts payable - trade (89,771)          
Accounts payable - construction 739,072          
Accrued Expenses 2,381,377       

              Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,221,607       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from investees 3,238,731       
Investment in real estate companies (2,066,919)     
Receipts from affiliates 4,764,096       

              Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 5,935,908       

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Line of credit proceeds 8,222,000       
Line of credit repayments (10,722,000)   
Members' distributions (2,426,167)     
Contributions 1,811,714       
Syndication costs (89,336)          

               Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities (3,203,789)     

NET CHANGE IN CASH 4,953,726       

CASH  – January 1, 2022 6,049,708       

CASH – December 31, 2022 11,003,434$   

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW TRANSACTIONS
Cash paid during the year for interest: 157,681$        

CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
 
 

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
Castellan Holdings LLC (“Castellan”) was formed in Delaware as a Limited Liability 
Company on March 19, 2013, for the purpose of operating a full service, vertically 
integrated real estate company with internal platforms including investment, property 
management, asset management, construction, and development of real estate. 
 
Castellan owns the following subsidiaries: 
 

 Liberty Place Property Management LLC is in the business of property 
management and other services. 

 
 Castellan Managing Member LLC is in the business of earning carried interest and 

acquisition fees from certain affiliated property owners for properties acquired by 
affiliates of the manager. 

 
 CRP Manager LLC is in the business of earning carried interest and acquisition 

fees from certain affiliated property owners for properties acquired by affiliates of 
the manager. 

 
 Castellan Managing Member II LLC is in the business of earning carried interest 

from certain affiliated property owners for properties acquired by affiliates of the 
manager. 

 
 Castellan Managing Member IV LLC is in the business of earning carried interest 

from certain affiliated property owners for properties acquired by affiliates of the 
manager. 

 
 CRP Founders Capital Managing Member LLC is in the business of earning carried 

interest and acquisition fees from certain affiliated property owners for properties 
acquired by affiliates of the manager. 

 
 Castellan Managing Member V LLC is in the business of earning carried interest 

from CRP Osbourne LLC. 
 

 CREIF Manager LLC is in the business of earning carried interest from the 
Castellan Real Estate Income Fund. 

 
 CREIF II Manager LLC is in the business of earning carried interest from the 

Castellan Real Estate Income Fund II.  
 

 Ironcore Construction LLC is in the business of providing construction services. 
 

 CRP Affordable Housing Manager LLC is in the business of managing CRP 
Affordable Housing and Community Development Fund LLC and CRP Affordable 
Housing Fund LLC. 

 
 Castellan Capital LLC is in the business of originating real estate loans. 
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CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
 
 

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
("GAAP"). 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Castellan 
and its wholly owned subsidiaries (the “Company”). All intercompany transactions have 
been eliminated in consolidation.  
 
Investments in Unconsolidated Real Estate Entities 

 
In accordance with ASC 323, Investments - Equity Method and Joint Ventures ("ASC 323"), 
the Company uses the equity method of accounting for its investments in unconsolidated 
entities over which it exercises significant influence but does not have a controlling interest. 
The equity method of accounting requires the investment to be initially recorded at cost 
and subsequently adjusted for the Company's share of equity in the unconsolidated entity's 
earnings or losses. 

 
Variable Interest Entities 
 
The Company accounts for variable interest entities ("VIEs") in accordance with ASC 810. 
In accordance with ASC 810, an entity is a VIE when: (a) the equity investment at risk in 
the entity is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without additional 
subordinated financial support provided by other parties, including the equity holders; (b) 
the entity's equity holders as a group either (i) lack the direct or indirect ability to make 
decisions about the entity, (ii) are not obligated to absorb expected losses of the entity or 
(iii) do not have the right to receive expected residual returns of the entity; or (c) the entity's 
equity holders have voting rights that are not proportionate to their economic interests, If 
an entity is deemed to be a VIE pursuant to ASC 810, the enterprise that has both (i) the 
power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impacts the entity's economic 
performance and (ii) the obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity or right to 
receive benefits from the entity that could be potentially significant to the VIE is considered 
the primary beneficiary and must consolidate the VIE. In accordance with ASC 810, the 
Company performs ongoing reassessments of whether it is the primary beneficiary of a 
VIE. The financial statements of the VIEs for which the Company is considered to be the 
primary beneficiary, if any, are consolidated in the Company's consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets 
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the  
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CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
 

 
NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Use of Estimates (continued) 
 

consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Affiliate 
 
For purposes of these consolidated financial statements, an affiliate is defined as an entity 
under common control and/or ownership, or an individual who effectively owns and/or 
controls the Company. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with maturities of three months or less 
upon acquisition to be cash equivalents. There were no cash equivalents as of December 
31, 2022. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk 
consist of cash held in financial institutions. The Company maintains its cash in various 
financial institutions. At times, such accounts may be excess of the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insurance limits. The amount that is federally insured is 
subject to the FDIC limit of $250,000 per depositor, per insured financial institution. As of 
December 31, 2022, there was approximately $10,725,000 in excess of FDIC insured 
limits. 
 
Fees Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
 
Fees receivable consist of property management income, developer fees, construction 
services, incentive fees, and other real estate services.  
 
The Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts for all fees receivable not 
expected to be collected. The Company evaluates the collectability of its fees receivable 
based on a combination of factors. In circumstances when the Company is aware of a 
specific customer’s inability to meet its financial obligations, the Company records a 
specific reserve against amounts due. For all other instances, the Company recognizes 
reserves based on historical experience and review of the individual accounts outstanding. 
When management determines that all efforts have been exhausted to collect the 
delinquent fees receivable, they are charged off.  
 
Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Leasehold 
improvements are carried at cost and are depreciated when placed into service using the 
straight-line method over the term of the lease, or its estimated useful life if shorter. 
Equipment is depreciated on a straight-line method over an estimated useful life ranging  
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CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
 

 
NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
Property and Equipment (continued) 
 
from 5 to 10 years. Significant renovations or improvements that extend the life of the real 
estate are capitalized. Replacements and betterments are capitalized. Expenditures for 
minor replacements, maintenance, and repairs are charged to operations. The Company 
reviews the carrying value of its property and equipment for impairment whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If 
such review indicates that the property and equipment is impaired, when the carrying 
amount of the property and equipment exceeds the sum of its undiscounted estimated 
future cash flows, excluding interest charges, the property and equipment’s carrying 
amount is written down to its fair value. There was no impairment adjustment deemed 
necessary by management for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
Property Management Fees and Other Related Income 
 
Income from real estate related fees includes property management income, which is 
recognized when earned.  
 
Real Estate Lending Transaction Fee Income 
 
The Company’s lending transactions fee income is recognized when earned. It includes 
origination, extension, and exit fees the Company earns from borrowers.  
 
Investment Income 
 
The Company’s investment income is derived from its share of earnings or losses, 
including payment of promote income, generated by its investments in real estate entities. 
Investment income is also derived from sales of properties.  

 
Income Taxes 
 
The Company is organized as a limited liability company, which is considered a pass-
through entity for federal and state income tax purposes. As such, taxable income or loss 
realized by the Company is allocated to the members in accordance with their respective 
membership interests, and accordingly, reported on their individual tax returns. No 
provision for income taxes has been included in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
The Company follows the provisions of FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 
Topic 740 “Income Taxes”, which provides standards for establishing and classifying any 
tax provisions for uncertain tax positions. The Company evaluates the uncertainties of tax 
positions taken or expected to be taken on its tax return based on the probability of whether 
the position will be sustained upon examination by tax authorities. The Company uses a 
more-likely-than-not threshold for recognition and derecognition of tax positions taken or 
to be taken in a tax return. Management concluded that it had no material uncertain tax 
liabilities to be recognized at December 31, 2022. 
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CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
 
   
 
NOTE 3: TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES AND EQUITY OWNED ENTITIES 
 

CRP Affordable Housing and Community Development Fund LLC, CRP Affordable 
Housing Fund LLC and CIX Castellan Affordable Housing Fund LLC (collectively referred 
to as “Affordable”) 
 
The Company is entitled to 100% of the profits in Affordable once the investors receive 
their preferred return. The accompanying consolidated statement of operations includes 
the Company’s share of its equity in the net income reported by Affordable. The Company's 
net investment in Affordable represents its share of the cumulative equity in the investee.  

 
The Company has significant influence in Affordable and reports its investment using the 
equity method of accounting. The Company’s share of the financial position of Affordable 
is shown as a net liability of $4,598,472 included in investments in and advances to 
unconsolidated real estate entities. The financial position of Affordable at December 31, 
2022 included total assets of $53,195,122 and total liabilities of $23,674,913. For the year 
ended December 31, 2022, Affordable had net income of $4,713,644, of which the 
Company’s share was income of $1,852,863. Income and loss are allocated in accordance 
with the underlying operating agreement, which may be different than the ownership 
percentage disclosed. 
 
 Castellan NYC Partners LLC (“Castellan NYC”) 

 
The Company owns a less than 1% interest in Castellan NYC. The Company's net 
investment in Castellan NYC represents its share of the cumulative equity in the investee.  

 
The Company has significant influence in Castellan NYC and reports its investment using 
the equity method of accounting. The Company’s share of the financial position of 
Castellan NYC is shown as a net asset of $736,704 included in investments in and 
advances to unconsolidated real estate entities. The financial position of Castellan NYC at 
December 31, 2022 included total assets of $2,185,329 and total liabilities of $4,594,524. 
For the year ended December 31, 2022, Castellan NYC had a net loss of $685,032, of 
which the Company’s share was $274,013. Income and loss are allocated in accordance 
with the underlying operating agreement, which may be different than the ownership 
percentage disclosed. 

 
CREIF II (GP) LLC (“CREIF II”)  
 
The Company owns a 26.3% interest in CREIF II. The accompanying consolidated 
statement of operations includes the Company’s share of its equity in the net income 
reported by CREIF II in 2022. The Company's net investment in CREIF II represents its 
share of the cumulative equity in the investee.  
 
The Company has significant influence in CREIF II and reports its investment using the 
equity method of accounting. The Company’s share of the financial position of CREIF II is 
shown as a net liability of $513,422 included in investments in and advances to 
unconsolidated real estate entities. The financial position of CREIF II at December 31, 2022 
included total assets of $310,434,220 and total liabilities of $166,220,421. For the year  
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CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
 
 

NOTE 3: TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES AND EQUITY OWNED ENTITIES (continued) 
 

CREIF II (GP) LLC (“CREIF II”) (continued) 
 
ended December 31, 2022, CREIF II had net income of $14,615,874, of which the 
Company’s share was $2,541,663. Income and loss are allocated in accordance with the 
underlying operating agreement, which may be different than the ownership percentage 
disclosed. 

 
 

CREIF (GP) LLC (“CREIF”) 
 
The Company owns a less than 1% interest in CREIF. The Company's net investment in 
CREIF represents its share of the cumulative equity in the investee. 
  
The Company has significant influence in CREIF and reports its investment using the 
equity method of accounting. The Company’s share of the financial position of CREIF is 
shown as a net asset of $9,562 included in investments in and advances to unconsolidated 
real estate entities. The financial position of CREIF at December 31, 2022 included total 
assets of $46,520,506 and total liabilities of $20,545,920. For the year ended December 
31, 2022, CREIF had a net loss of $1,180,410, of which the Company’s share was $0. 
Income and loss are allocated in accordance with the underlying operating agreement, 
which may be different than the ownership percentage disclosed. 
 
CRP Founders Capital LLC (“Founders”) 
 
The Company owns a 6.67% interest in Founders. The accompanying consolidated 
statement of operations includes the Company’s share of its equity in the net loss reported  
by Founders in 2022. The Company's net investment in Founders represents its share of 
the cumulative equity in the investee throughout 2022.  
 
The Company has significant influence in Founders and reports its investment using the 
equity method of accounting. The Company’s share of the financial position of Founders is 
shown as a net liability of $1,714,771 included in investments in and advances to 
unconsolidated real estate entities. The financial position of Founders at December 31, 
2022 included total assets of $16,787,025 and total liabilities of $19,648. For the year 
ended December 31, 2022, Founders had income of $2,143,404, of which the Company’s 
share was $2,143,404, which is included in equity in net gain of other investees. Income 
and loss are allocated in accordance with the underlying operating agreements, which may 
be different than the ownership percentage disclosed. 
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CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 

 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 
 

NOTE 3: TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES AND EQUITY OWNED ENTITIES (continued) 
 

GRJ NJ-PA Portfolio LLC (“GRJ”) 
 

The Company owns a 3.0253% interest in GRJ. The accompanying consolidated 
statement of operations includes the Company’s share of its equity in the net income 
reported by GRJ in 2022. The Company's net investment in GRJ represents its share of 
the cumulative equity in the investee.  
 
During 2022, GRJ was sold. For the year ended December 31, 2022, GRJ had net income 
of $8,425,565, of which the Company’s share was $146,295, which is included in equity in 
net gain of other investees. Income and loss are allocated in accordance with the 
underlying operating agreement, which may be different than the ownership percentage 
disclosed. 

 
CRP Seattle Warehouse I LLC (“Seattle”) 

 
The Company owns a 5.0106% interest in Seattle. The accompanying consolidated 
statement of operations includes the Company’s share of its equity in the net loss reported 
by Seattle in 2022. The Company's net investment in Seattle represents its share of the 
cumulative equity in the investee.  

 
The Company has significant influence in Seattle and reports its investment using the 
equity method of accounting. The Company’s share of the financial position of Seattle is 
shown as a net liability of $52,424 included in investments in and advances to 
unconsolidated real estate entities. The financial position of Seattle at December 31, 2021 
included total assets of $1,408,287 and total liabilities of $5,000. For the year ended 
December 31, 2022, Seattle had net income of $19,391, of which the Company’s share 
was $972, which is included in equity in net gain of other investees. Income and loss are 
allocated in accordance with the underlying operating agreement, which may be different 
than the ownership percentage disclosed. 
 
CRP NoMad Owner LLC 

 
In its role of sponsor and managing member, Castellan agreed to make 2 loans to help 
finance the development of the 24-story residential rental property located at 7-9 East 30th 
Street as follows: 
 
 $6,025,000 loan that bears interest at the same rate as the property’s construction 

loan.  As of December 31, the interest rate was 7.5%.  The loan is due upon the earlier 
of the conversion of the property’s construction loan to permanent financing or sale of 
the property.  
 

 An additional loan in the amount of $5,150,584 as of December 31, 2022, that bears 
interest at 7%.  The loan is due upon the earlier of the conversion of the property’s 
construction loan to permanent financing or sale of the property. 
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CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 

 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 
 

NOTE 3: TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES AND EQUITY OWNED ENTITIES (continued)  
 

Castellan also advances funds from time to time to its sponsored real estate investments.  
The advances are short term in nature and are due on demand.  
 
Additionally as of December 31, 2022, the Company is owed $265,000 from CRP 
Osbourne LLC for construction fees, which is included in fees receivable. 

 
 

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had the following investment balances with 
affiliated entities, as detailed below: 
  
 CRP NoMad Owner LLC                                        $ 11,175,584 
             Affordable                                  (4,958,472)   

Castellan NYC Partners LLC             736,704 
CREIF II (GP) LLC            (513,422) 
CREIF (GP) LLC                  9,562 
CRP Founders Capital LLC        (1,714,771) 
Other affiliates            2,651,675  

   Total         $  7,386,860 
 
NOTE 4:            INVESTMENT IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 

The Company is a general partner (GP) and owns less than 1% economic interest in the 
below affordable housing entities. These have been deemed to be VIEs in which the 
Company is not the VIEs' primary beneficiary. 
 
The entities are involved in developing, owning and operating Low Income Housing Tax 
Credit (LIHTC) affordable housing projects. As GP, the Company is involved in the day to 
day activities of the entities which primarily includes construction overview and managing 
the project. However, the other limited partners have protective rights and the GP cannot 
take any decision which most significantly impacts the entity's economic performance 
without the consent of limited partners and hence company is not the primary beneficial 
owner. 

 
Name of Entity Total Assets Total Liabilities 

CRP Redwood View LP $ 18,474,029 $ 15,367,132 
CRP The Meridian LP $ 22,903,194 $ 20,669,682 
CRP Konocti Gardens LP $ 17,601,521 $ 14,645,446 
CRP Shiloh Terrace LP $ 27,761,360 $ 24,487,501 
CRP St. Stephen’s Apartment LP  $ 17,435,211 $ 15,358,363 
CRP Valencia Pointe LP $ 50,244,137 $ 46,350,767 
CRP Worthington Del Sol LP $ 13,264,499 $ 12,486,460 
CRP Worthington La Luna Family 
Apartments LP 

  $ 18,458,820 $ 17,522,360 

CRP Napa Cove Apartments LP $ 17,217,198 $ 14,312,003 
CRP Senator Conness Apartments LP * $ 13,959,416 $   9,499,630 

*Note: Company is a 50% co-GP in Senator Conness Apartments LP.  
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CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
 

NOTE 4:            INVESTMENT IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING (continued) 
 

GP is the guarantor of the low-income housing tax credits, the operating deficit and 
construction loan. The tax credit guarantee and the operating deficit will expire at the end 
of the 15 year compliance period. The construction loan guarantee will expire at the 
maturity date of the construction loan. The Company believes that the likelihood it will have 
to fund pursuant to the guarantees is remote. 

 
NOTE 5: REVOLVING CREDIT LINE 
 

On February 26, 2015, the Company entered into a revolving credit agreement with Sterling 
National Bank in the amount of $1,000,000. As a result of subsequent modifications, the 
amended agreement has an extended maturity date of February 1, 2024, and the amount 
available was increased to $8,000,000. Interest on the outstanding and unpaid principal 
amount of the revolving credit line is calculated at a rate per annum equal to the Prime 
Rate plus .75%, with a floor interest rate of 6.5%. As of December 31, 2022, there was an 
outstanding amount due of $3,000,000. Interest expense on the revolving credit line for the 
year ended December 31, 2022 was $157,681.  
 
The revolving credit agreement contains a covenant whereby the Company must maintain 
a net worth of $4,000,000. Management believes the Company was in compliance with the 
terms and conditions of the agreement. 

 
NOTE 6: OBLIGATIONS UNDER OPERATING LEASE 
 

The Company leases its corporate office under an operating lease which expires on 
December 31, 2029. Minimum rent is recognized as an expense on the straight-line method 
over the term of the lease with an escalation clause. This has resulted in a deferred rent 
payable of $224,871 as of December 31, 2022, which is reflected in accounts payable on 
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Minimum future rental payments under the 
non-cancelable operating lease consist of the following: 
 
Year ending December 31, 
  2023              $   369,015 

2024              $   369,015 
2025              $   369,015 
2026              $   369,015 
2027              $   369,015  

         Thereafter              $   615,023 
 
The Company makes monthly payments on the lease for rent as well as additional 
payments to cover utilities, increases in operating expenses, and real estate taxes during 
the year. The Company paid a total of $435,068 in rent and related expenses for the year 
ended December 31, 2022. 
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CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
 
 
NOTE 7: DISTRIBUTIONS TO MEMBERS 
 

From time to time, the Company shall determine the amount, if any, by which its funds then 
on hand exceed its reasonable working capital needs, including reasonable reserves for 
future Company obligations. Any excess funds shall be distributed to the members in 
accordance with the Operating Agreement. 
 
The net cash flow for any particular period shall be distributed to the members in the 
following order of priority: 
 

a. First, to the members holding all the outstanding member loans on a pari-
passu basis (in proportion to the relative outstanding amounts of the accrued 
interest and outstanding principal balance of each member loan). 
 

b. Next, to the members in proportion to their respective membership interests. 
 
During 2022, the Company made distributions in the amount of $2,426,167 to its members. 

 
NOTE 8: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 
Management has evaluated, for potential recognition and disclosure, events subsequent 
to the date of the consolidated balance sheet through May 3, 2023, the date these 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 
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CBIZ  
88 Froehlich Farm Boulevard 
Woodbury, NY 11797 
Ph: 516.992.5900 
Fx: 516.992.5800 
 

 
February 7, 2024 

Castellan Holdings LLC & Affiliated Entities 
c/o Joel Hammer 
122 East 42nd Street, Suite 1902 
New York, NY 10168 

Dear Mr. Hammer: 

CBIZ Marks Paneth ("CBIZ", "we" or "us") is pleased to provide Castellan Holdings LLC & Affiliated Entities ("you") 
with professional tax return preparation services, and any agreed-upon accounting services support, for the year 
ended December 31, 2023 and/or fiscal year ending in 2024. This engagement letter, and the attached Standard 
Terms and Conditions of Services ("STC"), embodies the entire agreement ("Agreement") with you regarding CBIZ's 
tax return preparation services. Please review this Agreement, sign a copy of it where indicated below, and return 
the signed Agreement to us. 

This Agreement is binding on all persons and entities for whom these services are rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement, and each signatory below represents and warrants that he or she has the legal power and authority to 
act on behalf of and to bind those persons and entities. 

Tax Return Preparation Services 

We will prepare the Federal income tax return and any state income tax return(s) that we have specified in "Schedule 
1" attached at the end of this letter (regardless of whether this is for one person or entity or for multiple persons or 
entities (including subsidiaries), or any combination thereof). If you would like us to prepare additional returns (e.g., 
other states, gift or excise tax), or prepare any returns for related taxpayers not contemplated by this Agreement, 
please include such returns and additional taxpayers on the attached "Schedule 2" and return it to us with your 
signed Agreement. If you choose to add taxpayers, jurisdictions or other types of returns, this will increase the 
amount of our fees and expenses described below. 

We will advise you if we believe, based on the information you provide us, an income or franchise tax return should 
be filed in any other jurisdiction, but we will not prepare any such tax return without your approval. It is important that 
you inform us of any new or expanded activities that could trigger filing requirements in additional state(s), such as 
the acquisition of property or the hiring of employees in a new state. Activities of a pass-through entity in which you 
are an owner, partner, member or beneficiary may also trigger additional state tax filings, so please contact us if you 
have acquired an interest in a new pass-through entity over the past year. 

This engagement does not include the preparation of: 

(a) Forms or calculations related to any quarterly federal or state estimated tax payment obligations (or 
similar withholding obligations) associated with the tax returns covered by this engagement letter; or 

(b) Forms or calculations related to any federal or state applications for extension of time to file the tax 
returns covered by this engagement letter. 
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Our fees for the preparation of these forms or calculations are included in any fees quoted in this engagement letter. 

We may prepare federal or state applications for extension of time to file the tax returns covered by this engagement 
letter at our discretion when such forms reflect no amount due and are limited in number (“zero extension forms”). 
These will be billed in accordance with the fee paragraph below unless the parties agree to a separate arrangement. 

Because of their special purpose, nature and format, income tax returns do not constitute financial statements 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The tax returns should be used only for 
income tax purposes and must not be used as a substitute for financial statements. Tax return preparation services 
do not constitute accounting or auditing services and are not designed to discover fraud, defalcations or other 
irregularities, should any exist. 

We will use our professional judgment in resolving issues regarding reporting positions on your returns whenever 
the tax law is unclear or uncertain, or where there may be conflicts between the taxing authorities’ interpretations of 
the law and other supportable positions.  Unless otherwise instructed by you, we will resolve such questions in your 
favor, as long as it is consistent with the law and our professional duties and obligations.  We are prohibited from 
signing any tax return containing a tax position that in our professional judgment does not conform to the applicable 
laws and standards of our profession.  Should you ask us to sign a tax return that contains such a position, we 
reserve the right to cease work on your returns, and we accept no responsibility for any damages that may occur as 
a result.  We cannot provide any assurance that any tax positions taken will not be challenged, and if challenged, 
that the taxing authority will not be successful.  If a taxing authority contests a position taken on your returns, it may 
assess additional tax, interest and penalties, for which we assume no responsibility.  There are numerous tax credits, 
exclusions and deductions for which a detailed review of business or investment activities would be required to 
determine their availability. Such a detailed review is beyond the scope of services of this Agreement. If you would 
like us to undertake a detailed review of your activities to identify tax credits, exclusions or deductions, please contact 
us to discuss the terms of an engagement for these services.  For the sake of clarity, should CBIZ agree to respond 
to inquiries from you or a third-party auditor in connection with any type of vendor audit, examination, verification, 
“cold comfort letter” or other review (a “Vendor Audit”), you agree to pay CBIZ for all of our time, billed at our then 
current rates, and expenses incurred in responding to such Vendor Audit. 

We will prepare your tax returns based on the information that you provide.  You represent and warrant that the 
information you are supplying to us is accurate and complete to the best of your knowledge as required for the 
preparation of complete and accurate tax returns.  You have final responsibility for the tax returns and, therefore, 
you should review them carefully before you sign them.  You should retain all documents that form the basis for the 
information presented on your tax returns.  Please refer to Sections D and L of the STC for additional information. 

Any tax advice we offer in conjunction with the preparation of your tax returns (“tax advice”) is based on our 
assumption (without independent verification) that all of the representations and all of the originals, copies, and 
signatures of documents reviewed by us are accurate, true, and authentic.  Our tax advice is based on the law, 
regulations, cases, rulings, and other tax authority in effect as of the date the services were rendered.  If there are 
subsequent changes in or to the foregoing tax authorities (for which we shall have no responsibility to advise you), 
such changes may result in our advice being rendered invalid or may necessitate (upon your request) a 
reconsideration of the advice. 

In addition to the professional fees discussed below, you agree to reimburse us for our direct and reasonable out-
of-pocket expenses related to travel and any required or other approved expenditures incurred in connection with 
our services. We will also assess a 5% technology and administrative fee to cover the cost of technology, processing, 
and other administrative expenses. Please refer to Section E of the STC for additional information regarding fees. 

Our fees for these tax services will be based on the fee quote contained in this paragraph. Based on the information 
provided by you to us regarding the nature and scope of this engagement, the fee will be listed on Schedule 1. 
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Changes in the scope of our services, including preparation of additional returns, researching unanticipated technical 
issues, or performing unanticipated bookkeeping work as a precondition to tax return preparation will result in an 
increase in this fee, which we will discuss with you prior to performing the additional services. This quote is also 
dependent upon the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by you to us regarding the nature and 
scope of this engagement, as well as upon anticipated cooperation from you or your personnel, and the ready 
availability of all information necessary for us to complete the engagement. If the information provided by you to us 
regarding the nature and scope of this engagement is not accurate or complete, we do not receive the anticipated 
cooperation of your personnel, or if the information necessary for us to complete this engagement is not readily 
available to us, we will discuss this with you and arrive at a revised fee quote. 

Additional Services 

You are providing your primary contact, financial and business information in order to permit CBIZ to offer you tax 
and business suggestions when CBIZ deems it appropriate or advantageous to you.  You confirm that this service, 
while creating no duty on the part of CBIZ, is a benefit to you that is separate from and in addition to any tax return 
preparation services. 

While it is our intention to suggest tax and business ideas or services to you, this engagement generally does not 
include the rendering of any specific tax consulting services.  However, we may provide, at your request, limited tax 
consulting services including, but not limited to, tax projections, responding to inquiries or tax examinations by any 
governmental agency or tax authority, assisting you in maintaining your accounting and depreciation records, 
reviewing proposed or completed transactions, or tax research in connection with these matters.  These limited 
consulting services will be subject to the STC and our fees for these additional services will be based upon our 
prevailing hourly rates effective at the time the services are provided, the time required for work performed, the 
complexity of any technical issues addressed unless otherwise agreed to by both parties. 

If you ask us to perform other services that are not covered by this, or any other, engagement letter, you agree that 
any such engagements or services performed as a result of such requests will be subject to the STC. 

Assessing the Impact of New or Recent Legislation 

Due to the complexity and ambiguity of numerous recently enacted tax laws, the IRS will continue to issue new rules 
and guidance on a regular basis.  As a result, there may be aspects of these laws, any legislation enacted after the 
date of this letter, and interpretive guidance that could affect your current or future years’ taxes and reporting.  We 
are happy to help you assess the impact of these laws or guidance on you or your businesses.  Unless otherwise 
indicated, these services are beyond the scope of any tax return preparation or consulting services described herein.  
If you request such services, we will bill you for the services at our prevailing hourly rates. Such services will be 
subject to the STC. 

Conditions and Limitations 

To assist you in understanding the scope of our services and other matters related to our preparation of your tax 
returns, we have attached a copy of the STC. All of our tax return preparation services are expressly subject to these 
conditions and limitations, and by signing below, you agree to them. 

If this letter accurately describes the arrangement for our services to you, please sign the enclosed copy of this letter 
and return it to us. 
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We want to thank you for using CBIZ and look forward to a long and mutually satisfying relationship. 

Very truly yours, 

CBIZSIGN1 CBIZSIGN2 
Andrew Kubrick, Managing Director 
CBIZ 

 

The services and arrangements described in this letter are in accordance with our understanding and are acceptable 
to us. 

Castellan Holdings LLC & Affiliated Entities 

By CLIENTSIGN1 CLIENTSIGN2 

Joel Hammer 

 CLIENTTITLE 

Date CLIENTDATE 
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Schedule 1 

(List of Tax Returns to be Prepared) 

 

Entities Fee 

CRP Rivington Street Redevelopment LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Rivington LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP East 28th Street A LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP East 28th Street LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP West 135th Street A LLC 
       
5,500  

CRP West 135th B LLC  
       
5,500  

CRP West 135th Street LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Evergreen LLC 
       
2,500  

CRP Fifth Avenue C LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP/CIX NYC 30th Street LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP 7-9 East 30th Joinder LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP 7 East 30th A LLC (all three Fairworths) 
       
4,000  

CRP NoMad LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP East 30th Street LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP 7 East 30th Street C LLC FKA CRP St. Nicholas York LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP 7 EAST 30TH A LLC FKA CRP Fairworth LLC 
       
4,000  

7 East 30th B West 111th C FKA CRP 184th St. Nicholas LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Sunrise Highway LLC 
       
5,500  

CRP Wetherole A LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Wetherole FDB 1031 LLC 
       
4,000  
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CRP Wetherole LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Chambers Steet D LLC FKA CRP Park Avenue LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Chambers Street LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Uptown Portfolio Investors LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP St Marks Place A LLC  
       
4,000  

CRP St Marks Place LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP St Marks 117 West 141 1031 LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Clarendon A LLC (Uptown II) 
       
7,000  

CRP Clarendon B LLC (Uptown II B) 
       
4,000  

CRP Clarendon C LLC (Uptown III) 
       
4,000  

CRP Clarendon LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP West 111th Street Owner LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP West 111th Street LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP 515 West 111th B LLC FKA CRP Broadway C LLC  
       
4,000  

515 West 111th Street Inc. 
       
4,000  

CRP 515 West 111TH A LLC FKA CRP St. Nicholas York B LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP 515 West 111th LLC  
       
4,000  

Castellan NYC Partners LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Founders Capital LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Affordable Housing and Development LLC 
    
10,000  

CRP Affordable Housing and Development Fund LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Affordable Housing Fund LLC 
       
4,000  

CIX CRP Affordable Fund LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Affordable (Feeder) Inc. 
       
5,000  
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CRP Affordable Housing Fund (Feeder) LLC 
       
5,000  

Castellan Holdings LLC 
    
15,000  

Castellan Holdings Manager LLC 
       
2,000  

CRP West 151st Street B LLC 
       
4,000  

3231 Greenpoint LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP West 151st Street LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP West 164th Street B  LLC  
       
4,000  

CREIF (GP) LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP GRJ LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Cloverly LLC 
       
4,000  

CRP Seattle Warehouse 1 LLC 
       
4,000  

Castellan EP LLC 
       
4,000  

CREIF (GP) II LLC 
       
4,000  
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Schedule 2 

 (Additional Tax Returns to be Prepared, List Here) 

Taxpayer Additional Tax Returns 
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STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICES 

A. Services 

These Standard Terms and Conditions of Services ("STC") and the engagement letter to which these terms are 
appended constitute the entire agreement between you and CBIZ for the tax services to be rendered (the 
"Agreement"). As used herein, the term "tax services", includes only the tax services as described in the attached 
engagement letter. All decisions in connection with the implementation of CBIZ's tax services in connection with this 
engagement shall be your responsibility. The tax services contemplated by this Agreement are not intended to 
include any Personal Financial Planning Services as defined in the AICPA's Statement on Standards in Personal 
Financial Planning Services. Furthermore, unless explicitly described in the Engagement Letter and agreed to by 
CBIZ, our services do not include providing any opinion, attestation, certification, advice, or guidance regarding your 
technical or functional cybersecurity systems, programs, policies or procedures, or any method you employ for using, 
storing, transmitting, or protecting sensitive information. If you desire such services, they may be provided under a 
separate agreement. Unless otherwise prohibited by law, your submission of your income tax information to us 
constitutes acceptance of the engagement letter and STC for this engagement. 

B. Third Parties and Internal Use 

Except as otherwise agreed, all tax services hereunder shall be solely for your internal purposes and use, and this 
engagement does not create privity between CBIZ and any person or party (a "third party") other than you. This 
engagement is not intended for the express or implied benefit of any third party. No third party is entitled to rely, in 
any manner or for any purpose, on the tax services provided by CBIZ. In order to protect CBIZ from any unauthorized 
reliance or claims, you further agree, with respect to the tax services provided by CBIZ and any associated 
deliverable, that you will not distribute, make available, circulate, quote to or allow use by any third party without 
including the following written disclaimer: “By accepting access to this document or information you acknowledge 
that such access creates no rights or privity between you and CBIZ, and you acknowledge and agree that you have 
no right to rely on this information and assume all risks in doing so.” However, nothing in this paragraph shall be 
construed as limiting or restricting such disclosure for your tax return filing purposes. You agree to hold CBIZ 
harmless from any claims or liability that may arise out of or result from your disclosure of, or from CBIZ complying 
with your request to disclose or share, your information with third-parties. 

C. Confidentiality 

CBIZ will maintain the confidentiality of your information in accordance with applicable professional standards. CBIZ 
will use reasonable precautions to protect your "Confidential Information," which means (i) information contained in 
your internal financial and business records, (ii) “tax return information” as defined in Treasury Regulation § 
301.7216-1(b)(3), and (iii) other information concerning you or your business that is marked "confidential" or 
otherwise identified as "confidential" in writing at the time of disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Confidential 
Information does not include information (i) that is or becomes publicly available or generally known to persons in 
your industry without breach of our obligations under this section, (ii) received by us after the termination of the 
Engagement Letter, or (iii) is deidentified or anonymized by CBIZ and separated from the client's data. 

We may disclose your Confidential Information to our employees, independent contractors and affiliates, including 
their employees and independent contractors, as necessary to provide our services. You authorize CBIZ to engage 
such affiliates and third parties to provide services on our behalf and, in this context, provide them with access to 
your Confidential Information. Without limiting the foregoing, we may in certain circumstances disclose your 
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Confidential Information to software vendors for the purpose of obtaining technical support in the course of providing 
services to you, but it is our policy to require these vendors to maintain the confidentiality of confidential information 
disclosed to them. We may also disclose Confidential Information if required by a court or governmental agency, but 
we will use commercially reasonable efforts to inform you, unless prohibited by law, prior to disclosure. To protect 
your Confidential Information, you agree that you will not disclose any Confidential Information to us except as we 
request or as necessary for us to provide our services. 

We may use subcontractors, which may be located outside the U.S., to assist us in the process of preparing your 
tax returns. We have dedicated teams of professionals to assist in serving you. CBIZ is sensitive to concerns 
regarding the handling of personal and confidential information and can share further information regarding how we 
and our subcontractors protect your information upon request. In order to safeguard the confidentiality of client 
information, both CBIZ and any subcontractors we may use have established internal policies, procedures and 
controls designed to maintain data security and protect privacy. We will not utilize a subcontractor without a written 
confidentiality agreement in place to prevent the unauthorized release of client information. 

We may use the information you provide to us in connection with this engagement (“Information”) to check for 
conflicts of interest and to verify independence. We may disclose the Information to any company, or any employee 
of such company, that is owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by CBIZ, Inc. (“Affiliate”). Information may also 
be used in CBIZ’s efforts to improve the services provided, develop additional services we can offer, and to provide 
you with access to the different types of services offered by our Affiliates, including where appropriate, tax consulting, 
general business consulting, retirement or estate planning, business succession, asset acquisition or disposition, 
payroll, benefits, insurance, wealth management and investing, human resources, accounting, valuation, internal 
audit, mergers and acquisitions, and technology consulting, or to prepare subsequent years’ engagement letters. 
You have the right to limit the Information you wish to have used or disclosed. We may use the Information to compile 
lists in order to provide you with tax or business information, newsletters or other correspondence determined from 
the Information to be relevant to you or your industry, and information on other products or services offered by our 
Affiliates. We may also use and disclose the Information as subsequently requested or directed by you. We will not 
disclose Information to any person who is not an Affiliate without obtaining a separate consent to such disclosure 
except (a) as otherwise specifically provided herein, or (b) at your request or direction. Unless you specify otherwise, 
the consent to the use and disclosure of the Information provided herein will be valid until the statute of limitations 
to assess any tax by the Internal Revenue Service with respect to the tax return has expired. 

Periodically, we may perform benchmarking studies on an industry basis to provide additional value-added 
information to our clients. You consent to our sharing of your Confidential Information with third parties for these 
purposes. Such benchmarking studies will be general in nature and the information provided will not contain any 
identifying features that can be attributed to you. We may also aggregate and share internally certain deidentified or 
anonymized data in our efforts to improve the services we offer and provide to our clients. 

D. Client Responsibilities 

You are responsible for making financial records and related information available to us to enable us to provide the 
tax services described herein, but you agree to provide only the information that is necessary and that we request. 
CBIZ will have no responsibility for information, records, or data you provide to us that we did not request, including 
data outside the scope of the engagement. CBIZ shall be entitled to assume and rely on, without independent 
verification, the accuracy of all representations, assumptions, information and data that you and your representatives 
provide to CBIZ. All assumptions, representations, information and data to be supplied by you and your 
representatives will be complete and accurate. You represent and warrant that you maintain proper records and 
otherwise satisfy the criteria to claim and substantiate deductions for meals, entertainment, travel, gifts, charitable 
contributions, and vehicle use (if applicable) as required by federal law. The rules regarding the deductibility of 
various expenses, e.g., charitable contributions, continue to grow more onerous. Please consult the most recent 
versions of IRS Publications if you have questions, or consult with us. CBIZ may use information and data furnished 
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by others; however, CBIZ shall not be responsible for, and CBIZ shall provide no assurance regarding, the accuracy 
and completeness of any such information or data. 

Except as specifically provided herein, CBIZ shall not assume any responsibility for any financial reporting with 
respect to the tax services provided hereunder. You acknowledge and understand that CBIZ is providing no attest 
services of any kind, scope or nature whatsoever, as part of this engagement. CBIZ shall have no responsibility to 
address any legal matters or questions of law in connection with this engagement. 

You shall cooperate with CBIZ in the performance by CBIZ of its tax services hereunder, including, without limitation, 
providing CBIZ with reasonable facilities and timely access to necessary data, information, and your personnel. You 
shall be responsible for the performance of your personnel and agents and for the accuracy and completeness of 
all data and information provided to CBIZ for purposes of the performance by CBIZ of its tax services hereunder. 

E. Fees and Payment; Subpoenas and Post-Engagement Inquiries

Except to the extent specifically addressed in the applicable Engagement Letter or Project Addendum, the following 
terms in this Section E will apply. In the case of a conflict between these terms and the terms of the applicable 
Engagement Letter or Project Addendum, the Engagement Letter or Project Addendum will control. Our invoices for 
these consulting services will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. The 
invoices may designate CBIZ, Inc. as the receiving party for ACH and wire payments. If properly submitted invoices 
are not paid within 30 days of the invoice date, a late charge may accrue at the lesser of (i) 1% per month or (ii) the 
highest rate allowable by law. Without limiting its rights or remedies, CBIZ shall have the right to halt or terminate 
entirely its consulting services until full payment is received on such past due invoices. In the case of nonpayment, 
you will be liable for any and all costs and fees incurred by CBIZ to collect the fees contemplated herein. The failure 
of CBIZ to exercise its right to suspend or terminate work shall not constitute a waiver by CBIZ of any right or remedy, 
and CBIZ will bear no liability to you if work is suspended or terminated because of nonpayment. In the event of a 
termination of this engagement pursuant to section F below, you agree to compensate CBIZ for consulting services 
performed and expenses incurred through the effective date of termination. All outstanding bills will be paid in full 
prior to the release of any information or prior to final product or service delivery, unless other arrangements to pay 
your bill have been agreed upon. 

F. Term

This engagement shall conclude on the completion and delivery of CBIZ’s tax services hereunder. This engagement 
may be terminated by either party at any time by giving written notice to the other party not less than 10 business 
days before the effective date of termination. The following sections of this Agreement will survive completion of the 
Services or its earlier termination, and will apply to any and all services provided by CBIZ in the future, unless and 
until these STC are superseded by a new Engagement Letter and STC: Fees and Payment; Subpoenas and Post-
Engagement Inquiries, Confidentiality, Third Parties and Internal Use, Property and Record Retention, Employment 
Offers to Our Personnel, Dispute Resolution and Jury Trial Waiver, Governing Law and Severability, Fees and 
Payment, Limitation on Damages, Indemnification and such other provisions of this Agreement which by their nature 
are intended to survive. 

G. General

This Agreement forms the entire agreement between the parties relating to the services, and replaces and 
supersedes any previous proposals, correspondence, understandings or other communications whether written or 
oral, unless specifically incorporated by this Agreement. This Agreement may only be amended or modified in a 
writing executed by both parties. These STC may be incorporated by reference into, and shall therefore become a 
part of, any subsequent letter of reengagement. Should our STC change in subsequent years, we will notify you of 
those changes and solicit your agreement thereto. Such changes will then be considered an enforceable part of this 
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Agreement from that point forward. Handwritten changes to this Agreement will have no effect and will not constitute 
a counteroffer. This agreement shall be binding on all transferees, successors and assigns of both CBIZ and you. 
Neither party shall be liable to the other for any delay or failure to perform any of the services or obligations set forth 
in this Agreement due to causes beyond its reasonable control. Each party acknowledges that this was a negotiated 
contract, and as a result, no part of this contract shall be construed against either party based on drafting of the 
contract. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid under any applicable statute or rule of law, it 
is to that extent to be deemed omitted, and the balance of the Agreement shall remain enforceable. For evidentiary 
purposes, an electronic scan (e.g., PDF file) of this executed Engagement Letter and these STC shall be deemed 
by the parties to be a true, authenticated document which is admissible into evidence. 

No delay or omission by either party in exercising any right or power shall impair such right or power or be construed 
to be a waiver. A waiver by either party of any of the covenants to be performed by the other or any breach thereof 
shall not be construed to be a waiver of any succeeding breach or of any other covenant. No waiver or discharge 
shall be valid unless in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the party against whom such waiver or 
discharge is sought to be enforced. 

You acknowledge and agree that you will be solely responsible for any and all applicable sales and use tax due in 
connection with the services provided under this Agreement. 

These STC contemplate that this engagement may involve the preparation of multiple returns for multiple parties, 
and those parties may be any combination of individuals, trusts, or entities. If the only tax services covered by this 
engagement are being offered exclusively to individuals, trusts or entities, these STC should be interpreted 
accordingly. The person signing the engagement letter represents and warrants that he or she has express authority 
to bind any individual, trust or entity for whom services are being rendered under this engagement to the terms of 
this engagement letter and to these STC. Furthermore, Signatory warrants and represents that he or she will provide 
a copy of the “NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES CBIZ, INC. and its subsidiaries” to each person identified herein 
for whom we are preparing a Form 1040. 

The use of the singular or plural may be used herein for ease of presentation, but should be read to include the other 
where appropriate. 

It is common practice for professional service firms such as ours, in discussions with prospective clients, to make 
reference to prior work, and we would like to have the opportunity to do so with respect to this assignment. Unless 
you inform CBIZ to the contrary, on completion of this assignment we understand that we will be entitled to make 
reference to having undertaken it, including your name and logo, if applicable, and a general description of the nature 
of the engagement, in CBIZ newsletters and publications and discussions with third parties regarding work 
opportunities. 

H. Foreign Account / Relationship Reporting 

Any U.S. citizen or resident (including individuals, corporations, partnerships, trusts and estates) who has a financial 
interest in, or signature or other authority over, "foreign financial accounts" with an aggregate value exceeding 
$10,000 at any time during the prior calendar year, is required to report that relationship to the U.S. Department of 
the Treasury on FinCEN Form 114, Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts Report (FBAR). Filing requirements also 
apply to those with direct or indirect control over a foreign or domestic entity with foreign financial accounts, even if 
the taxpayer does not have foreign financial accounts of its own. Because persons with a financial interest and 
persons with signature authority are required to submit filings, a single account may require multiple filings. For 
example, a corporate-owned foreign account would require filings by the corporation and by the individual corporate 
officers with signature authority. FinCEN Form 114 must be filed electronically by April 15, but the due date of the 
filing can be extended until October 15. 
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"Foreign financial accounts", for purposes of this requirement, are financial accounts located in a foreign jurisdiction 
and may include, but are not limited to, bank accounts, mutual funds, securities or brokerage accounts, life 
insurance, credit cards, retirement plans and interests in partnerships, trusts or other pass-through entities having 
foreign accounts. 

In addition, the Internal Revenue Service also requires information reporting under applicable Internal Revenue 
Code sections and related regulations, and the respective IRS tax forms are due when your income tax return is 
due, including extensions. The IRS reporting requirements are in addition to the U.S. Department of the Treasury 
reporting requirements stated above. Therefore, if you fall into one of the categories enumerated below, or if you 
have any direct or indirect foreign interests, you may be required to file applicable IRS forms. 

You are an individual or entity with ownership of foreign financial assets and meet the specified criteria (Form 
8938); 

You are an officer, director or shareholder with respect to certain foreign corporations (Form 5471); 
You are a foreign-owned U.S. corporation or foreign corporation engaged in a U.S. trade or business (Form 

5472); 
You are a U.S. transferor of property to a foreign corporation (Form 926); 
You are a U.S. person with an interest in a foreign trust (Forms 3520 and 3520-A); or 
You are a U.S. person with interests in a foreign partnership (Form 8865). 

 
Failure to timely file the appropriate forms with the U.S. Department of the Treasury and the Internal Revenue Service 
may result in substantial monetary penalties. By signing this Agreement, you accept responsibility for informing us 
if you believe that you may have foreign reporting requirements with the U.S. Department of the Treasury and/or 
Internal Revenue Service. We assume no liability for penalties associated with the failure to file, or untimely filing, of 
any of these forms. 

We are able to assist you in the preparation of these filings if you request. These services are beyond the scope of 
normal tax return preparation and, unless we prepared these forms for you last year, these services will result in an 
additional fee beyond what is otherwise quoted in this Agreement. 

I. Independent Contractor 

It is understood and agreed that each of the parties hereto is an independent contractor and that neither party is, 
nor shall be considered to be, an agent, partner, joint venturer, or representative of the other. Neither party shall act 
or represent itself, directly or by implication, as an agent of the other or in any manner assume or create any 
obligation of behalf of, or in the name of, the other. 

J. Employment Offers to Our Personnel 

During the term of this Agreement and for a period of one year thereafter, the parties agree not to hire, solicit, or 
attempt to solicit, whether directly or indirectly, the services of any staff, employee, consultant, or subcontractor of 
the other party without the prior written consent of that party. Violation of this provision shall, in addition to other 
relief, require the breaching party to compensate the non-breaching party with 100 percent of the solicited person's 
annual compensation. 

K. Safe Environment 

You agree that in any circumstances wherein CBIZ personnel are required to work at any premises or location 
operated or controlled by you, you will take all actions and precautions necessary to ensure that your premises are 
free from all known or reasonably foreseeable safety hazards, and all forms of harassment and discrimination. 
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L. Property and Record Retention 

The workpapers and files which CBIZ generates in connection with this engagement are the property of CBIZ. We 
do not retain any original client records and will return those to you at the completion of this engagement. It is your 
responsibility to retain and protect your records for possible future use, including, but not limited to, potential 
examination by any government or regulatory agencies. All CBIZ workpapers and files will be retained pursuant to 
CBIZ’s document retention policy. Your need to retain documents may differ from the CBIZ document retention 
policy for a myriad of legal reasons having nothing to do with this engagement. Accordingly, you should contact your 
own legal counsel should you have a question about document retention. CBIZ retains copies of Confidential 
Information and Information received in connection with the relevant engagement in its confidential working papers 
in accordance with applicable professional standards, and in the case of a conflict between these terms and any 
other agreement between the parties this term shall govern. 

M. Electronic Communication 

In the interest of being responsive and facilitating our services to you, we may communicate electronically over the 
Internet, for example, using email and portals to transfer files. Such communications may include information that is 
confidential or otherwise sensitive to you. CBIZ employs controls and processes designed to maintain the security 
of data in transit and at rest, but such controls and processes cannot prevent all unauthorized or criminal activity 
resulting in access to communications or data. While we will use our best efforts to keep such communications 
secure in accordance with our obligations under applicable laws and professional standards, we have no control 
over the unauthorized interception of these communications once they have been sent. 

Should you request that we use a public or third-party electronic file transfer service in connection with this 
engagement, you acknowledge that CBIZ makes no representations or warranties regarding the security of data 
transmitted to and from, or stored by, that public or third-party electronic file transfer service and you assume 
responsibility for all use of such service. You agree that CBIZ is not responsible for any loss, or unauthorized 
interception, of data transmitted to and from, or stored by, that public or third-party electronic file transfer service. 

N. Governing Law and Severability 

These STC, the engagement letter to which these terms are appended, and any and all claims relating to or arising 
out of this Agreement or related to CBIZ's services, whether sounding in contract, tort, or otherwise, shall be 
governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the state of Ohio, with venue and jurisdiction in Ohio. If 
any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable, such provision 
shall not affect the other provisions, but such unenforceable provision shall be deemed modified to the extent 
necessary to render it enforceable, preserving to the fullest extent permissible the intent of the parties set forth in 
this Agreement. 

O. Dispute Resolution and Jury Trial Waiver 

Because there are inherent difficulties in recalling or preserving information as the period after an engagement 
increases, you agree that, notwithstanding any applicable statute of limitations, you must file any claim based on 
this engagement in court within twelve (12) months after performance of our services under the relevant 
engagement. 

If any dispute, controversy or claim arises in connection with the performance or breach of this agreement, except 
with respect to the nonpayment or collection of CBIZ's fees, either party may, upon written notice to the other party, 
request that the matter be mediated. Such mediation will be conducted by a mediator appointed by and pursuant to 
the rules of the American Arbitration Association or such other neutral facilitator acceptable to both parties. Both 
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parties will exert their best efforts to discuss with each other in good faith their respective positions in an attempt to 
finally resolve such dispute or controversy. 

Each party may disclose any facts to the other party or to the mediator which it, in good faith, considers necessary 
to resolve the matter. All such discussions, however, will be for the purpose of assisting in settlement efforts and will 
not be admissible in any subsequent litigation against the disclosing party. Except as agreed by both parties, the 
mediator will keep confidential all information disclosed during negotiations. The mediator may not act as a witness 
for either party in any subsequent arbitration between the parties. 

The mediation proceedings will conclude within sixty days from receipt of the written notice unless extended or 
terminated sooner by mutual consent. Each party will be responsible for its own expenses. The fees and expenses 
of the mediator, if any, will be borne equally by the parties. If the parties cannot resolve a dispute not related to fees 
through mediation, either party may pursue action in a court of competent jurisdiction as set forth in Section N of 
these STC. 

Unless otherwise prohibited by law or applicable professional standard each of the parties irrevocably, voluntarily 
and knowingly waives its right to a jury trial of any claim or cause of action based upon or arising out of this agreement 
or any dealings between the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof. The scope of this waiver is intended 
to be all-encompassing. It includes any and all disputes that may be filed in any court and that relate to the subject 
matter of this agreement, including, but not limited to, contract claims, tort claims, breach of duty claims and all other 
common law and statutory claims. It also includes any and all such claims that may be brought against CBIZ, its 
affiliates and any of their respective personnel, current or former. 

P. Limitation on Damages 

Unless otherwise prohibited by law or applicable professional standard, you agree that CBIZ, any entity related to it 
and their respective personnel, current or former, shall not be liable to you for any claims, liabilities, or expenses 
relating to this engagement for an aggregate amount in excess of the fees paid by you to CBIZ pursuant to this 
engagement, except to the extent finally judicially determined to have resulted from the bad faith, fraud or intentional 
misconduct of CBIZ. Unless otherwise prohibited by law or applicable professional standard, in no event shall CBIZ, 
any entity related to it or their respective personnel, current or former, be liable for consequential, special, indirect, 
incidental, punitive, or exemplary losses or damages relating to this engagement. This limitation on liability provision 
shall apply to the fullest extent of the law, whether in contract, statute, tort (such as negligence), professional 
standard, or otherwise. Further, CBIZ will bear no liability in the case of cybersecurity incidents perpetrated by 
criminal actors that result in unauthorized access to your data, except to the extent such incident resulted from 
CBIZ's negligence, fraud or intentional misconduct, in which case CBIZ liability will be limited as provided above in 
this Section P. 

Q. Inherent Conflicts of Interest 

CBIZ cannot represent a client when there is a significant risk that the representation of one or more clients will be 
materially limited by the practitioner's responsibilities to another client, for example (a “conflict of interest”), unless 
all affected parties have waived the conflict of interest in writing. In some very common situations there are inherent 
potential conflicts of interest between or among clients and others. For example, an entity, such as a corporation, 
partnership or limited liability company, has potential conflicts of interest with its respective shareholders, partners 
or members, board members, officers, management team or employees (collectively “Executives”). Conflicts are 
present in almost any financial decision of the entity; for example, certain tax elections required to be made by the 
entity may not benefit all Executives equally, or decisions to make capital improvements, borrow money or admit 
new owners may have a financial impact on existing Executives. Another example of common inherent conflicts of 
interest exist between or among estates, trusts or similar entities represented by a fiduciary (“Estate”) or a person 
engaged in succession planning or other disposition of assets (“Grantor”), and the respective primary and contingent 
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beneficiaries (“Beneficiaries”). Tax elections, return positions, or other decisions regarding assets or investments 
may be required to be made by the Estate, and those elections, positions or decisions may not benefit all 
Beneficiaries equally. It is common for CBIZ to provide tax advice and prepare tax returns for both entities and 
Estates, and their Executives or Beneficiaries. If CBIZ represents multiple parties in any of the situations described, 
you hereby acknowledge such conflicts of interest and agree that CBIZ can advise and prepare tax returns for those 
entities, Estates, Executives or Beneficiaries, as well as perform the services described in this engagement letter on 
your behalf. Furthermore, in addition to tax compliance and consulting, CBIZ, Inc., through subsidiary entities, offers 
several different types of services to its clients, including employee benefits consulting and compliance, property 
and casualty insurance, life insurance, payroll and other services (collectively “Affiliated Services”). CBIZ may refer 
our clients to others who provide Affiliated Services, and there may be at any given time financial incentives to 
individuals or to CBIZ if a client uses such Affiliated Services. Such financial incentives may be viewed as creating 
a conflict of interest for CBIZ. If CBIZ refers you to someone providing Affiliated Services and you agree to use one 
or more of such Affiliated Services, you hereby acknowledge such conflict of interest and agree that CBIZ can 
perform the services described in this engagement letter on your behalf. Finally, because CBIZ and its affiliates 
comprise a large national practice of professional services providers serving clients across the country who operate 
in a broad range of industries, CBIZ may provide services to other clients who may operate in the same industry as 
you or be competitors and whose interests may conflict with yours. However, we do not accept any engagements 
that would require us to represent two clients regarding a common matter unless a conflict waiver is obtained from 
all parties prior to our engagement. When CBIZ or its affiliates provide services that are not substantially related to 
matters in which we serve you, you hereby waive any such potential, perceived or actual conflict of interest and 
agree that CBIZ can perform the services described in this engagement letter on your behalf. 

R. Limitations on Oral and Email Communication 

We may discuss with you our views regarding the tax treatment of certain items and may provide you with tax 
information in the body of an email. Any advice or information delivered orally or in the body of an email (as opposed 
to a memorandum delivered as an email attachment) will be based upon limited tax research and a limited discussion 
and analysis of the underlying facts. Additional research or a more complete review of the facts could affect our 
analysis and conclusions. Because of these limitations and the related risks, it may not be appropriate to proceed 
with any transaction solely on the basis of any oral or email communication, and we will not be liable for any loss, 
cost, or expense resulting from your decision to rely on any oral or email communication. 

S. Indemnification 

Because this engagement is entered into solely between CBIZ and you, and both parties intend only to create privity 
with each other and no third parties, unless otherwise prohibited by law or applicable professional standard, you 
shall indemnify and hold harmless CBIZ and its personnel from and against any third-party causes of action, 
damages (whether compensatory, consequential, special, indirect, incidental, punitive, exemplary, or of any other 
type or nature), costs and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and the reasonable 
time and expenses of CBIZ’s personnel involved) brought against or involving CBIZ at any time and in any way 
arising out of or relating to CBIZ’s services under this engagement, except to the extent judicially determined to have 
resulted from the bad faith, gross negligence, or willful or intentional misconduct of CBIZ’s personnel. This includes, 
without limitation, reimbursing each CBIZ Indemnified Person promptly for all legal and other expenses reasonably 
incurred by it in connection with investigating, preparing to defend or defending, responding to subpoenas or other 
requests for production of documents or testimony, or otherwise providing evidence in or preparing to serve or 
serving as a witness with respect to, any third-party lawsuits, investigations, claims or other proceedings relating in 
any way to the rendering of services by CBIZ hereunder. This provision shall survive the termination of this 
agreement for any reason, and shall apply to the fullest extent of the law, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise. 
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If any action or proceeding (any of the foregoing being a "Claim") is threatened or commenced by any third party 
against CBIZ that you are obligated to defend or indemnify under this Agreement, then written notice thereof shall 
be given to you as promptly as practicable. After such notice and only so long as CBIZ’s and your interests with 
respect to the claim remain consistent, no conflict exists, and, by your control of the defense, CBIZ’s insurance is 
not voided or otherwise compromised in any way, you shall be entitled, if you so elect in writing within ten days after 
receipt of such notice, to take control of the defense and investigation of such Claim and to employ and engage 
attorneys to handle and defend the same, at your sole cost and expense, with the approval of CBIZ, which approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld. CBIZ shall cooperate in all reasonable respects with you and your attorneys in 
the investigation, trial and defense of such Claim and any appeal arising therefrom; provided, however, that CBIZ 
may, at its own cost and expense, participate, through its attorneys or otherwise, in such investigation, trial and 
defense of such Claim and any appeal arising therefrom. You shall enter into no settlement of a Claim that involves 
a remedy other than the payment of money by solely you without the prior consent of CBIZ. 

After notice by you to CBIZ of your election to assume full control of the defense of any such Claim, and CBIZ’s 
approval of selected counsel, you shall not be liable to CBIZ for any legal expenses incurred thereafter by CBIZ in 
connection with the defense of that Claim. If you do not assume full control over the defense of a Claim, then you 
may participate in such defense, at your sole cost and expense, and CBIZ shall have the right to defend you in such 
manner as it may deem appropriate, at your cost and expense. 

 

Terms and Conditions Applicable Only to Entities 

T. Use of Mayer Hoffman McCann 

In the event that you engage Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C., or any other entity associated with CBIZ, to provide you 
with attest services (collectively “MHM PC”), we may disclose the information you provide to us in connection with 
this engagement to MHM PC in order to facilitate its performance of those services. In those circumstances only, 
you authorize MHM PC to provide us access to all of your files and accounting, tax, financial and other information 
in its possession for the purpose of providing all tax services requested. 

U. Exceptions to Third Parties and Internal Use 

Section B shall not restrict you from complying with any rules or laws requiring returns be made available to the 
public (e.g., forms 990, 990-PF, 990-T). 

V. Providing Forms K-1 

If your tax return involves the preparation of Forms K-1, we may provide a copy of Form K-1 to the person described 
thereon. 

W. Management Function 

Management is responsible for all management decisions and performing all management functions, and for 
designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to 
oversee these services, financial statement preparation services, bookkeeping services, tax services, or other 
services we provide. Management is responsible for evaluating the adequacy and results of the services performed 
and accepting responsibility for them. 
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Terms and Conditions Applicable Only to Individuals 

Terms and Conditions X, Y and Z Intentionally left blank. 
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12/31/2023
(Unaudited)

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash 11,311,079$       
Fees receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 6,000,261           
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated real estate entities 6,974,025           
Other assets 365,393              
Property, equipment and leasehold improvements, net 358,426              

TOTAL ASSETS 25,009,184$       

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable - trade 127,842$            
Accounts payable - construction 6,194,677           
Accrued expenses 2,273,521           
Line of credit payable 4,055,000           
Total Liabilities 12,651,040$       

MEMBERS' EQUITY 12,358,145$       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 25,009,184$       

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

ASSETS

CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheet
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REVENUES
Property management fees 1,027,638$       
Development fees 4,381,311         
Real estate lending transaction fee income 5,624,832         
Construction income 4,076,853         

TOTAL REVENUES 15,110,634       

INVESTMENT INCOME
(457,661)          

(457,661)          

EXPENSES
Payroll and related expenses, net 8,268,353         
Professional fees 1,812,952         
Rent and related expenses 790,511            
Other operating and administrative expenses 759,757            
TOTAL EXPENSES 11,631,573       

INCOME BEFORE NON OPERATING EXPENSE 3,021,400         

Interest expense, net 456,398            
Loss from owned real estate 1,323,911         
Depreciation 19,990              
NET INCOME 1,221,101$       

CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Equity in net loss from CRP Affordable
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Members' equity - January 1, 2023 12,027,738$     

Distributions (2,100,000)  

Contributions 1,209,306    

Net income 1,221,101    

Members' equity - December 31, 2023 12,358,145$     

CASTELLAN HOLDINGS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Members' Equity

For the year ended December 31, 2023
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12/04/2023

Marsh Affinity
a division of Marsh USA LLC.
PO BOX 14404
Des Moines, IA 50306-9686

Marsh Affinity

800-743-8130

ADPTotalSource@marsh.com

New Hampshire Insurance Co. 23841

A 07/01/2023 07/01/2024
Unlimited

Unlimited

Unlimited

ADP TotalSource FL XIX, Inc.
5800 Windward Parkway
Alpharetta, GA 30005
L/C/F:
CRP Affordable Housing And Community Development LLC

122 EAST 42ND STREET
Suite 1903
New York, NY 101680000

WC 034303748 NY

All worksite employees working for CRP Affordable Housing And Community Development LLC paid under
ADP TOTALSOURCE, INC.'s payroll, are covered under the above stated policy.

CRP Affordable Housing and Community Development LLC
122 East 42nd Street
Suite 1903
New York, NY 10168

X
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	Address131: 122 East 42nd Street, Suite 1903,
New York, NY 10168
	Relationship to CONTRACTOR131: Parent Company
	List Common OfficersDirectorsTrustees by Name131: Paul Salib, John Salib
	Name of affiliated CorporationFirmBusiness Entity132: Castellan Holdings Manager LLC
	Address132: 122 East 42nd Street, Suite 1903,
New York, NY 10168
	Relationship to CONTRACTOR132: Manager of Castellan Holdings LLC
	List Common OfficersDirectorsTrustees by Name132: Paul Salib, John Salib
	Name of affiliated CorporationFirmBusiness Entity133: 
	Address133: 
	Relationship to CONTRACTOR133: 
	List Common OfficersDirectorsTrustees by Name133: 
	Q13 Additional: 
	Q14: Attached below in Annexure 2
	Q15: Current financing structure for Hillcrest Hall:

Deferred Developer Fee: CRP is also deferring approximately $5,427,917 in developer fees
Development Budget and Funding Plan:  The total estimated project budget is $64,587,091. The funding plan for Hillcrest Hall project includes federal and state tax credits, private activity bonds, traditional bank loan and funding from local government sources. 

Source 1: San Diego Housing Commission Traditional NOFA 
Application Submitted: October 2023
Award: Awarded $5,000,000 in March 2024

Source 2: Bridge To Home 2023
Application Submitted: October 2023
Award: Awarded $3,175,000 in November 2023

	Name: 
	Address: 
	Amount: 
	Name_2: 
	Address_2: 
	Amount_2: 
	DescriptionRow1: 
	Market Value Row1: 
	Mortgages or Liens Row1: 
	DescriptionRow2: 
	Market Value Row2: 
	Mortgages or Liens Row2: 
	DescriptionRow3: 
	Market Value Row3: 
	Mortgages or Liens Row3: 
	Q16: 
	Bank Name171: Citibank N.A.
	Bank Address171: 300 South Grand Avenue, Los Angeles
	Bank Contact Name171: Hao Li
	Bank Contact PhoneEmail171: (212) 239-1914, hao.li@citi.com

	Bank Name172: RBC Capitals
	Bank Address172: 2061 Ashridge Way, Granite Bay, CA 95746
	Bank Contact Name172: Stacie Altmann
	Bank Contact PhoneEmail172: 628-233-4862, stacie.altmann@rbccm.com
	Bank Name173: JP Morgan Chase
	Bank Address173: 560 Mission St., 3rd Floor, San Francisco, CA 94105
	Bank Contact Name173: Jonathan Veach
	Bank Contact PhoneEmail173: 310-422-1893, jonathan.veach@chase.com
	Q17: 
	Q18 Yes: Off
	Q18 No: Yes
	Q18 Additional: 
	Q19 Yes: Off
	Q19 No: Yes
	Case 1: 
	Case 2: 
	Case 3: 
	Type of BondRow1: 
	Project DescriptionRow1: 
	Date of CompletionRow1: 
	Amount of BondRow1: 
	Action on BondRow1: 
	Type of BondRow2: 
	Project DescriptionRow2: 
	Date of CompletionRow2: 
	Amount of BondRow2: 
	Action on BondRow2: 
	Type of BondRow3: 
	Project DescriptionRow3: 
	Date of CompletionRow3: 
	Amount of BondRow3: 
	Action on BondRow3: 
	Type of BondRow4: 
	Project DescriptionRow4: 
	Date of CompletionRow4: 
	Amount of BondRow4: 
	Action on BondRow4: 
	Q20 Additional: 
	NameRow1: Ironcore Construction LLC
	AddressRow1: 4429 Morena Boulevard, Suite A, San Diego, CA 92117
	AffiliationRow1: Affiliate
	NameRow2: 
	AddressRow2: 
	AffiliationRow2: 
	NameRow3: 
	AddressRow3: 
	AffiliationRow3: 
	Q21b Yes: Off
	Q21b No: Yes
	Q21 Additional: 
	the last three 3 years: 68,800,000
	Q21c: 
	1: The General Description of work performed is majorly ground-up construction, renovation, addition to existing structures.

	C2 Project Name: St. Stephens Retirement Center
	C: 
	2 Project Location: 5625 Imperial Ave, San Diego, CA 92114
	2 Project Details: St. Stephen’s Retirement Center provides 60 units of low-income housing for independent living seniors. All of the units will be restricted to senior
households (62+) earning 50 percent of the area median income (AMI) or below with the exception of the employee unit. 
The property includes a gated ground-level parking lot, parking garage, leasing office, furnished lobby, laundry room, crafts room, maintenance office, large community room, and exterior landscaped and covered area for residents to enjoy. The first floor contains a lobby, leasing and service coordination offices, community room, laundry room, as well as library/computer room. The second and fourth floor include an arts and crafts room and nurse’s office, respectively. The property was built in 1993. The site is also improved with a picnic area and 76 surface parking spaces.
	2 Business Name of Project Owner: CRP St. Stephens Apartments LP
	2 Principal Contact of Project Owner: Paul Salib
	2 Principal Contact Phone  Email: 212-776-1914, psalib@crpaffordable.com
	2 Bonding Company Name  Address: John P. Stoecker (CMFA)
	2 Principal Bond Contact Phone  Email: (760) 930-1221, jstoecker@cmfa-ca.com
	2 Change Order Details: Various scope increases mostly related to concealed deficiencies which required repair / replacement, and some Owner driven changes for new amenities.
	2 Change Order Cost: $385,333 in total
	2 Litigation LocationDate: None
	2 Litigation Details: 
	2 Litigation Outcome Details: 

	C3 Project Name: Valencia Pointe
	Project Location_2: 5930 Division Street, San Diego, CA
	Project Details_2: Valencia Pointe is a 100% affordable housing project located in San Diego, CA. The Project is designed as a 102-unit, new construction development restricted to families and households earning between 40% and 80% of area median income. 
Valencia Pointe will consist of six (4) four-story Type VA buildings atop a podium parking garage with two elevators servicing 100% of the units. There will be a total of fifty-eight (58) two-bedroom units, and forty-four (44), three-bedroom units. Building construction is Type VA wood framed, slab on grade, stucco building exteriors and vinyl windows.
The total project square footage is 115,915. The square footage of all residential units is 97,328. The total common area square footage is 13,968. The 2,976 square foot community building will be allocated for leasing and on-site supportive services for tenants. Ten percent of the units will be accessible, designed in accordance with ADA and TCAC regulations and distributed throughout the unit/bedroom types as required. One of the two-bedroom units will be reserved for on-site managers/property management.
There will be 34 covered surface parking spaces in addition to 136 spaces within the podium garage (1.67 spaces per unit). Van, handicapped, EV, motorcycles and bicycle parking spaces will be provided to conform to government code and building code requirements.
	Business Name of Project Owner_2: CRP Valencia Pointe LP
	Principal Contact of Project Owner_2: Paul Salib
	Principal Contact Phone  Email_2: 212-776-1914, psalib@crpaffordable.com
	Bonding Company Name  Address_2: CalHFA (Bond Issuer)
	Principal Bond Contact Phone  Email_2: 916-616-8899, kbrown@calhfa.ca.gov
	Change Order Details_2: Lumber Change order due to plan revision.
	Change Order Cost_2: $405, 351.42
	Litigation LocationDate_2: 
	Litigation Details_2: 
	Ligation Outcome Details_2: 
	C4 Project Name: 
	Project Location_3: 
	Project Details_3: 
	Business Name of Project Owner_3: 
	Principal Contact of Project Owner_3: 
	Principal Contact Phone  Email_3: 
	Bonding Company Name  Address_3: 
	Principal Bond Contact Phone  Email_3: 
	Change Order Details_3: 
	Change Order Cost_3: 
	Litigation LocationDate_3: 
	Litigation Details_3: 
	Litigation Outcome Details_3: 
	Identification of Contract or DevelopmentRow1: Napa Cove Apartments
	LocationRow1: 3805 Broadway, American Canyon CA 
	AmountRow1: $25,482,267
	Date to be CompletedRow1: May 2025
	Identification of Contract or DevelopmentRow2:  The Meridian
	LocationRow2:  3941 Stevens Creek blvd, Santa Clara CA 
	AmountRow2:  $32,956,878
	Date to be CompletedRow2: May 2025
	Identification of Contract or DevelopmentRow3: 
	LocationRow3: 
	AmountRow3: 
	Date to be CompletedRow3: 
	Awarding AgencyRow1: N/A
	AmountRow1_2: 
	Date OpenedRow1: 
	Awarding AgencyRow2: 
	AmountRow2_2: 
	Date OpenedRow2: 
	Awarding AgencyRow3: 
	AmountRow3_2: 
	Date OpenedRow3: 
	Q21e: 
	Q22: Ironcore Construction LLC delivers a broad range of general contracting and construction management services led by an executive team with decades of experience. The Ironcore team has completed more than 150 major, out-of-the-ground, renovation, addition, and conversion projects with a total value in excess of $1.5 billion. The Ironcore mission is to add value to communities via their commitment to affordable housing projects and, above all, to provide clients with best-in-class service. Despite the company being relatively new to the development of affordable housing, Ironcore has assembled a team of talented individuals who have decades of experience in this space. Given the depth and breadth of Ironcore’s team’s experience, clients can be assured of an efficient and reliable approach tailored to the specific project needs. Ironcore places great emphasis on working closely with clients and all other integral stakeholders and strives to develop a team approach.

Personnel Experience-
• Elliot Jones, President: Elliot Jones is a managing member of Ironcore Construction, a licensed general contractor and has more than 30 years of construction management experience. Mr. Jones is responsible for the “hands-on” day-to-day management of all Ironcore projects.
• Harry Kominski, Chief Estimator: Harry Kominksi, the Chief Estimator at Ironcore Construction, has been working in San Diego for over 30 years, with over 40 years of construction and engineering experience. 
• Danielle Tiffany-Schaefer, Senior Project Manager: Ms. Tiffany-Schaefer serves as an on-site project manager and has more than 27 years of project management experience.
• Pablo Espinosa, Site Project Manager: Mr. Espinosa serves as an on-site project manager and has more than 15 years of project management experience.
• Josh Lee, Project Manager: Mr. Lee has more than 19 years of general contracting and construction management experience working in mixed-use, multifamily renovation, specialty, and commercial space type projects.
• Rick Serrapica, Chief Operating Officer: Mr. Serrapica is Chief Operating Officer and brings more than 30 years of experience developing and managing various asset classes, including multifamily, commercial, retail and industrial properties. 
• Joel Hammer, Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Hammer has more than 25 years of experience in leading the financial, accounting, operational and administrative aspects of real estate investment companies.
• John Baxter, Estimator: Mr.Baxter serves as an Estimator for Ironcore where he’s responsible for providing estimates in design build and design- bid build. Previously, Mr.Baxter worked on federal sector projects for Herman Construction Group for 3 years where he coordinated with architects and engineers to maintain budgets in design build projects. He was also responsible for ensuring full project scope was covered in entirety for all trades.
• Audi Aker, General Superintendent: Mr. Aker serves as a General Superintendent and has over 32 years of superintendent experience. Mr. Aker is overseeing the construction of all Ironcore projects across the state of California. He specializes in the management of construction demolition, subcontractor and equipment scheduling, site safety, bidding/estimating, and budgeting.
• Khalid Malik, Senior Project Manager: Mr. Malik has more than 35 years of providing premier construction project management services. Mr. Malik’s experience spans a global scale, including the oversight of projects in Saudi Arabia, United Arab Emirates, and the USA.

	Q23 Yes: Off
	Q23 No: Yes
	Q23 Explain: 
	Q24: CRP Affordable’s detailed resume is attached to the Application. 
	Q25 Yes: Off
	Q25 No: Yes
	Q25 Explain Yes: 
	General Liability: A copy of CRP’s workers compensation policy is attached in Annexure 3. Other relevant insurance policies, such as general liability and professional liability, are specific to each project being developed. The insurance policies are under the limited partnerships that are formed with each project’s partners and investors, and not with CRP Affordable and Community Development itself.
	Comprehensive: Off
	Premeises Ops: Off
	Explosion Collapse: Off
	Underground Hazard: Off
	Products/Completed Hazard: Off
	Contractual Insurance: Off
	Broad Form Prop Damage: Off
	Independent Contractors: Off
	Personal Injury: Off
	Automobile Insurance: A copy of CRP’s workers compensation policy is attached in Annexure 3. Other relevant insurance policies, such as general liability and professional liability, are specific to each project being developed. The insurance policies are under the limited partnerships that are formed with each project’s partners and investors, and not with CRP Affordable and Community Development itself.
	Qb Comp Form: Off
	Qb Owned: Off
	Qb Hired: Off
	Qb Non-owned: Off
	Workers Comp: Certificate of Insurance is attached below in Annexure 3.
	Prof Liability: A copy of CRP’s workers compensation policy is attached in Annexure 3. Other relevant insurance policies, such as general liability and professional liability, are specific to each project being developed. The insurance policies are under the limited partnerships that are formed with each project’s partners and investors, and not with CRP Affordable and Community Development itself.
	Excess Liability: A copy of CRP’s workers compensation policy is attached in Annexure 3. Other relevant insurance policies, such as general liability and professional liability, are specific to each project being developed. The insurance policies are under the limited partnerships that are formed with each project’s partners and investors, and not with CRP Affordable and Community Development itself.
	Other Insurance: A copy of CRP’s workers compensation policy is attached in Annexure 3. Other relevant insurance policies, such as general liability and professional liability, are specific to each project being developed. The insurance policies are under the limited partnerships that are formed with each project’s partners and investors, and not with CRP Affordable and Community Development itself.
	Government Entity Making ComplaintRow1: 
	DateRow1: 
	ResolutionRow1: 
	Government Entity Making ComplaintRow2: 
	DateRow2: 
	ResolutionRow2: 
	Government Entity Making ComplaintRow3: 
	DateRow3: 
	ResolutionRow3: 
	Government Entity Making ComplaintRow4: 
	DateRow4: 
	ResolutionRow4: 
	Q30 Additional Info: 
	Q31 Yes: Off
	Q31 No: Yes
	Q31 Explain Yes: 
	Government AgencyRow1: Control State License Board
	License DescriptionRow1: General B
	License NumberRow1: 1065670
	Date Issued OriginalRow1: 5/31/20
	Status CurrentRow1: Active
	Revocation YesNoRow1: No
	Government AgencyRow2: 
	License DescriptionRow2: 
	License NumberRow2: 
	Date Issued OriginalRow2: 
	Status CurrentRow2: 
	Revocation YesNoRow2: 
	Government AgencyRow3: 
	License DescriptionRow3: 
	License NumberRow3: 
	Date Issued OriginalRow3: 
	Status CurrentRow3: 
	Revocation YesNoRow3: 
	Q32 Additional: 
	Q33: N/A
	Q34: N/A
	DateRow1_2: 
	Entity Involved ie City SDHC et alRow1: 
	Status Current delinquent repaid etcRow1: 
	Dollar AmountRow1: 
	DateRow2_2: 
	Entity Involved ie City SDHC et alRow2: 
	Status Current delinquent repaid etcRow2: 
	Dollar AmountRow2: 
	DateRow3_2: 
	Entity Involved ie City SDHC et alRow3: 
	Status Current delinquent repaid etcRow3: 
	Dollar AmountRow3: 
	Q35 Additional: 
	Q36 Yes: Off
	Q36 No: Yes
	Q36 Explain Yes: 
	Q37 Yes: Off
	Q37 No: Yes
	Q37 Explain yes: 
	Q38: 
	1 Name: Mr. David Gardner, Highland Construction
	1 Address: 1750 6th Ave, San Diego CA
	1 Phone: (619) 498-2900
	1 Project Name: Valencia Pointe Apartments
	1 Description: 102-unit podium building 5 stories over garage level. Ironcore was CM for CRP as Owner while Highland was GC.
	2 Name: Ms. Wendy McKinney / partner St. Stephens Retirement Apartments
	2 Address: 5625 Imperial Blvd San Diego CA
	2 Phone: 818-642-3539
	2 Project Name: Valencia Pointe Apartments
	2 Description: 102-unit podium building 5 stories over garage level. Ironcore was CM for CRP as Owner while Highland was GC.
	3 Name: Mr. William Hedenkamp, Hedenkamp Architecture
	3 Address: 4455 Morena Blvd San Diego CA
	3 Phone: 858-752-9888
	3 Project Name: Valencia Pointe Apartments
	3 Project Description: 102-unit podium building 5 stories over garage level. Ironcore was CM for CRP as Owner while Highland was GC.

	Q39: CRP serves as the development sponsor for the community. CRP is a wholly owned subsidiary of Castellan Holdings LLC (DBA Castellan Real Estate Partners), a fully integrated real estate development firm. CRP’s mission is to provide and develop quality housing for tenants while working with local partners to stay on pace with community needs. The team has a deep professional background in all aspects of development. Their experience includes affordable housing and rent restricted/controlled projects. This includes providing housing to at-risk, special needs, senior and other vulnerable populations. Special mention about the CRPs experience in affordable housing.
• As of January 2024, Castellan has acquired 102 properties in New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania and California Castellan has owned, operated, developed and managed 2419 units including affordable, rent restricted and rent controlled units comprised of approximately 2.4 million square feet
• The team has a deep professional background in all aspects of development Our experience includes affordable housing and rent restricted/controlled projects This includes providing housing to at risk, special needs, senior and other vulnerable populations.
• With a team of highly skilled professionals, Castellan strives to combine a unique vision with deep market knowledge and a keen ability to execute any multifamily rehabilitation or new construction project including Section 42 low-income housing tax credit transactions.

CRP have demonstrated experience developing housing in a cost efficient, on budget, manner. CRP Affordable’s mission is to provide quality communities that are safe, secure and affordable.  CRP Affordable goal is to provide efficient housing to address the following objectives:
• Working families should have access to quality housing.
• Seniors on fixed incomes shouldn’t have to struggle to pay for basic necessities, such as housing.
• Veterans that have honorably served our nation shouldn’t worry about having a roof over their heads.
• Homelessness can be addressed by committed stakeholders working together to make the communities better for all of us.
• Young people, who are transitioning out of foster care, should have supportive services and a caring hand to guide them into adulthood.
• All people facing housing challenges, whether they are families in need or individuals fleeing domestic violence, deserve safe and secure options.
	Q40 Name: Aric Ross
	Q40 Experience: Aric has over 12 years of experience in the industry with accounting processes. Aric has graduated with his BS in Construction Management and has since used this effectively with multiple companies and projects. He began doing preservation work with vintage homes in Portland, OR and has since progressed his skills and experience to become a Superintendent. For the past 9 years, Aric has conducted work throughout the state of California.

Project List
North View Pointe, Sacramento, CA
• • One building, two stories, slab on grade construction, table frame with a total of 67 units. Project was budgeted at $34 million.

Salvator Apartments, Sacramento, CA
• • Two, four story buildings, slab on grade construction, stick frame with a total of 120 units. Project was budgeted at $28 million.

Meadow View Place, Truckee, CA
• • Seven multifamily buildings of two, four story buildings and a one-story community center with a total of 56 units. This project was budgeted at $14.5 million.

The Salvation Army Officer’s Training, Rancho Palos Verdes, CA
• • A three-building renovation that consisted of updating a dorm style design into
officer’s headquarters. The property work spanned 55,000 sq. ft. and was $1.25 million.


